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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MATT KLABACKA,
DISTRIBUTION TRUSTEE OF
THE ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001,
Appellant/Cross-Respondent,

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.: 66772

District Court CaspbipoRithlRFiled
Mar 02 2016 08:51 a.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman
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LYNITA SUE NELSON,
INDIVIDUALLY, AND IN HER
CAPACITY AS INVESTMENT
TRUSTEE OF THE LSN NEVADA
TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001;
AND ERIC L. NELSON,
INDIVIDUALLY, AND IN HIS
CAPACITY AS INVESTMENT
TRUSTEE OF THE ERIC L.
NELSON NEVADA TRUST
DATED MAY 30, 2001,
Respondents/Cross-Appellant.

Consolidated with Case No. 68292

RESPONDENT/CROSS-APPELLANT, LYNITA SUE NELSON’S,
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ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

JOSEF M. KARACSONYT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Attorneys for Respondent/Cross-Appellant, LYNITA SUE NELSON
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INDEX

VOLUME

DATE

DESCRIPTION

PAGE
NUMBER

07/19/12

2006 U.S. Individual Income Tax

0905 - 0927

12/11/13

Affidavit of the Honorable Frank P.
Sullivan in Response to the ELN
Trust’s Motion to Disqualify

1277 - 1281

07/19/12

Bank account statements/records for
Eric L. Nelson NV Trust at Bank of
America (Account No. 0049 6485
2798) and bank account
statements/records for LSN Nevada
Trust dba Tierra De Sol (Account No.
0049 6485 2743) (Admitted as
Defendant’s Exhibit KKKK)

0681 - 0731

02/22/07

Change of Distribution Trusteeship for
the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 149)

0600 - 0602

06/08/01

Change of Trusteeship for the Eric L.
Nelson Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 162)

0608 - 0611

07/19/12

Check Numbers 1776, 1769, and 1751
drawn on the Lindell Professional Plaza
bank account at Bank of America,
Account No. 00496485273 (Admitted
as Defendant’s Exhibit JJJJ)

0678 - 0680

05/30/14

City National Bank statement for
Banone, LLC, for November 30, 2011
(Admitted as Distribution Trustee’s
Exhibit 14)

0967 - 0968

05/30/14

City National Bank cashier’s check

ayable to Eric Nelson in the amount of
575 ,000 (Admitted as Distribution
Trustee’s Exhibit 15)

0969

08/31/10

Court Option A dated 07/30/10
(Admitted as Plaintiff’s “11W”)

0651 - 0653

08/31/10

Court Option B dated 07/30/10
(Admitted as Plaintiff’s “11W”)

0654 - 0656

12/18/13

Defendant’s Opposition to Motion to
Disqualify Judge Sullivan and
Countermotion for Attorneys’ Fees and
Costs

1282 - 1332
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08/31/12

Defendant’s Post-Trial Memorandum
on Trust Issues

1018 - 1078

09/28/12

Defendant’s Post-Trial Reply
Memorandum on Divorce Issues

1103 -1124

09/28/12

Defendant’s Post-Trial Reply
Memorandum on Trust Issues

1079 - 1102

08/27/10

Defendant’s Pretrial Memorandum

0001 - 0018

08/19/11

Delegation of Lana A. Martin
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 165)

0613

08/20/12

Eric Nelson’s Summary (Admitted as
Plaintiff’s Exhibit 241)

0970

07/19/12

Gerety & Associates, CPAs invoice
dated 02/29/12 (Admitted as
Defendant’s Exhibit HHHH)

0657

8/30/10

LSN Nevada Trust v/a/d 5/30/2001
(Admitted as Plaintiff’s Exhibit 81)

0971 -1017

01/16/04

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 47)

0548

02/25/04

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 48)

0549

12/12/04

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 54)

0553

02/17/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as

Intervenor’s Exhibit 55)

0554

02/20/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 56)

0555

05/25/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 58)

0556

06/15/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 59)

0557

08/03/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 60)

0558

08/12/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 61)

0559

4
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11/08/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting

of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 62)

0560

05/10/06

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 64)

0561

07/08/06

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 65)

0562

08/28/06

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 66)

0563

10/15/06

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 67)

0564

11/05/06

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust %Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 68)

0565

11/22/06

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 70)

0566

02/22/07

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting

of LSN Nevada Trust gAdmitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 71)

0567

03/21/07

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of LSN Nevada Trust (Admitted as

Intervenor’s Exhibit 73)

0568

07/03/01

Minutes of Annual Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
101

0569

07/03/02

Minutes of Annual Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
118

0577

02/25/04

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 131)

0584

02/25/04

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 133)

0585

01/02/05

Minutes of Annual Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
140

0591
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02/23/05

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 141)

0592

02/25/06

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 146)

0597

02/23/07

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 150)

0603

03/21/07

Minutes of Annual Trustees’ Meeting
of Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 151)

0604

01/03/08

Minutes of Annual Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Trust (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit

152)

0605

01/06/09

Minutes of Annual Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
155

0606

01/06/10

Minutes of Annual Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
158

0607

01/03/02

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of LSN Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 35)

0546

04/01/02

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of LSN Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 38)

0547

04/14/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of LSN Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 50)

0550

05/20/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of LSN Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 52)

0551

11/20/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of LSN Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 53)

0552

08/31/01

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
103

0570
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11/30/01

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
if(r)l_;'it (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit

0571

12/31/01

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
109

0572

01/03/02

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’

Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada

”lfruit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
10

0573

04/03/02

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’

Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada

;Frugt (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
13

0574

05/15/02

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
115

0575

05/20/02

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
”lf{léit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit

0576

12/23/02

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Trugt (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
119

0578

02/20/03

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Tru§t (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
120

0579

09/20/03

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’

Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada

”lfauit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
6

0580

12/15/03

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
128

0581

01/15/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’

Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada

”lfauit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
9

0582

01/10/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Trugt (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
130

0583

7
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04/30/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
134

0586

05/10/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
136

0587

05/20/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
137

0588

10/15/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’

Meetini of Eric L. Nelson Nevada

guit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
8

0589

11/20/04

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meetini of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Tru§t (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
139

0590

05/05/05

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meetini of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
142

0593

05/15/05

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Trust, unsigned (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 143)

0594

05/15/05

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Trust, 81%ned (Admitted as Intervenor’s
Exhibit 144)

0595

07/08/05

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Trugt (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
145

0596

08/30/06

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Tértuit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
147

0598

09/19/06

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meetini of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Truit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
148

0599

06/16/11

Minutes of Special Meeting Trustees’
Meeting of Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Téuit (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
164

0612
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various
dates

Miscellaneous deed documents
produced by Defendant (Admitted as
Intervenor’s Exhibit 167

0614 - 0650

01/21/11

Motion for Temporary Support, for
Release of Information, for an Order
Enjoining Eric from Taking Certain
Actions, for Monitoring by this Court
or Appointment of a Receiver, and for
an Award of Attorneys Fees

0122 -0165

5&6

12/03/13

Motion to Disqualify Judge Sullivan

1125-1276

07/11/11

Notice of Filing Income and Expense
Reports for: (1) Banone, LLC, and (2)
Dynasty Development Group

0169 - 0197

07/15/11

Notice of Filing Income and Expense
Reports for Banone-AZ, LLC

0198 - 0209

05/01/12

Notice of Filing Income and Expense

Reports for Lynita Nelson for the

K/E{:riod of January 1, 2011 through
arch 31, 2012

0210 - 0221

01/13/14

Order Denying Motion to Disqualify
Judge Frank P. Sullivan

1333 - 1343

05/25/11

Order entered in case no. D-09-411537-
D

0166 - 0168

07/19/12

Public Records: Deeds, Declaration of
Value forms, Tax Assessor General
Information sheet pertaining to the
Tropicana — Albertson’s Land
(Admitted as Defendant’s Exhibit ITIT)

0658 - 0677

3&4

07/19/12

Public Records: Deeds pertaining to
the Wyoming Horse Racing propert
located at 10180 State Highway 89
(Admitted as Defendant’s Exhibit
LLLL)

0732 - 0755

07/19/12

Public Records: Deeds pertaining to
the High Country Inn property located
at 1936 Harrison Dr., Evanston, WY
(Admitted as Defendant’s Exhibit
MMMM)

0756 - 0775

07/19/12

Public Records; Deeds , Declaration of
Value forms, Tax Assessor Parcel
Ownership History sheet, and General
Information sheet pertaining to 3611
Lindell Road, Las Vegas, Nevada
(Admitted as Defendant’s Exhibit
PPPP)

0776 - 0788
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07/19/12

Public Records: Deeds pertaining to
the cabin and land in the Brianhead,
Utah area (Admitted as Defendant’s

Exhibit QQQQ)

0789 - 0839

07/19/12

Public Records: Deeds and other
]%ublic records pertaining to the Tierra
el Sol Center in Phoenix, Arizona
(Admitted as Defendant’s Exhibit

RRRR)

0840 - 0904

07/19/12

Public Records: Deeds and Declaration

of Value forms pertaining to the 5220

East Russell Road, Las Vegas, Nevada
Admitted as Defendant’s Exhibit

)

0928 - 0959

07/19/12

Public Records: Deeds and County
Recorder information sheets pertaining
to the Sycamore Plaza property located
at 1749-1755 West Main Street,
Phoenix, Arizona (Admitted as
Defendant’s Exhibit VVVV)

0960 - 0966

05/30/01

The LSN Nevada Trust dated May 30,
205)1 (Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit
25

0512 - 0544

11/17/10

Transcript Re: Non-Jury Trial (Partial)

0019 - 0121

08/20/12

Transcript Re: Non-Jury Trial

0222 - 0511

05/30/14

Transcript Re: Non-Jury Trial

| 1344 -1490

06/01/01

Waiver of Notice and Consent to Hold
Annual / Semi-Annual Trustees’
Meeting of LSN Nevada Trust
(Admitted as Intervenor’s Exhibit 30)

0545

10
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THE COURT: And you said November is --

MR, SOLOMON: November I'm gone =--

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLCMON: —-- until the last weck.

THE COURT: Okay. I think in fairness, then let's
-— I'm going to have you put in the order that the Court's
going to consider its -- this divorce decree az a final order.
We'll address this under 2my asg an undisclosed asset, that way
it won't delay everything until December and thalt seems —-
that would be the fair way to give everybody a chance to lock
at it and give us any chance if we need any motions and fto
limit discovery and things like that. It giveg everybody
Cchance so we're not just scrambliing. Because f‘m trying tlo
get this done the best I can. I think that's the fairest to
do it and you can take all those isgsues up and if they think
it's appropriate, so bet it, bkut otherwise, you're never going
to get this thing done. Does that work for vou, counsel, if
we did in December then sometime?

MEK. SOLOMON: T can't agrec to that for the reason

THE COURT: Wo. No.
MR, SOLCOMON: -- you stated, Your Honor.
THE COURT: This says December., No.

ME. SCOLOMON: I understand what you're doing.

D-09-411537-0 NELSON 07/22/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

61
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THE COURT: -~ and let counsel --

MR. DICKERSON: Thank you.

THE COURT: -~ sign off? Thanks,'everybody.
Lo keep vou so late.

MR. SOLCOMON: Thank you, sir.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 16:09:00)

* Kk ok K kK

ATTEST: T do hereby certify that T have truly and

correctly transcribed the digital proccodings in the

above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

SOrry

Adrian N. Medrano

D-0-411537-0 NELSON 07/22/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REFORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

115

RAPP1252
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RESIGNATION OF CURRENT DISTRIBUTION TRUSTEE OF VHE ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUSY

AND SUCCES50R DHSTRIBUTION TRUSTEE TO ACT IN THAT CAPACITY

1, Lani Martin, as current Distribution Trustae of the Erlc L. Nelson Nevada Trust hereby resign my role
as Distrlbution Trustee of the Eflc L, Nelson Nevada Trust as I'm no longer willing to serve in that
capacily,

Pursuant to that certaln Change of Trustaeship for the Edc L. Nelson Nevadd Trust dated Sune 87, 2011,
executed by Jefirey L, Burr, Esg on behalf of Jeffrey Bury, LTD, as Trust Consultant, | hereby request that
per Article 11,2 of such agreement, that NOLA HARBER serve as Succegssor Distribution Trustea of the
Trust,

EEOI?AL'UE and cotrect and hereby resign as Current Distribution Trustes,

JA
STATE OF NEVADA }
Jss:
COLNTY OF CLARK }

+h
on tune 12, 2013, bafore me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for sald County of Clark, State

of Nevada, personally appeared LANA MARTIN personally known to me {or ptoved to me un the basis of

satisfactory evidence) to be the parson whose name is subscribed to the within Instrument and -

acknowletdged to me that she executed the same in har authorized capacity, and that by her slgnhature
on the instrument, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the
instrument,

WITNESS my hand and officlzl seal.

...... e, 3 TR e

a@ﬂfé‘%‘ﬁ %”E?;ﬁ,‘& Notary Public
Courly of Clark
M. BTANTON §

1 of_z

RAPP1254
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CHANGE. OF TRUSTEESHIP
FOR THE
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST |

THIS CHANGE OF TRUSTEESHIP, dated Yune 8, 2011, is made in

" secordumee with ARTICLE X1, Section 11.3, entitled Tmat‘Consuhant, a3 pxwidq& in the

Trust Agreement, dated May 30, 2001,
Wetnessesh:

WHEREAS, ERIC L. NEI.HSDN, ns Trustor, established the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST on May 30, 2001, wherein ERIC L, NELSON is serving as
Investment Trustee, NOLA HARBER in serving ps Distribution Trustee and JEFFREY
BURR, LTD., formerly known as JEFFREY L, BURR, LTD,, & Nevada corporation, is
serving as Trost Consultant; and

WHEREAS, pussuant to the power reserved to JEFFREY BURR, LTD,, es the

Trust Consultant, in Section 11,3 of the within referenced Trust Agreement, it is the Trust
Consultant™s desirs to remove LYNITA SUE NELSON as the first nominated Successor

© Investment Trustee of the within referenced Trust Agreement and to make other

Successor Investment Trastee changes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant o the power reserved to JEFFREY BURR, LTD,, #s the
Trust Consnitant, in Section 11.3 of the within referenced Trust Agreement, it is the Trast
Consultant's desire to remove NOLA HARBER a3 cument Disivibution Trustee of the
within referenced Trust Agreement and to mako other Distribution Trustee changes.

NOW, THEREFORE by executing this Chinge of Trasteeship, the Trust
Consvltant hexeby mekes the {following modifications and changes to the current and
successor Trusteeship of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001;

L

Effective immediately, LYNITA SUE NELSON is hereby removed as the
Successor Investment Trustee of the Trust and NOLA HARPER is hereby removed a3 the
curent Distribulion Trusiee of the Trust

: 1 JEFFRBY BURR, LTD,
: Altorneys alLaw

Lanal]De1t

RAPP1256
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ARTICLE 11 — PROVISIONS RELATING TO TRUSTEESHEP, Sections
11,1 and 11,2 of fhis Atticle 11 shall be deleted in thelr entirety and the followlng shall

be inserted inthelr stead:

“111 Inyestraent Trustee and Suwecessor Tuvestment Trustee. ERIC I,
NELSCGN is the current Investment Trustes of this Trust, Jf he should become deceased,
unzgble or wnwilling to serve, NOLA HARBER shall serve as Suceessor Invesiment
Trustee of this Trust,  NOLA HARBER should become deceasad, unable or wnwilling t6
serve, CLARENCE NELSON shall sexve as Successor Tuvestment Trustee of this Trust, If
CLARENCE NELSON showld become deceased, unable or wnwilling to serve, ALRDA
NELSON shall setve as Successor Investment Traglee of this Trust. Bxcept whers specifig

powers are given to the Distribution Tiwstee as provided herein, wherever the term
“Trustee” 15 nged in this Trust, it shall be deemed to mean the Iivestment Trustee and
Successor Investrnent Trustees as named above.

11,2 Distribution Trostee and Successor Distribiution Trustee LANA

MARTIN is now smppuinied to serve as the corrent Distribution Trusice, effective
immediately, ¥ LANA MARTIN shoald become deceased, unable or vowilling 1o serve as

the curtent Disirbution Trustee, NOLA HARBER shall serve as Successor Distribution.

Trustee of this Trust, I NOLA HARBER should become decessed, unable or unwilling to
secve, CLARENCE NELSON shall serve as Successor Distribution Trustee of this Trusi,
Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the death of ERIC L. NELSON or iu the cvent that he
should cease fo serve as the lnvestment Trastee herennder, then the Distriibution Trustee
shall cease to sorve and the administeation, an;:l distribution of the Trust estate shell
thereupon be under the exclusive control of the Investment Tmsta&(s). In no event shalt
the Trustor serve as @ Distribution Trustee,”

i) JAFFREY BURR, LD,
Attarneyy at Luw

LanaQ1062

RAPP1257
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THIS CHANGE OF TRUSTEESHIP is made aud exscuted by the Trust
Coasultant on the day and yoer first sbove written,

TRUST CONSULTANT

JEFFEEY BURR, LTD,,
& Nevada cerporation

B POINTED | US

I certify that T have yead the foregoing Change of Trusteeship and the within
referenced Declaration of Trust and uhders{and the terms and conditioas for my service
gz purrent Distribution Trustee and I accept the Declaration of Trust in 21! particulars,

/
h r"?f ’ L}
7 lfl .

Y LANA MARTIN

STATE OF NEVADA )
) 88,
COUNTY OFCLARX )

On June BZ_, 2011, befors me, the uadersigned, & Notary Public in and for sald
County of Clark, State of Nevads, personally appeared JEFFREY BURR, ESQ. of
JEFFREY BURR, LTD., a Nevada corpomation, personally known to me {or proved to me
on the besis of satisfactory aviﬁ&ch) to be the person whose name fs subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he exccuted the same in his authorized

JEFFREY BURR, LThO,
3 | Attameys at Law Lena01063

RAPP1258



capacity, and that by hds signature on the Instrument, Ehe pewon, er the entity upon behglf
of which the person acted, exocuted the instrument.
WITNESS my hand and offictal seal,

NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF NEVADA )
. ) B8,
COUNTY OF CLARK )

On Junt _K, 2011, before e, thic vadersigned, a Notary Public in snd for said
County of Clatk, State of Nevada, personally appearbci LANA MARTIN personally
kaown to tue (or proved to me on the basls of satlsfactory evidencs) to be the person
whose nacae {3 subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that she
sxecutad the seme in het authorized oapacity, and that by her signature on the Instrument,
the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, execited the instrament.

WITNESS my hand and official sesl,

T, Moy il of Mo |
: 5}*'%35‘155:%.-:::.: wa Gm#n}r of Qlark 4 {
S FOCHELLE MCGOWAN ¢ E
ille My Appoindment Edplres £ ' LS
e T Y ek TARY PUBLIC .
il JHFFREY BUKR, LD,

Allomeys at Law

LanaD1064
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CCE ¥ DISTR|BUTION TRUSTEE 5C U

1 certify that | have read the Change of Trusteeshlp for the Fric L, Nelson Nevada Trust dated June 8,
2011 and understand the terms and conditions for my service as Distrtbution Trustee and | accept In &l

STATE OF NEVADA }
Isx:
COUNTY OF CLARK }

Ondune 1{> _, 2013, before me, the undersighed, & Notary Public In and for said County of Clark, State
of Nevada, personally appeared NOLA HARBER personally known to me {or proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose wame Is subscribad to the within Instrument and
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her authorized capacity, and that by her signature

an the Instrument, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the
Instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal,

NOTARY PUBLIC '

SYATE OF NEVADA Notary Public

Courty of Clwk

2of2
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SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
G0E0 WEST CHEYENNE AVENUE
Las VEgas, NEVADA $9129
TEL: (702} 853-3483 | Fax: (702) 853-5485

10
1]
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

NOTC

MARK A, SOLOMON, ESQ,

Nevada State Bar No. 0418

E-mailimsolomon@sdfnvlaw.com

JEFFREY P. LUSZECK, ESQ. ,

Nevada State Bar No, 961¢ Electronically Filed
E-mail: jluszeck@sdfnvlaw.com 07/16/2013 03:31:12 PM
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD,

Cheyenne West Professional Centre’ )
9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue % t. W
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Telephone No.; (702) 853-5483 CLERK OF THE COURT
Facsimile No.: (702) 853-5485

Attorneys for NOLA HARBER,

Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON

NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001

DISTRICT COURT
COUNTY OF CLARK, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON, Case No,; D411537

Dept.: O
Plaintiff/Counterdefendant, P

Y5,

LYNITA SUENELSON, LANA MARTIN,
as Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L.
NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May 30,
2001

Detendants/Counterclaimants.

LANA MARTIN, Distribution Trustee of the
ERIC L, NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001,

Crossclaimant,

VE.

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Crossdefendant.

=t A T T

Page 1 of 3
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NEvaDaA 89129

ST CHEYENNE AVENTE
TeEL: {702) 833-53483 [ Fax: (702) 8533-5485

LAS VEGAS,

SOLOMON BWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

NOTICE OF SUBSTITUTION OF DISTRIBUTION TRUSTEE

Please take notice that on or around Tune 10, 2013, Lana Martin resigned as Distribution Trusiee
of the ELN Trust. See Resignation of Current Distribution Trustee of the ELN Trust and Successor
Distrnibution Trustee to Act in that Capacity, attached hereto ag Exhibit 1. Pursuant to the Change of
Trusteeship for the ELN Trust dated June 8, 2011, Jeffrey Burr, Esq. appointed Nola Harber to serve
as the Successor Distribution Trustee of the ELN Trust in the event that Ms, Martin became
“deceased, unable or unwilling to serve as the current Distribution Trustee” See Change of
Trusteeship for the ELN Trust dated Fune 8, 2011, attached hereto as Exhibit 2. Ms, Harber has
accepted the appointment as Distribution Trustee of the ELN Trust, see Ex. 1, and Eric Nelson, the
Investment Trustee, has auwthorized and delegated Ms. Harber to defend, maintain and pursve any and
all actions on behalf of the ELN Trust, See Delegation of Nola Harber, attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

DATED tkis 16" day of Tuly, 2013,

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTI,

by W/‘w W%LM

M{}'{ SOLOMON, ESQ.
Vada State Bar No, 0418
msolomon@sdfnvlaw.com
JEFFREY P. LUSZECK, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 9619
jluszeck@sdfnviaw.com
Cheyenne West Professional Centré
0060 West Chevenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
Telephone: (702) 853-5483
Facsimile: (702) 853-5485
Attorneys for Noia Harber, Distribution Trustee

Page 2 of 3
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SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 WEST CHEYENNE AVENUE

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA §9129
TEL: (702) 833-5483 | Fax: (702) §53-3485

10
11

12

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

I HEREBY CERTITY that pursuant to EDCR 7.26(a), 5el‘vme of the foregoing NoTICE OF

SUBSTITUTION OF DISTRIBUTION TRUSTEE was made on this gc@ day of July, 2013, by sending a

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

true and correct copy of the same by United States Postal Service, first class postage fully prepaid, to

the following at his last known address as listed below:

Robert P. Dickerson, Esq.
Dickerson Law Group
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, NV 89134

j o4
A/ Dar ol igoi

An employee of Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd.

Page 3 of 3
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TRANS FILED
JUN 27 2013

ORIGINAL Bt

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff, CASE NO, D~09-411537-D
Vs, DEFPT. O
LYNITA NELSCN, {SEALED)

Defendant.

T L R M e e M e e e o

BEFORE THE HCNORABLE FRANK P, SULLIVAN
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TRANSCRIPT RE; MOTION

WEDNEZDAY, JUNE 19, 2013

P-08-411537-0 NELSON 08192013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC {520) 303-7366
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I've been attempting to get a hold of Pave Stephens (ph). He
has not returned my calls. I don't know if the trust has
Laken the entire 1.8 million plus all the interest that has
bean accrued on that over the last vear, vyear and a half that
it's -- Lt's been there,

THE CQURT: My intenf was when I said dissolve it
was to order immediate distribution within the 30 days I think
~- at least maybe it wasn't as clear as I thought. And I said
we'll distribute A, B, C, D, E and then the remaining 500,000
to Mr. Nelson. That was my intent.

MR. DICKERSON; Well --

THE COURT: Not -- that's --

MR, DICKERSON: ~-- my -- my hope was 1s that that
was the intent ~-

THE CQURT: Yeah,

MR. DICKERSQON: ~- and my hope was that it would
remain with -- with Mz, Stephens and that Mr. Stephens would
cut the checks that Your Honor had oprdered, I don't know why
it =- it weuld have necessitated a -- a 30 day peried, And
we're asking that Your Honor order that those monies be
released today. Ms., Nelson has no monies available to her,
As you see, we've sef 1t -- T believe she has about 19,000,

THE COURT:; 19,000 in --

MR, DICKERSON: She has significant debt,

D-09-411537-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT [SEALED)
VERBATIM REFORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-73568
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THE COURT: —~ c¢redit card bills —-

MR. PICKERSON: I think it's also --

THE COURT: =-- about 53,000.

MR, DICKERSON: -- ironic and Lt -- 1t goes to tell
you what we've heen dealing with in thils case. You xnow that
this -- the csgse was filed in Januwary of 2008. The parties
have been going through divorce problems for years prior to
that. They separated in June of 2008. And I think the -- the
record reflects thal approximately since 2008 at most Lynita
Nelson has received about $30,000 from Eric Nelson.

He left her this account roughly 52,000,000 that she
was strictly had to rely upon that, Receilves noe income from
any other sourge, had to rely cn those monies and that money
is down to 19,000 which they -- they throw a line in their
opposition pointing out that she's gone through the
52,000,000, That $2,000,000 was what she used for the
purposes of her living expenses which Your Honor has already
determined. Ii's at least $240,000 a vear and she use those
money for the purposes of -- of her litigation expenses,

and I think it's ironic seeing that, Ycur Honor she
is here and she's not —— she doesn't have the money available
for her to go on vacation. And while Eric Nelson is not here,
because he's spending two and a half weeks in Thalland with at

least three of his children,

D-08-111837.0 NELSON 06/19f2013 TRANSCGRIPT {SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7338
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at it., When I looked at -- go I probably should have been
very specific, hut that's why I try teo say this money, this
money and then the remaining to Mr, Nelson, because I figuréd
they may have some concerns that the money could dissipate.

MR, LUSZECK: Yes, It's my understanding the money
has been transferred from the trust account te the ELN Trust.

MR, DICKERSON: So they have already —-

MR, LUSZECK: Do you know if Mr., Nelson -- do you
know 1f Mr, Nelson's got his 500 grand? Do you know 1{ they
distributed it and just transferred to the trust?

MR, LUSZECK: That I don't know, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: 8¢ what they've already done isg they
have already taken benefits of your judgment and now they're
telling after we take the bensfits of our judgment we're going
to file an appeal. And they can't do that. And they -- they
vary well have walved their rights to appeal;

MR. LUSEECK: I ~-- I don't think thal's true, Your
Honox. I believe the order -- the divorce decree has been
complied with and I don't think we've waived any rights to
appeal.

THE COURT: Okay. Yeah, We'll deal with that when
it comes. My concern on this case is I thought that there

could be possible appeals on that. I felt that —— give pecple

'D-09-411637-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT {SEALED)
VERBATIM REFORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

12
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some time. I did feel that I wculd try to keep the trust in
place in order to provide the protection from creditors, so I
didn't want them to lose the intent as I found the intent of
their trust which was to protect from creditors on bkoth sides.
They didn't want to open up Ms, Lynita either to any attacks
by creditors as to her thing through Eric or otherwise. So I
did feel on that,

I'11 deal with those issues about setting aside
appropriately with Honeycutt cor whatever comes down on that,
but. I'm very -- the reason I asked you if tThose monies have
been fransferred, because if they lefi the money with Mr,
Stephens I wouldn't been as concerned saying they left it
there, fine, they're doing it on the up and up, They had
concerns on that and they just want to protect that.

But I'll he honest with you. My findings on that
and your client's got a lot of issues from this Ceurt felt on
credibility. I'm not the only Jjudge that founds those issues.
Issues about dissipating estates and the bankruptcy estate
that I was concerned that this stuff could disappear. So that
was my intent.

If that money is stayed with Mr, Stephens in his
trust, then I'd have been more comfortable saying hey, the
meney ain't going anywhere. Mr. Stephens -- Atfoerney Stephens

has it, He's an honorable. Money belng transferred to Nelson

D-02-411537-0 NELSON 0B/18/2013 TRANSCRIPT {SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLG (520} 303-7356
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Trust -— to his trust, I'm worried aboul that, because I think
they could get distributions on that. Other ways to get that
money out, transfer it to family members as he done to Che
other property on that. As I made my findings, getting out
and had the estate thrown. So I'm troubled by that and the
fact that they transferred to the trust. I'm very concerned
NOW .

As far as that going, I'm inclined to grant thelir
motion and make that money pavable within 24 hours. And as
far as that, I'm also would congider if you -- as far as if
you want me to -- my conhcern is for -- for the trust fer their
appeal purposes, their concern that wait a minute, that money
is gone. We give i1t to Ms. Nelscn now, Now you kind of
screwed us all because we can't get it back. But the issue is
other property. They have two. There's other ways we can do
and ought tu make -- there's scme collateral there if it
digappszared over the next two years.

But I think -- there's other ways I could protect
that if it's appropriate, because there is sizable real estate
that could be pledged as collateral if necessary. 5o I think
that there is a remedy. I don't think she’'s going to go and
get rid of all the property in her trust during the pending of
the appeal on that, so I'm not so sure that you couldn't get

that money back,

0-05-411537-0 NELSON 0619/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7366
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2 || assigned by this Court to cover the million dellars and some
3 | change paid to Mg, Nelson so that if you were successful on
4 | appeal, they would have collaterzl. 1 think T could probably
SfHdo a -- bond if I needed to teoc protect that. Thore's a couple
& || options, I think I ¢ould do that, that would sclve the trustc
7 || concern that if they're sucrcessful on appeal, that they'd be
8 able to get the money and property back, So did you want to
9 || address that spegifically, counsel? 2And I'11 have Mr.
10 || Dickerson respond or it doesn't --
11 MR, LUSZECK; I mean, ! discovery --
12 THE COURT: ~~ because I'm inclined to crder that
13 | money released immediately, sco I want te give you a chance --
14 MR, DICKERSON:; I -- T don't belleve though that
15 this is the appropriate time to ¢oc this —-
16 THE COURT: Well --
17 MR, DICKERSON: -—- because they have yeil to file the
18 | appeal,
19 THE COURT: Appeal and the supersedeas bonds and --
20 MR, LUSZECK: Right.
21 THE COURT: -- everything and address 1t at that
229 time,
23 MR. LUSZECK: Well --
24 THE COURT: But --

D-D9-411537-D MELSON 0619/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLO (520) 303-7366

I think there's collateral there that could be

15
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going to give you up to the release by Friday, 5:00 o'clock.
That gives you two days. That way you can try to get
extraordinary relief if necessary. 24 hours is kind of tough,
gives you a chance a talk. I -~ I believe Thailand has
telephones and emails in Thailand I believe they have, so I
imagine that it -- Mr, Nelson can be contacted,

I have sericus concerns with that money being
transferred inte the trust that that money would dissipate,
And that's my concerns on that. If jit's gtill with Mr.
Stephens’ account, I would have frorzen that account, you know,
if I needed to on that, but I'm concerned on that.

So I am going to grant the motlcn, I'm denying the
motion for stay. I'll give you a chance to -- now you can
pursue your extraordinary relief if the supreme court has
deemed appropriate. And I will address any issues at that
time at Lhe supersedeas bonds or otherwise, whatever needs to
he done.

This case has been going on for a long time., I
regspect both parties, I am seriously concerned, Mr. Nelson
has been ¢ontrolling the estate essentlally since day one.
Now he's losing control of the estate. And no disrespect to
him, I expect a lot of problems trying to get payment.
That's why I did lump sums with my findings, because 1 can see

this going on til the world ended to be honest. And I do

0-09-411537-0 NELSON D&M %2013 TRANSCRIFT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REFORTING & TRAMNSCRIPTION, LLC {520) 303-7356

19
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48 hours. The presentatlon of this order. I'm geoing to sign
it today and get it dated. What's the date foday?

THE CLERK: The 1%th,

THE CCOURT: The 1%th. I will initial. Let's get
these filed and get them served, get taken care of now, That
wonld give them twe business days to get it done. I'm denying
the motion for stay as T think this casze ~- let the suprene |
court intervene and do what they need to do as they dsemn
appropriate., This case has been ongoing since 2009 January.
We've had numercous, numerous motions, numercus, numerous
hearingg, And I respect the party's right to litigate, but I
think it's time that it needs to be resolved and it needs to
be off of my desk up to the supreme court and lel them handle
it as they deem appropriate.

I do not believe that the release of those funds put
you at any risk from the trust, because I do believe that Ms.
Nelson has sighificant resources that will -- cculd ke able to
be collateral if - if you need that. And so I don't think
I've identified any wrongdoing on Ms. Nelson that she would
try to get rid of funds and not pay any funds if the supreme
court was indeed overturned it and said she was not entitled
to said funds. And therefore, thet's the basis for the order
of this Court. And then we have another -- did you want %o

deal with this motion we have pending as to --

D-09-411537-D NELSON 08/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REFORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLO (520) 303-7356
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ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and
correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the

above—entitled case to the best of my ability,

of 7 4
Q"”Q’W /Hv:«b‘—x\h
/s/ Adrian N. Medrano
Adrian N. Medraho

P09-911537-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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Qe b e

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ERIC L. NELSON,

CASE NO.: D-09-411537-D
DEPT.NO.: O

Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,
Vs,

LYNITA SUE NELSON, LANA MARTIN, as
Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

R -3 St B W e

[
[—]

Defendant/Counterclaimants.

[y
—

p—
o

LANA MARTIN, Distribution Trustee of the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated

R i e e e i S U S i W SR T L L N WU S S e e

13 May 30, 2001,
14
Crossclaimant,
15
VS.
16
17||LYNITA SUE NELSON, Date of Hearing: 1/2/13
Time of Hearing: 3:00 p.m.
18 Crossdefendant. Department: 9
19
20 AFFIDAVIT OF THE HONORABLE FRANK P. SULLIVAN IN RESPONSE TO THE
21 ELN TRUST'S MOTION TO DISQUALIFY
22 I, FRANK P. SULLIVAN, hereby swear (or affirm) under penalty of perjury, that the
23 |\ following asscrtions are true of my own personal knowledge:

24 1. 1am the judge assigned to case D411537. I serve in Department O of the Eighth
25 Judicial District Court, Family Division.

26

27

28
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. I unequivocally deny all allegations of bias, prejudice, and discrimination made by

ELN Trust in his Motion to Disqualify.

. That the Complaint for Divorce in this matter was filed on May 6, 2009, and, as such,

these proceedings have extended for more than four years.

. That over the preceding four years this matter has seen a plethora of pleadings filed by

both parties, necessitating the issuing of numerous Orders from this Court.

. That this Court has also presided over two trials between the parties, one lasting for

about two weeks and the second trial for approximately three weeks.

. That the Eric L. Nelson Trust (ELN Trust) made their initial appearance in this matter

in or around August 2011 and have been an active participant since that time;
specifically, the ELN Trust fully participated in the second trial, inctuding conducting

extensive Discovery, which began in July 2012 and lasted for about three weeks.

. That on June 6, 2013, this Court issued a Divorce Decree wherein the Court found that

both the ELN Trust and the Lynita §. Nelson Trust (LSN Trust) were established as
self-settled spendthrift trusts and were intended to protect the corpus or principal of the

trusts from the claims of creditors.

. That this Court found that while it could invalidate both Trusts based upon the lack of

Trust formalities, Mr. Nelson’s violation of his fiduciary responsibility as a spouse,
Mr. Nelson’s violation of his fiduciary duties as the Investment Trustee for the LSN
Trust, this Court was not inclined to do so since invalidation of the Trusts could have
serious implications for both parties in that it could expose the assets to the claims of
creditors, thereby, defeating the intent of the parties to ‘supercharge’ the protection of

the assets from creditors.
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9.

10.

1L

12.

13.

That this Court Or.dered Mt. Nelson to pay Ms. Nelson lump sum alimony in the
amount of $800,000, child support arrears in the amount of $87,775 and $144,967 in
attorney’s fees for a total 0of $1,032,742, to be remitted to Ms. Nelson within 30 days
of entry of the Divorce Decree, .

That this Court further Ordered that Mr. Nelson pay the court-appointed expert witness
fees to Larry Bertsch in the amount of $35,258.

That $1,568,000 previously held in a blocked account pursuant to an Order of this
Court was ultimately transferred to the ELN Trust and the Court subsequently directed
that $1,068,000, representing the amounts awarded to Ms. Nelson and owed to Mr.
Bersich, be placed in a blocked interest-bearing account pending the ultimate
resolution of this case, effectively giving the ELN Trust immediate use and access to
the residual $500,000.

That this case is currently pending before the Nevada Supreme Court on the ELN’s
Writ of Prohibition.

That it would appear that the ELN Trust Motion to Disqualify me is not timely filed
pursuant to NRS 1.235 and Towbin Dodge, LLV v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of State
ex rel. Cniy. of Clark, 121 Nev. 251, 112 P.3" 1063 (2005) considering that the ELN
Trust is alleging that this Court rendered certain “bias” decisions and rulings in June,
July, August and October of 2013; yet the Motion to Disqualify was not filed until six

(6) days before the scheduled commencement of the trial as to the Wyoming Downs

propert-y.
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14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

That this Court clearly stated it’s Findings in the Divorce Decree that the Court could
issue a charging order against distributions to be paid to Mr, Nelson by the ELN Trust
to secure the payment of Mr. Nelson’s spousal and child support obligations.

That this Court found that Ms. Nelson owns a 56% interest in the Lindell Plaza
property and has maintained that ownership throughout the pendency of this matter,
and in order to determine what Ms. Nelson was owed, it was necessary to first
determine what income, if any, the property had produced. As such, the production of
the accounting for the Lindell Property was the most efficient way to accomplish this
goal.

That this Court found that there was not enough evidence presented during the divorce
proceedings for this Court to make a ruling as to the Wyoming Downs property, and
subsequently determined that it would be in the interests of justice to treat this property
as an omitted asset under Amie v. Amie, 106 Nev. 541, 796 P.2d 233 (1990), instead of
further delaying the issuance of a Divorce Decree.

That an evidentiary trial regarding this property was scheduled to begin 12/11/13, and,
as such, it is clear that no determinations as to the Wyoming Downs property have
been made and no orders have been entered by this Court as (o the respective property.
That the ELN Trust had changed Distribution Trustees in June 2011, during the
pendency of this matter, without seeking this Court’s approval, and, as such, this Court
was not inclined to grant the ELN Trust Motion for approval to change the
Distribution Trustee at this late stage of the proceedings, and; accordingly, denied

ELN’s Motion and Ms. Nelson’s Counter-Motion to appoint an “Authorized” Trustee.
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19. That this Court has made decisions based on law, equity, fairness and justice and not

because of any bias or prejudice towards the ELN Trust or any party to these

proceedings.

20. That this Court respects this Tribunal and will readily accept the Court’s decision on

this Motion to Disqualify.

DATED this 11th Day of December, 2013.

Public in and for
said Lounty and State.

A §°399 KATHERINE HOUSTON
TRy Am‘mﬂt
Merch 19, 2077 _

TV YYUrT,

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

R

HONORABLE FRANK SULLIVAN
Nevada State Bar No. 1751

Family Division, Department O

601 North Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101-2408
Telephone: (702) 455-1334
Facsimile: (702) 455-1338
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OPPS

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
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Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210
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Attorneys for LYNITA SUE NELSON

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,
V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON, CASE NO. D-09-411537-D

DEPT NO. O
Defendant/Counterclaimant.

Date of Hearing: 1/02/13

Time of Hearing: 3:00 a.m.
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST

dated May 30, 2001, and LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Parties.

LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee of
the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001,

Counterclaimant
and Crossclaimant,

V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC
NELSON,

Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant.
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LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

ERIC L. NELSON, individually and as the
Investment Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001; the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001; LANA MARTIN, as the
current and/or former Distribution Trustee
of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001,

Counterdefendant, and/or
Cross-Defendants, and/or
Third Party Defendants.

I I T i T i g i

DEEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO
MOTION TO DISQUALIFY JUDGE SULLIVAN
COUNTERMOTION FOR A%RNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS
COMES NOW, Defendant, LYNITA SUE NELSON (“Lynita”), by and through
her counsel, ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ., and JOSEF M. KARACSONYT, ESQ.,

of THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP, and respectfully submits for the Court’s

consideration her Opposition to Motion to Disqualify Judge Sullivan, and

Countermotion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (“Opposition and Countermotion”).
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This Opposition and Countermotion is made and based upon the pleadings and
papers on file herein, the Points and Authorities attached hereto, and any other
evidence the Court may adduce at the hearing on this matter.

DATED this _\2?"_ day of December, 2013.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

4da Bar No 000945
JOSEF M. KARACSONY]I, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I. INTRODUCTION

The Motion to Disqualify Judge Sullivan (“Motion”), by the DISTRIBUTION
TRUSTEE of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST (“ELN Trust”), is just the
latest legal maneuver, in a long line of legal maneuvers dating back several years,
directed by Defendant, ERIC L. NELSON (“Eric”),' to attempt to defeat the efficacy
of the legal system, and ensure that his wife of nearly thirty (30) years receives nothing
from this divorce action. The concerns about Judge Sullivan alleged in the Motion are
nothing more than complaints about legal rulings and factual findings entered by Judge
Sullivan. There is absolutely no allegation in the Motion of any objective fact that
would even imply personal bias or prejudice by Judge Sullivan against any of the

parties, or any allegation that Judge Sullivan has made any statement other than

statements (i.e., rulings and findings) made during the court proceeding, that commits

Judge Sullivan to a particular result. Indeed, the Motion is legally and factually
insufficient, and nothing more than an attempt by a vexatious husband to obtain a new
judge and different result other than the result reached by Judge Sullivan after more
than four (4) years of litigation.

It is impossible and unnecessary to detail over four (4) years of litigation in this
Opposition, however, it is respectfully requested that this Court review the Decree of
Divorce entered by Judge Sullivan on June 3, 2013, attached to the ELN Trust’s
Motion as Exhibit “3,” and on file herein, as such Decree contains a detailed history
of this case, the nearly three (3) weeks of trial that were conducted, and the attempts
by Eric throughout the case to deplete and defeat Lynita’s interest in any of the
property acquired by the parties during nearly thirty (30) years of marriage. Lynita
prays that this Court will see the vexatious litigation tactics that have been perpetrated

by Eric and the ELN Trust throughout this divorce action to attempt to starve her out

! Eric and Lynita are collectively referred to herein as the “parties.”
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of this litigation and defeat her pursuit of justice, and will deny the Motion so that this

matter can continue to proceed towards a conclusion.

II.  FACTUAL STATEMENT AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The ELN Trust has provided this Court with an incomplete, conclusory, and
completely self-serving recitation of the facts and procedural history of this matter, in
an attempt to convince the Court that Judge Sullivan’s findings and orders have been
without support. Although disagreement with a judge’s findings and orders do not
férm a basis to disqualify the judge, and are only appropriately addressed through the
appellate and post-trial motion procedures, Lynita is compelled to provide this Court
with a true history of the facts and procedure of this case.

A.  Divorce Proceedings

On May 6, 2009, Eric initiated this divorce action by the filing of his Complaint
for Divorce. Lynita and Eric were married for nearly thirty (30) years and amassed a
substantial amount of wealth (approximately $17,500,000) during their marriage.
Decree of Divorce ("DOD”), pg. 3, 2-3; pg. 47. Five (5) children were born during the
parties’ marriage. DOD, pg. 2, lines 12-16. While Eric became a formidable and
accomplished businessman and investor during the marriage, Lynita gave up pursuit of

a career outside the home to become a stay at home mother to the couple’s five (5)

{ children. DOD, pg. 34, line 25 to pg. 35, line 23.

For six (6) full days in 2010, Eric, individually, and as Trustor and Investment

Trustee® of the ELN Trust, and being represented by James Jimmerson, Esq., one of the

2 The Investment Trustee is the only person authorized by the terms of the ELN Trust
to represent and bind the trust in legal proceedings, and does so to the same extent as any

absolute owner of property could bind himself or herself in such legal proceedings. Section
12.1 of the ELN Trust provides as follows:

12.1 Trustee’s Powers.

The Investment Trustee shall have the following powers, all of which are to be
exercised in a fiduciary capacity:

(h)  To institute, compromise, and defend any actions and proceedings.
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most respected and accomplished attomeys in Nevada, presented evidence to the
Court, including his own testimony, conclusively confirming that all property held in
the name of the ELN Trust, and the LSN Nevada Trust, dated May 30, 2001 (“LSN
Trust”), was at all times during the parties’ nearly 30 year marriage, managed,

controlled, treated, held, and owned by the parties as community/marital property.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A are excerpts of Eric’s 2010 trial testimony from
transcripts on file herein. Portions of said testimony are also quoted and discussed in
the Decree of Divorce. DOD, pg. 6, line 10 to pg. 7, line 23.

Eric also elicited the testimony of the parties” attorney, Jeffrey Burr, Esq. (“Mr.

Burr”), to prove to the Court, as part of his own case-in-chief, that the ELN Trust,

LSN Trust, and purported “Separate Property Agreement” signed by the parties in
1993, were not created for the purposes of dividing the parties’ property in the event
of divorce, but simply for estate planning purposes and asset protection, specifically
protection from outside creditors. Mr. Burr is the same attorney who prepared and
advised the parties with respect to all of said documents. Attached hereto as Exhibit
B are excerpts of Mr. Burr’s 2010 trial testimony from transcripts on file herein. Of
course, the ELN Trust in its Motion wholly ignores the first six (6) days of trial and the
testimony elicited and offered by Eric during such time period, and instead references
only Mr. Burr’s deposition transcript, from a deposition taken by the ELN Trust on
February 22, 2012, in an effort to get Mr. Burr to contradict or “fix” his prior trial
testimony.

Following the sixth day of trial, and while the Court and Lynita were preparing
to reconvene to bring this case to a conclusion, Eric perpetrated one of the most

outrageous abuses of judicial process that could be conceived. Sensing the Court was

(s) The enumeration of certain powers of the Trustee shall not limit his
general powers, subject always to the discharge of his fiduciary
obligations, and being vested with and having all the rights, powers, and
privileges which an absolute owner of the same property would have.
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not going to grant the division of property he sought, Eric reversed course and sought
to erase the past by causing the ELN Trust to become a named party to this action, and
to assert that neither of the parties possessed an interest in any of the property held by
same.

On June 24, 2011, Eric filed his Motion to Join Necessary Party; or in the
Alternative; to Dismiss Claims Against the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust Dated May 30,

2011. In the motion, Eric stated:

As this Court is well aware, Lynita contends that some or all of the assets
owned by the Eric L. Nelson Trust is community property, and as such,
are subject to division in the instant divorce proceeding.
Notwithstanding said contention, }fynita has failed to name the Eric L.
Nelson Trust, [or] the Investment Trustee . . . . to the instant litigation.
Pg. 3, lines 17-22. These statements were made despite the following indisputable
facts: (1) Lynita had not yet begun the presentation of her case; (2) the Investment
Trustee of the ELN Trust, Eric, was a party to this action from day one when he filed

his Complaint for Divorce initiating this action; and (3) during six (6) days of trial Eric

I contended, elicited testimony, presented evidence to support, and testified himself that

all of the assets owned by the ELN Trust and LSN Trust were community property and

subject to division in this action. See Exhibit A; DOD, pg. 6, line 10 to pg. 7, line 23.

On August 9, 2011, a Stipulation and Order was entered to join the ELN and
LSN Trusts as parties to this action. On August 19, 2011, the ELN Trust voluntarily
appeared in this action by filing an Answer to [Eric’s] Complaint for Divorce and
Counterclaims and Crossclaim, submitting to the jurisdiction of the Court, asserting
causes of action against Lynita, and requesting affirmative relief. Specifically, the ELN
Trust requested a decision as to the status of its (the parties’) property,” and monetary
damages. Nonetheless, when Lynita subsequently asserted causes of action against the

ELN Trust, it (like Eric) reversed course, and baselessly argued that the Court did not

* Not coincidentally, despite the fact that the ELN Trust sought a declaratory judgment
that neither of the parties have any interest in the property held by the ELN Trust, which if
true would leave Eric penniless and at the mercy of the ELN Trust for any support, Eric joined
lock, stock, and barrel, in the positions taken by the ELN Trust throughout this action.
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have jurisdiction over the trust and its affairs, despite the fact that it was the ELN
Trust that had invoked the jurisdiction of the Court.

After the ELN Trust and LSN Trust were joined to this action an additional year
of discovery ensued for all parties to prepare their case. The Court also appointed a
neutral third-party expert to trace and document the parties” assets and liabilities.

During the course of July and August, 2012, nine (9) additional days of trial
were conducted, seven (7) of which were devoted to trust issues and necessitated solely
because of Eric’s unjustifiable change of positions in this action. Those seven (7) days
of trial did nothing to support Eric’s change of position, and instead confirmed what
Eric represented to the Court for the first two (2) years of litigation, that at all times
during the parties’ marriage, all property held by the ELN Trust, LSN Trust, or any
other trust, was managed, controlled, treated, held, and owned by the parties as
community/marital property.

On June 3, 2013, following fifteen (15) days of trial spanning two (2) years, the
Court entered its Decree of Divorce. In addition to the findings referenced above, the
Court made, in part, the following additional findings concerning the parties and the
ELN and LSN Trusts in its fifty (50) page Decree:

(1)  In 2001 Eric and Lyhita, upon the advice and counsel of Jeffrey Burr,
Esq., created the ELN Trust and LSN Trust. DOD, pg. 4, lines 20-23. The parties’

20 H testimony “clearly established that the intent of creating the spendthrift trusts was to

21
22
23
24

26
27
28

||

provide maximum protection from creditors and was not intended to be a property
settlement in the event that the parties divorced.” DOD, pg. 5, lines 16-18. In
addition, the testimony of Jeffrey Burr, Esq., the attorney who prepared the trusts,

corroborated the fact that the purpose of creating the trusts was to “supercharge” the

25 || protection afforded against creditors and was not intended to be a property settlement

between spouses. DOD, pg. 7, lines 24-27.

(2)  Attorney Burr suggested that the parties periodically level off or equalize

the property in the ELN and LSN Trusts. DOD, pg. 8, lines 2-4. The parties intended
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to maintain an equal allocation of assets between the trusts as reflected in Minutes
from a Trust Meeting, dated November 20, 2004, wherein it was stated that property
was transferred from the ELN Trust to the LSN Trust, in part, to “level off the trusts.”
DOD, pg. 8, lines 9-16.

(3) That on “numerous occasions, [Eric] requested that [Lynita] sign
documentation relating to the transfer of LSN Trust assets to the ELN Trust.” DOD,
pg. 9, lines 2-4. Lynita “rarely questioned [Eric] regarding these matters for two
reasons: (1) [Eric] would become upset if she asked questions due to his controlling
nature concerning business and property transactions; and (2) she trusted him as her
husband and adviser.” DOD, pg. 9, lines 4-8. “[T]hat [Eric’s] behavior during the
course of {the] extended proceedings. .. corroborate[d] [Lynita’s} assertions that [Eric]
exercises unquestioned authority over property and other business ventures and loses
control of his emotions when someone questions his authority.” DOD, pg. 9, lines 9-
12.

(4)  That Eric violated his fiduciary duties to Lynita as both Investment
Trustee and Trust Adviser to the LSN Trust, and as Lynita’s husband, by failing to
discuss the factors relating to the numerous transfers from the LSN Trust to the ELN
Trust. DOD, pg. 9, lines 14-17; pg. 11, lines 22-27; pg. 12, lines 2-4. Eric was able to
exercise control over properties in the LSN Trust and ELN Trusts, and freely transfer
same, under the “guise that [such] property transfers benefitted the community,” and
because he “assured [Lynita] that he managed the assets in the trusts for the benefit
of the community.” DOD, pg. 15, lines 4-9; pg. 14, lines 19-21. That Lynita “was not
advised [by Eric] that she was not entitled to the benefit of assets transferred from the
LSN Trust to the ELN Trust under the direction of [Eric] until the ELN Trust joined
the case as a necessary party.” DOD, pg. 14, line 27 to pg. 15, line 3.

Page 9 of 26

RAPP1290




O cC ~J &) 1 SE w No p—t

(\No) ) DS [\ No [\ N ) o — y— — p— — et p—d p— — j—
o ~N N Ll s W N~ O Y 0Ny W = O

(5)  That prior to the Parties’ divorce action, millions of dollars worth of
properties were taken by Eric from the LSN Trust and transferred to the ELN Trust
without compensation, and the retention of same by Eric and the ELN Trust would

result in unjust enrichment and injustice. DOD, pgs. 12-23.

(6)  That Eric failed to follow the formalities of the ELN and LSN Trusts, and
had complete and unfettered access to the properties contained within such trusts:

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the formalities outlined within the
ELN Trust and the LSN Trust were not sufficiently and consistently
followed. Axticle eleven, section 11.3, of both trusts provides that
Attorney Burr, as Trust Consultant, shall have the right to remove any
trustee, with the exception of [Eric] and [Lynita], provided that he gives
the current trustee ten days written notice of their removal.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Attorney Burr testified that on
February 22, 2007, at [Eric’s] request, he removed [Eric’s] employee,
Lana Martin, as Distribution Trustee of both the ELN Trust and tlge SN
Trust and apbpointed [Eric’s] sister, Nola Harber, as the new Distribution
Trustee for both trusts. Attorney Burr further testified that he did not
provide Ms. Martin with ten days notice as specified in the trusts
documents. In June 2011, at [Eric’s] request, Attorney Burr once again
replaced the Distribution Trustee for the ELN Trust, without providing
ten days notice, by replacing Nola Harber with Lana Martin.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the ELN Trust and LSN Trust
documents require that a meeting of the majority of the trustees be held
prior to any distribution of trust income or grincipal. During the
meetings, the trustees must discuss the advisability of making
distributions to the ELN Trust Trustor, [Eric], and the LSN Trust
Trustor, [Lynita]. At that time, a vote must take place and the
Distribution Trustee must provide an affirmative vote.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the testimony of Lana Martin and
Nola Harber indicate that neither one of them ever entered a negative
vote in regards to distributions to [Eric] or [Lynita]. The testimony also
reflected that neither one of them ever advised [Eric] or [Lynita] on the
feasibility of making such distributions.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while Ms. Martin and Ms. Harber
testified that they had the authority to approve or deny the distributions
to [Eric] under the ELN Trust and to [ Lynita] under the LSN Trust, that
despite literally hundreds of distributions requests, they never denied
even a single distribution request. Therefore, Ms. Martin and Ms. Harber
were no more than a “rubber stamp” for [Eric’s] directions as to
distributions to [Eric] and [Lynita].

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the ELN Trust produced
multiple Minutes of alleged meetings; this Court seriously questions the
authenticity of the submitted documentation. Specifically, several of the
Minutes were unsigned, the authenticity of the signatures reflected on
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some of the Minutes were questionable, and several of the Minutes
reflected that the meetings were held at the office of Attorney Burr while

the testimony clearly established that no such meetings ever occurred at
his law office.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Daniel Gerety testified that he
had to make numerous adjustments to correct bookkeeping and
accounting errors regarding the two trusts by utilizing the entries “Due
To” and “Due From” to correctly reflect the assets in each trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the numerous bookkeeping and
accounting errors, in conjunction with the corresponding need to correct
the entries to accurately reflect the assets in each trust, raises serious
questions as to whether the assets of each trust were truly being
separately maintained and managed.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the lack of formalities further
emphasizes the amount of control that [Eric] exerted over both trusts and

that he did indeed manage both trust[s] for the benefit of the
community.

DOD, pg. 27, line 15 to pg. 29, line 12. The Court essentially found that the ELN and
LSN Trusts were Eric’s alter egos.

(7)  That Eric lacked credibility, and during the divorce proceedings: (a)
“failed to answer questions in a direct and forthright manner,” (b) violated the Court’s
injunction; and (c) “misstated the ELN Trust’s financial position, or at the very least
was less than truthful with [the Court].” In fact, the Court referenced Eric’s lack of
credibility, violation of Orders, and deplorable behavior during the divorce action
throughout its Decree, and even included a whole subsection concerning his lack of
credibility. Such findings warrant repeating herein:

Credibility

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during the first six days of trial

held in 2010, [Eric] repeatedly testified that the actions he toolk were on

behalf of the community and that the ELN Trust and LSN Trust were

part of the community.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during the last several weeks of

trial in 2012, [Eric] changed his testimony to reflect his new position that

the ELN Trust and the LSN Trust were not part of the community and
were the separate property of the respective trusts.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that [Eric] failed to answer questions
in a direct and forthright manner throughout the course of the
proceedings.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that [Eric] argued in the Motion to
Dissolve Injunction requesting the release of 35111,568,000, which the
Court had ordered be placed in a blocked trust account and enjoined
from being released, that the ELN Trust “has an opportunity to purchase
Wyoming Racing, LLC, a horse racin% track and RV park for
$440,000.00; however the ELN Trust will be unable to do so unless the
Injunction is dissolved.”

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that despite the Court’s denial of the
request to dissolve the injunction, the ELN Trust via Dynasty
Development Group, LLC, completed the transaction and reacquired
Wyoming Downs at a purchase price of $440,000. The completion of
the purchase, without the dissolution of the injunction, evidenced that
[Eric] misstated the ELN Trust’s financial position, or at the very least
was less than truthful with this Court.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that it should be noted that in an
attempt to circumvent this Court’s injunction regarding the $1,568,000,
[Eric] had a Bankruptcy Petition filed in the United States Bankruptcy
Court, District of Nevada, on behalf of the Dynasty Development Group,
LLC, requesting that the $1,568,000 be deemed property of the Debtor’s
bankruptcy estate; however, the bankruptcy court found that this Court
had exclusive jurisdiction over the $1,568,000 and could make whatever
disposition of the funds without regard to the Debtor’s bankruptcy

filing.*

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that based upon [Eric’s] change of
testimony under oath, his repeated failure to answer questions in a c%irect
and forthright manner, his less than candid testimony regarding the
necessity of dissolving the injunction in order to purchase the Wyoming
race track and RV park, and his attempt to circumvent the injunction
issued by this Court clearly reflect that 1EEric] lacks credibility.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the United States Bankruptcy
Judge, Neil P. Olack, of the Southern District of Mississippi, cited similar
concerns as to [ Eric’s] credibility during a bankruptcy proceeding held on
June 24, 2011, regarding ]%ynasty Development Group, LLC.

Specifically, Judge Olack noted that as a witness, [Eric] simply lacked
credibility in that he failed to provide direct answers to straight forward
?uestions, which gave the clear impression that he was being less than
orthcoming in his responses.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Bankru}ﬁtcy Judge Olack found
that the evidence showed that [Eric| depleted the assets of Dynasty on
the eve of its bankruptcy filing in three separate transfers, and,
subsequently, dismissed the Bankruptcy Petition.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that [Eric’s] behavior and conduct
during the course of these proceedings has been deplorable. This Court
has observed [Eric| angrily bursting from the courtroom following
hearings.

* Emphasis added.,
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that [Eric] has repeatedly exhibited

inaf)propriate conduct towards opposing counsel, Mr. Dickerson,

uding, cursing at him, leaving vulgar voice messages on his office
phone and challenging him to a fight in the parking lot of his office.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that [Eric’s] deplorable behavior also

included an open and deliberate violation of the Joint Preliminary

Injunction that has been in place since May 18, 2009.

DOD, pg. 23, line 9 to pg. 25, line 16. In fact, the Court also found that Eric’s
purported expert witness, Daniel Gerety (with whom Eric had maintained a financially
beneficial relationship dating back to 1998), and Eric’s employee, Rochelle McGowan,
lacked credibility. DOD pg. 26, line 27 to pg. 27, line 13.

(8)  That while Eric and the ELN Trust claimed they were subject to
numerous liabilities in an effort to reduce the value of property adjudicated by the
Court, almost none of such liabilities existed. DOD, pg. 29, line 19 to pg. 30, line 20.
In fact, the Court appointed a neutral expert, Larry Bertsch, to independently trace and

value the parties’ property held in the ELN and LSN Trusts, and Mr. Bertsch could not

L5 || confirm any of the indebtedness claimed by Eric and the ELN Trust. DOD, pg. 30,
16 " lines 2-9.
17 Based upon the findings set forth in the Decree and above, the Court Ordered
18 | an approximately equal division of the properties held in the ELN and LSN Trusts. As
19 || pointed out in the ELN Trust’s Motion, the Court’s division of property was
20 || accomplished by Ordering properties transferred between the two (2) trusts, and
21 || imposing constructive trusts, without specifically invalidating the trusts. However, the
22 " Court was extremely clear that it also found that the ELN and LSN Trusts were sham
23 || trusts and essentially Eric’s alter egos (based on the findings cited above), and that it
24 || would have been wholly justified in invalidating such trusts:
25 THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the Court could invalidate

both Trusts based upon the lack of Trust formalities, this Court is not
26 inclined to do so since invalidation of the Trusts could have serious

implications for both parties in that it could expose the assets to the
27 claims of creditors, thereby, defeating the intent of the parties to

“supercharge” the protection of assets from creditors.
28

" DOD, pg. 29, lines 13-18.
Page 13 of 26
RAPP1294




O 0 NN ke W N

po—
-

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the Court could invalidate
the Trusts based upon M. Nelson’s testimony as to the community
nature of the assets%eld by each Trust, the breach of his fiduciary duty
as a spouse, the breach of his fiduciary duty as an investment trustee, the
lack of Trust formalities, under the principles of constructive trust, and
under the doctrine of unjust enrichment, the Court feels that keeping the
Trusts intact, while transferring assets between the Trusts to “level otf the
Trusts”, would effectuate the parties clear intentions of “supercharging”

the protection of the assets from creditors while ensuring that the
respective values of the Trusts remained equal.

DOD, pg. 44, lines 9-17.

The only reason the Court did not invalidate the trusts was that it believed it
could afford justice to the parties by transferring property between each trust to
accomplish an equal division of property, and award Lynita lump sum alimony, child
support arrears and attorneys’ fees from $1,568,000 that was enjoined in the trust
account of Eric’s former counsel, David Stephens, Esq. Said monies were first enjoined
by the Court at a hearing held April 4, 2011, and remained in said account until
sometime shortly after the Court issued its Decree on June 3, 2013. Lynita’s counsel
surmises that the Court did not invalidate the trusts because it was concerned, and
justifiably so, about the numerous unsubstantiated liabilities Eric claimed to be owed
to his family members, and the possibility that Eric would have such family members
initiate lawsuits against Lynita as part of his continued course of harassment.
Undoubtedly, and as Lynita pointed out in response to the two (2) petitions for writ
relief the ELN Trust (Eric) filed with the Nevada Supreme Court (still pending), if the
Court did not believe it could afford the relief it Ordered in the Decree without
invalidating the trusts, it would have simply invalidated the trusts based on its findings
warranting same, rather than changing the relief it afforded to the parties. The Court
has since confirmed such position on the record, which the ELN Trust complains
about, even though the Court’s position was abundantly clear in the Decree.

In addition to dividing the parties’ property, the Court in its Decree also

awarded Lynita $800,000 for lump sum alimony, $87,775 in child support arrears and

$144,967 for attorneys’ fees and costs. DOD, pgs. 48-49. Regarding the lump sum
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alimony, the Court found that same was necessary, in part, as a result of Eric’s actions
during the course of litigation, which clearly evidenced that absent a lump sum award
Eric would possibly “liquidate, interfere, hypothecate or give away assets” to avoid
alimony. DOD, pg. 39, lines 11-16. The attorneys’ fees that were awarded to Lynita
resulted from Eric’s and ELN Trust’s unreasonable and unnecessary extension and
protraction of litigation, as set forth above. DOD, pg. 41, lines 21 to pg. 43, line 8; pg.
48, line 22 to page 49, line 3. Finally, the District Court Ordered the ELN Trust to
pay the remaining balance of $35,258 owed to Mr. Bertsch.

To ensure that Lynita received her alimony, child support arrears and attorneys’
fees, and that Mr. Bertsch was paid his remaining balance, the Court Ordered that such
payments be made by the ELN Trust within thirty (30) days from the date of Decree
from the monies previously enjoined in Mr. Stephens’ trust account. DOD, pg. 48, line
10 to pg. 49, line 3. To allow the ELN Trust and Eric to access the $1,568,000 and
make the aforementioned payments, the Court also dissolved the prior injunction
freezing the $1,568,000 in Mr. Stephens’ trust account. DOD, pg. 48, lines 6-9. The
Court Ordered that the remaining approximately $500,000 from the previously
enjoined funds would be distributed to Eric within thirty (30) days. DOD, pg. 49, lines
4-9.

In addition to the summary contained above, and because the ELN Trust has
presented its Motion in such a way as to lead this Court to believe that Judge Sullivan
has ruled solely in Lynita’s favor on every issue or request, which is simply not true, it
must be noted that the Court entered several Orders adverse to Lynita, and denied
numerous requests for relief made by Lynita, throughout the divorce action. From the
time of the filing of Eric’s Complaint for Divorce on May 6, 2009, through entry of the
Court’s Decree of Divorce on June 3, 2013, Lynita was not awarded any temporary
maintenance, alimony, or child support by the Court, despite multiple requests for
same and despite the fact that Eric maintained control over the vast majority of the

parties’ income producing properties. See Order filed May 25, 2011, pg. 3, lines 9-11;
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see also Order filed June 9, 2011, pg. 2, lines 27-28. Once the ELN Trust intervened
in this matter, Lynita filed an Amended Answer, Counterclaim, and Third-Party
Complaint naming additional parties and asserting additional causes of action. The
ELN Trust filed a request to dismiss, and the Court dismissed numerous causes of
action asserted by Lynita and numerous parties named by Lynita. See Order from
February 23, 2013 Hearing Partially Granting ELN Trust’s Motion to Dismiss Third-
Party Complaint Without Prejudice, filed August 29, 2012. Lynita also made two (2)
requests to appoint a receiver over the ELN Trust based on Eric’s actions of depleting
the parties’ property — the first request was made prior to entry of the Decree of
Divorce and the second request after — both of which were denied. See Order from
April 10, 2012 Hearing and Injunction, filed August 29, 2012; see also Injunctions
from September 4, 2013 Hearing, filed September 6, 2013. Prior to the 2012
continuation of trial, Lynita requested additional tracings from the Court appointed
forensic accountant, Mr. Bertsch, which was denied. See Findings of Fact and Order,
filed July 1.1, 2012. Since entry of the Decree of Divorce, the Court has also denied
a request by Lynita to have an appropriate party appointed as Distribution Trustee of
the ELN Trust in accordance with the Trust’s terms. See Transcript from October 21,
2013 hearing, attached to the ELN Trust’s Motion as Exhibit “7,” and on file herein,
pg. 17,lines 18-20 (“So to restate, I'm denying the motion and the countermotion for
me to specifically appoint distribution trustee or to substitute parties.”).

B. Post-Judgment Proceedings

As outlined below, following entry of the Court’s Decree, Lynita filed a number
of motions in an attempt to enforce the Decree, and a motion to adjudicate the
Wyoming Downs property not divided by the Decree. Such attempts to enforce the
Decree have been mostly unsuccessful to date, as Eric and the ELN Trust have
attempted every type of legal maneuver to prevent enforcement of the Decree and
conclusion of this matter. In fact, the only relief that has been granted to Lynita are

injunctions over all the property awarded to Lynita in the Decree pending a decision
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from the Supreme Court on the writ applications filed by the ELN Trust, payment to
Lynita of her share of the net income received from the parties’ jointly owned Lindell
Professional Plaza, and required accountings of all the income generated from the
property awarded to Lynita. See Injunctions from September 4, 2013 Hearing, filed
September 6, 2013; see also Order from September 4, 2013 Hearing Regarding
Payment of Lindell Professional Plaza Income, filed September 25, 2013,

Based on the history of the underlying litigation, and Eric’s never ending
attempts to defeat the efficacy of Court Orders and take advantage of the legal system,
Lynita and her counsel knew that after entry of the Decree, Eric and the ELN Trust
would immediately accept the benefit of the injunction dissolved by the Court’s Decree
by withdrawing the $1,568,000 previously enjoined in Mr. Stephens’ trust account,
and then refuse to pay Lynita the portion of said funds awarded to her in the Decree.
Accordingly, on June 3, 2013, the day the Decree was issued, Lynita filed her Ex-Parte
Application for Direct Release of Funds to Defendant to Prevent Likely Irreparable
Harm and Manifest Injustice (“Ex-Parte Application”). The Court denied Lynita’s Ex-
Parte Application, affording the ELN Trust and Eric an opportunity to be heard on the
request. Accordingly, on June 5, 2013 (only two (2) days after the Decree was
entered), Lynita filed her Motion for Immediate Payment of Funds Belonging to
Defendant Pursuant to Court’s Decree to Ensure Receipt of Same, and for Immediate
Payment of Court Appointed Expert (“Motion for Payment”).

In her Motion for Payment, Lynita requested that the Court Order that the
alimony, child support arrears, and attorneys’ fees totaling $1,032,742, and Mx.
Bertsch’s fees, be paid directly from the $1,568,000 held in Mr. Stephens’ account, or
in the alternative, if the $1,568,000 had already been withdrawn and transferred to
Eric and the ELN Trust, that Lynita’s and Mr. Bertsch’s portions of same be paid to
them immediately. Lynita’s counsel submitted that if the Court did not direct the
$1,032,742 which was ordered to be paid to Lynita within 30 days to be paid to her

immediately, “it is likely that Eric and the ELN Trust will attempt to withhold or
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dissipate the same, thereby attempting to defeat the Court’s Orders and intent and
further delaying Lynita’s desperately needed monies.” Motion for Payment, pg. 6, lines
21-24.

On June 19, 2013, the Court held a hearing on Lynita’s Motion for Payment.

During the hearing, the Court confirmed that its intent in Ordering in the Decree that

| the $1,568,000 be used to pay Lynita’s alimony, child support, and attorneys’ fees was

to ensure payment of such obligations directly to Lynita, as a direct distribution from
the enjoined funds. Transcript from June 19, 2013 Heaxing, filed June 27, 2013, pg.
7, lines 6.10. It was never the Court’s intent for the ELN Trust to take the enjoined
funds, or for Lynita not to have access to the monies immediately. Accordingly, the
Court granted Lynita’s Motion for Payment, and Ordered the ELN Trust and/or Eric
to pay Lynita and Mr. Bertsch within forty-eight (48) hours. See Order for Payment
of Funds Pursuant to June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce, filed June 19, 2013.

Before the forty-eight (48) hours expired, Nola Harber, as purported
Distribution Trustee of the ELN Trust, filed a Petition for Writ of Prohibition, and a
Motion for Stay in the Nevada Supreme Court. Interestingly, the Distribution Trustee
for the ELN Trust at all times during the divorce proceedings was Lana Martin. It was
not until the June 19, 2013 hearing, that it was mentioned for the very first time by
Ms. Martin’s counsel that the Distribution Trustee of the ELN Trust may have
changed: “Secondly, it’s my understanding Lana Martin has resigned as distribution
trustee for health reasons and Nola Harber is the current distribution trustee.”
Transcript June 19, 2013 Hearing, pg. 18, lines 9-11. |

It should be noted that at the June 19, 2013 hearing, counsel for the ELN Trust
argued to the Court that the monies awarded to Lynita could not be transferred by the
Distribution Trustee without the approval of Eric - who was out of the country.

Transcript June 19, 2013 Hearing, pg. 17, lines 10-12.° This argument was advanced

> While Lynita remained in Las Vegas with no monies to support herself, immediately
after withdrawing the $1,568,000, Eric took three (3) of the parties’ five (5) children on a
multi-week vacation to Thailand, as discussed at the June 19, 2013 Hearing. Transcript June
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to the Court even though Eric had specifically delegated his ability to “institute,
compromise, and defend any actions and proceedings” for the ELN Trust to Lana
Martin because of an alleged conflict of interest (as detailed in the Decree).

Immediately following the June 19, 2013 Hearing, the ELN Trust filed its first
Application for Writ of Prohibition to the Nevada Supreme Court, and a request for
emergency stay, to prevent or delay Lynita’s receipt of the monies awarded to her in
the Decree. The Nevada Supreme Court issued a stay, and thereafter, Lynita requested
that the Court enjoin the monies awarded to her in the Decree pending a decision by
the Supreme Court. The requested injunction was granted, and has never been
challenged by the ELN Trust with the Nevada Supreme Court. See Injunctions from
September 4, 2013 Hearing, filed September 6, 2013

Following entry of the Court’s Decree, Lynita also sent letters to the tenants of
the real properties awarded to her asking them to begin forwarding their rental
payments to her in accordance with the Decree. After Lynita’s letter was sent, Eric sent
a responsive letter (personally signed by him) to the tenants asking them to disregard
Lynita’s letter, in violation of the Decree:

In response to a letter you may have received about a change of landlord,

please continue to make payments to Banone, LLC in the manner in

which you have always paid in the_Fast. BANONE, LLC is still owner of

record on your property and will continue to receive and keep an

accounting of such payments.

If Jou have any questions, please contact Eric Nelson directly at 702-682-

8918 or via e-mail at ericnelson59@gmail.com
The foregoing facts were outlined and attested to in Lynita’s Ex Parte Application for
Order to Show Cause, etc.. and Motion for a Finding of Contempt, for Implementation
of the Penalties of Contempt, for Fees and Costs, and for Other Related Relief, filed
July 10, 2013.

On July 9, 2013, the ELN Trust filed a second Petition for Writ of Prohibition

and Motion for Emergency Stay with the Nevada Supreme Court challenging the award

19, 2013 Hearing, pg. 8, lines 22-24.
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of properties to Lynita in the Decree, and requesting a stay of payments to Lynita in
accordance therewith. Thereafter, Lynita requested, and the Court Ordered that the
ELN Trust be “enjoined from, and shall not, encumber, sell, dispose of, liquidate,
pledge as security, or make any other disposition of the {] assets awarded to Lynita, in
whole or in part, in the Court’s Decree of Divorce.” Injunctions from September 4,
2013 Hearing, filed September 6, 2013, pg. 4, lines 4-7. The Court also Ordered the
ELN Trust remove any leverage from the properties awarded to Lynita since entry of
the Decree, because in a showing of complete bad faith, Eric represented that he had
already leveraged some of said properties. Injunctions from September 4, 2013
Hearing, filed September 6, 2013, pg. 4, lines 23-26.

Finally, on June 7, 2013, after entry of the Decree, Lynita filed her Motion to
Amend or Alter Judgment, for Declaratory and Related Relief, requesting, in part, that
the Court equally divide the Wyoming Downs property not adjudicated in the Decree.
Specifically, in the Decree the Court found that it did not have sufficient information
regarding the Wyoming Downs property (purchased during the course of the divorce
action in violation of the Joint Preliminary Injunction), and could not make any
decisions or findings concerning same. DOD, pg. 45, line 23 to pg. 46, line 3. An
evidentiary hearing regarding Wyoming Downs was scheduled for December 11, 2013,
however, through the instant Motion, Eric and the ELN Trust were able to delay same;
the Court vacated the evidentiary hearing until a decision on the instant Motion is
rendered.

The Orders entered by the Court since entry of the Decree of Divorce have been
nothing more than Orders attempting to enforce the Decree, or to prevent the sale,
liquidation, or dissipation of the assets awarded to Lynita pending a decision by the
Supreme Court. Contrary to the ELN Trust’s assertions, such Orders have all been

made in response to requests made by Lynita and not on the Court’s own volition as
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1 || represented.® As set forth above, and as reflected by the docket, Lynita has filed several

motions since the Decree was entered attempting to enforce her rights under same.

Certainly there has been nothing improper about the Court’s Orders, but since Eric is
apparently unhappy with the Court’s attempts to enforce its Orders and preserve the
property that was awarded to Lynita pending a decision from the Supreme Court, the
ELN Trust has improperly challenged such Orders through its instant Motion.

Certainly if the ELN Trust or Eric believe that the Court has violated the Supreme
Court’s stay, or made erroneous legal rulings, they could have addressed such concerns
in the Supreme Court. To date, no papers have been filed with the Supreme Court
alleging that the Court violated the Supreme Court’s stay. Instead, the ELN Trust and
Eric have decided to malke such allegations to this Court in an attempt to convince this

Court that Judge Sullivan is biased.

C.  Judge Sullivan’s Affidavit

On December 11, 2013, Judge Sullivan filed his Affidavit in Response to the
ELN Trust’s Motion to Disqualify (“Affidavit”). In the Affidavit, Judge Sullivan
“unequivocally den[ied] all allegations of bias, prejudice, and discrimination made by
the ELN Trust” in its Motion. Affidavit, T 2. As confirmed by Judge Sullivan
throughout his Affidavit, his rulings and decisions have been “based on law, equity,
fairness and justice and not because of any bias or prejudice towards the ELN Trust or

any party to these proceedings.” See generally Affidavit, and 1 19.
III. LEGAL ANALYSIS

A.  The ELN Trust’s Motion To Disqualify Is Untimely And Legally Insufficient

As pointed out by Judge Sullivan in his Affidavit, the Motion filed by the ELN

Trust is untimely. NRS 1.235 provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

® Tt must be pointed out that even if the Court had entered such Orders on its own
accord, it certainly had the authority to do so. NRS 125.240 authorizes the court to enter any
order “as it deems necessary” to enforce the “final judgment and any order made before or after
judgment.” Additionally, it is well settled that the Court has inherent authority to protect the
dignity and decency of its proceedings, and to enforce its decrees. See, e.g., Halverson v.
Hardcastle, 123 Nev. 29, 163 P.3d 428, 440 (2007).
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1. Any party to an action or proceeding pending in any court other than
the Supreme Court, who seeks to disqualify a judge for actual or implied
bias or prejudice must file an affidavit specitying the facts upon WhiCE the
disqualification is sought. The affidavit of a party represented by an
attorney must be accompanied by a certificate of the attorney of record
that the affidavit is filed in good faith and not interposed for delay.

Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 3, the affidavit must
be filed:

(a) Not less than 20 days before the date set for trial or hearing of
the case; or

(b) Not less than 3 days before the date set for the hearing of any
pretrial matter.
In Towbin Dodge, LLC v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Ct., 121 Nev. 251, 112 P.3d 1063, 1070
(2005), the Nevada Supreme Court held that an affidavit to disqualify a judge could
be filed after the time period provided in NRS 1.235(1) “if new grounds for a judge’s
disqualification are discovered after the time limits in NRS 1.235(1) have passed.”

However, a party is required to file the request to disqualify “as soon as possible after

becoming aware of the new information.” Id. In Towbin, the affidavit was filed the day
after the party moving for disqualification discovered grounds for same. Here, the ELN
Trust filed its Motion on December 3, 2013, approximately forty-two (42) days after
the last hearing in this matter on October 21, 2013. Additionally, most of the rulings,
findings and statements that the ELN Trust alleges form the basis for its request
occurred at hearings conducted on June 19, 2013 (over five (5) months prior to the
Motion), July 22, 2013 (over four (4) months prior to the filing of the Motion), August
1, 2013 (over four (4) months prior to the filing of the Motion), and September 5,
2013 (almost three (3) months prior to the filing of the Motion). Indeed, almost every
one of the statements and rulings made at the October 21, 2013 hearing, were already
stated at the prior hearings. Accordingly, it is clear that the ELN Trust did not file its
Motion in a timely manner, and “as soon as possible” after allegedly discovering
grounds for disqualification.

Additionally, the ELN Trust did not file an affidavit or certificate of attorney in

support of its Motion as required by NRS 1.235. Even where grounds exist to file a
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request to disqualify outside the time periods provided in NRS 1.235(1), the
procedures established by NRS 1.235 must still be applied to ensure that the request
is maintained in good faith and not to delay, and is supported by a sworn statement.
Therefore, this Court should deny the Motion for failure to comply with NRS 1.235.

B.  There Is No Basis For Disqualification, And Disqualification Has Only Been
" Sought In Order To Obtain A Different Judge And Different Result

Even if the ELN Trust’s Motion was timely, and included the required affidavit
and certification of counsel, the facts alleged in the Motion are completely insufficient,
as a matter of law, to warrant disqualification. All of the alleged facts which the ELN
Trust asserts evidence prejudice and bias constitute legal and factual statements,
discussions, and decisions by the Court. The Nevada Supreme Court has specifically

| held that such facts cannot form a basis for disqualification:
This court gives substantial weight to a judge’s decision not to recuse
herself and will not overturn such a decision absent a clear abuse of
discretion. [Citations omitted]. Ajudge is presumed to be unbiased, and
“the burden is on the party asserting the challenge to establish sufficient
factual grounds warranting disqualif%cation. " [Citation omitted]. Ajudge
cannot preside over an action or proceeding if he or she is biased or
prejudiced against one of the parties to the action. NRS 1.230(1). To
disqualify a judge based on personal bias, the moving party must
allege bias that “stems from an extrajudicial source and results in an
" opinion on the merits on some basis other than what the judge

learned from his participation in the case.” In re Petition to Recall
Dunleavy, 104 Nev. 784, 790, 769 P.2d 1271, 1275 (1988) (%uoting
United States v. Bencke, 449 F. 2d 1259, 1260-61 (8™ Cir. 1971)).

“Where the challenge fails to allege legally cognizable grounds
supporting a reasonable inference of bias or prejudice,” a court
should summarily dismiss a motion to disqualill')y a judge. [Citation
omitted].

Rivero v. Rivero, 125 Nev. 410, 216 P.3d 213, 233 (2009) (emphasis added). The
Motion filed by the ELN Trust does not make a single allegation of bias stemming from
| an “extrajudicial source” as required by the holding in Rivero. Accordingly, the Motion
must be denied.

While no further analysis is necessary, several other points deserve brief
discussion. First, all of the statements and rulings complained about by the ELN Trust

were warranted under the law. For example, the ELN Trust complains that Judge
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Sullivan “violate[d] Nevada case law” by deciding to treat the Wyoming Downs
property as an omitted asset even though it was known about during the divorce
action, and by deciding to conduct an evidentiary hearing to adjudicate each party’s
rights with respect to same. NRS 125.150(1)(b) requires the Court to equally divide
any community property unless compelling reasons exist for an unequal division, which
reasons must be set forth in writing.

In Blanco v. Blanco, 129 Nev. __,  P.3d __ (Adv. Op. No. 77, October 31,
2013), the Nevada Supreme Court again confirmed that all community property must
be divided in accordance with NRS 125.150(1)(b), regardless of other facts or
circumstances. There, the trial court had struck a wife’s pleading as a sanction after
numerous discovery violations, and ordered that a “case-resolving default be entered
that was consistent with prior orders and [husband’s] counterclaim.” Id. The district
court clerk entered default, and husband was granted a default decree of divorce by
summary disposition without a prove-up or evidentiary hearing. Id.

The wife appealed, arguing in part that the case concluding sanction was too
harsh, or in the alternative, that the trial court should have at least conducted a prove-
up hearing to take evidence on the value of the parties’ property. The Supreme Court
held that case-concluding sanctions are permissible in divorce actions on claims other
than child custody and child support, but that property must be divided in accordance
with NRS 125.150(1)(b), even if default has been entered against a party. Id.
Specifically, the Supreme Court stated:

With property division in particular, however, we conclude that

oo, NS 195 130(1) (1) reqires the corrt to malke r cqual dispositon

of property upon divorce, unless the court finds a compcczllling regson for

an unequal disposition and sets forth that reason in writing. The equal

disposition of community property may not be dispensed with through

default. Even jurisdictions that have permitted the entry of a default
divorce decree as a discovery sanction require the district court to make

independent findings on the division of property in accordance with the
applicable law.
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Id. As expressly recognized in Blanco, the mandate in NRS 125.150(1)(b) cannot be

dispensed with through default. Similarly, it cannot be dispensed with by awarding a

party a property that was known to the parties, but never actually adjudicated at trial.
Additionally, the ELN Trust complains about orders and decisions that were

never made by the Court. In footnote 30, for example, the ELN Trust states:
Another example of Judge Sullivan granting relief that Lynita’s Counsel
demanded, without complying with the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure
and Eighth Judicial District Court Rules, pertains to Lynita’s Counsel’s
request for the appointment of a receiver over the ELN Trust at the
August 1, 2013 hearing. . . .

Every request made by Lynita for a receiver, however, was specifically denied by the

Court, as set forth in the Factual Statement above. The ELN Trust also complains at

page 11 that the Court discussed the possibility of entering a charging order, even

though the Court again never entered a charging order. To the contrary, the Court

specifically denied Lynita’s request for a charging order without prejudice. Injunctions
from September 4, 2013 Hearing, filed September 6, 2013, pg. 3, lines 9-12.

Finally, the ELN Trust baselessly alleges that Judge Sullivan has entered orders
“even if it means ignoring the direction given by the Nevada Supreme Court and/or
Nevada law.” Motion, pg. 10, lines 5-6. Of course, the ELN Trust has not addressed
such allegations with the Supreme Court, despite having two (2) pending applications
for writs pending with the Supreme Court. Additionally, the statements complained
about were simply statements confirming what was clearly set forth in the Decree: that
the Court could have invalidated the trusts based on its findings, but did not do so
because it thought it could accomplish the relief provided without invalidating the
trusts.

As has been set forth above, there is no legal or factual basis supporting the ELN

Trust’s Motion, and the Motion should be denied.
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C.  Lynita Should Be Awarded Her Attorneys’ Fees And Costs Incurred In This
Matter |

NRS 18.010 permits litigants to recover their attorneys’ fees where the Court
finds that a claim or defense of an opposing party was brought without reasonable
ground or to harass the prevailing party. EDCR 7.60(b)(1) permits the Court to
sanction a party for presenting to the court a motion “which is obviously frivolous,
unnecessary or unwarranted.” In addition to denying the ELN Trust’s Motion, the
Court should enter an Order awarding Lynita her fees and costs incurred in defending
against such Motion. As has been set forth throughout, the ELN Trust’s Motion is
untimely and not supported as required by law. Additionally, the allegations made do
not, as a matter of law, constitute reasonable grounds to disqualify a judge.

Pursﬁant to Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 349 455 P.2d

31,33 (1969), in awarding reasonable fees and costs to Lynita this Court will need to
make specific findings regarding the quality of her advocates, the character of the work
done in this Opposition and Countermotion, the work actually performed, and the
result. It is impossible at this time to provide the Court with a total amount of time
spent towards this Opposition and Countermotion, as a Reply to the ELN Trust’s
opposition to Lynita’s Countermotion will likely be required. To assist the Court in
making the other necessary findings, however, Lynita submits that this Opposition and
Countermotion is only necessary as a result of the frivolous, unnecessary and
unwarranted Motion filed by the ELN Trust. Lynita’s lead counsel charges a standard
hourly fee of $550.00 for his services. Associate counsels’ hourly fees are $400.00.

Both fees are customary and reasonable in this locality for similarly situated persons
and cases. Mr. Dickerson has been practicing law for 35 years, with the last 20 plus
years devoted to the practice of family law. He is a former President of the State Bar
of Nevada, and Clark County Bar Associations, and is AV rated both as to skill and
ethics. Mr. Karacsonyi has been licensed to practice law in Nevada since 2007, and has

been appointed by his peers to the State Bar of Nevada, Family Law Executive Council.
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The Dickerson Law Group is an AV Preeminent rated law firm, the highest level of
professional excellence. All attorneys at the firm have extensive experience in the area
of family law, and a reputation for competency. The rates charged by Lynita’s counsel
are reasonable in light of the experience of the law firm, and the character of work
involved in this matter.

IV. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the ELN Trust’s request to disqualify the
Honorable Frank P. Sullivan should be denied, and Lynita should be awarded
attorneys’ fees and costs for having to defend against such request.

Dated this & day of December, 2013.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

. DICKERSHN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am depositing a true and correct copy of
DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISQUALIFY JUDGE SULLIVAN
AND COUNTERMOTION FORATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS, in the U.S. Mail,
postage prepaid, to the following opposing counsels at their last known address on the

RHONDA K. FORSBERG, ESQ .
RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED
64 North Pecos Road, Ste. 700
Henderson, Nevada 89074
Attorneys for Plaintiff

MARK A. SOLOMON, ESQ.
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9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON

Plaintiff(s), CASE NO. D411537

DEPT. NO. O
S
FAMILY COURT
MOTION/OPPOSITION FEE
INFORMATION SHEET
(NRS 19.0312)

LYNITA SUE NELSON

Defendant(s).

Party Filing Motion/Opposition: Plaintiff/Petitioner Defendant/Respondent

MOTION FOR OPPOSITION TO Defendant's Opposition to Motion to Disqualify

Judge Sullivan and Countermotion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs

Motions and Mark correct answer with an “X.”
Oppositions to Motions | 1. No final Decree or Custody Order has been
filed after entry of a final entered. YES NO

order pursuant to NRS —
125, 125B or 125C are 2. This document is filed solely to adjust the amount of
subject to the Re-open support for a child. No other request is made.

filing fee of $25.00, 1 LJYES NO

unless specifically
excluded. (NRS 19.0312) | 3. This motion is made for reconsideration or a new
trial and is filed within 10 days of the Judge’s Order
NOTICE: If YES, provide file date of Order:

YES NO

If it is determined that a motion or
opposition is filed without payment

of the appropriate fee, the matter | |f you answered YES to any of the questions above,

may be taken off the Court’s - .
calendar or may remain undecided you a"e n—Ot SUbJeCt to the $25 fee.

until payment is made.

Motion/Opposition [ X|IS IS NOT subject to $25 filing fee
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AUGUST 30, 2010 TRIAL TESTIMONY'

Opening Statement by Mr. Jimmerson:

You have before you a list of properties [Eric’s Options A and B] which I’ll
explain to you in just 2 minute, but to give you an overview, give or take on cost
basis, 18, 19 million dollars in assets which would be divided under our
proposals nine and nine...

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 14, beginning at line 2.

... each party, on a cost basis, is going to get approximately $9 million in assets and
on a real fair market value basis, something considerably more. And more
importantly, we’re dividing everything that these parties have, including their
businesses, in half plus or minus one or two adjustments. . .

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 14, beginning at line 15.

If I could now ask you to briefly turn your attention to Options A and B, I’d like to
discuss this with you. The difference between Option A and B is it just turns on two
assets, okay? Option A is an equal division of all assets and liabilities, Judge,
except for the cash that each of them have on their own, so we didn’t divide the
cash Lynita has in her six or seven bank accounts and we didn’t divide Eric’s
cash that he has in his four or five bank accounts. They take their own — they
take their own cars, you know, the — they take their own personal property, they
take their own furniture and furnishings that they have plus or minus some things that
could be exchanged. . . .

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 19, beginning at line 5.

So the difference between A and B is A is everything divided in half except for cash
and for cars and B is everything divided in half except for cash and cars except
that Mississippi would go to Husband and Russell would go to Wife.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 21, beginning at line 23.
Direct Examination of Eric L. Nelson, questioning by Mr. Jimmerson:
A. [T]hat’s my primary focus is managing all my assets and Lynita’s assets
SO0 we manage our community assets, and that’s where our primary

revenue is driven.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 32, beginning at line 21.

' Emphasis added.
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I just asked you, please tell the Court about the trusts —

LSN Trust —

— how they came about.

S

Was designed and set up and my trust, ELN Trust, or Eric Nelson’s Trust
was for asset protection purposes.

Okay.

>

In the event that something happened to me, I didn’t have to carry life
insurance. I would put safe assets into her property in her assets for her
and the kids. My assets were much more volatile, much more—I would
say daring; casino properties, zoning properties, partners properties, so we
maintained this and these — all these trusts were designed and set up by Jeff
Burr. [He] 1s an excellent attorney and so I felt comfortable. This protected
Lynita and her children and it gave me the flexibility because I do a lot
of tax scenarios, to protect her and the kids and me and we could level
off yearly by putting assets in her trust or my trust depending on the
transaction and protect — the basic bottom line is to protect her.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 44, beginning at line 21.

Q (by the Court). So that’s 1A [referencing Eric’s Exhibit 1A]?

A. — this is basically a way I felt to — to easily explain the assets, to simplify
it for Joe [Leaunae], Bob [Dickerson], and Melissa [Attanasio], Mr.
[Bob] Gaston, anyone else that’d look at our estate, and so I listed the
property — you’ll see that these properties are designated in somebody’s
trust; LSN Trust or Eric’s Trust. The majority of them if it’s a sub-
company 1t’s going to flow up to my trust by design.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 48, beginning at line 2 (discussing Plaintiff’s Exhibit 1A).

... ’m confident that you’re going to hear that the vast majority of these can be sold
and divided.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 49, lines 10-11 (by Mr. Jimmerson discussing properties listed in Exhibit
1A).
Q. [Indiscernible].

A. Okay, so, Your Honor, so I prepared this document to allow us to anticipate
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who wanted some of the assets. It is so important that I get divorced that
I’'m willing to split every asset 50/50. I want you to make that very clear.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 52, beginning at line 2.
Q. And [the tenancy for your office at Lindell] is on a month-to-month?

A. Well, we don’t pay rent because we’re managing all the assets, so I don’t
pay myself to pay Lynita because we —it’s all community:.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 70, beginning at line 21 (discussing the Lindell Plaza Office building).

Q. Okay. So the last 10, then, are 10 lots owned 25 percent by the Lynita
Trust. It’s community property, I understand —

A. Yes.

—but its owned by the Lynita Trust and three other guys?

A. Yes.

Q. Eighty [lots] by the community?
A. Yes.
TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 115, beginning at line 9 (discussing the Gateway Arizona lots).

Q. Okay, so Dynasty Development Company, for the Court’s edification. .

A. Yes.

Q. — 1s the name of the company that owns Lynita and Eric’s interests in Silver
Slipper?

A. Yes, under my trust.

Q. All right.

A. Lynita’s not a party to that, [ mean, with the — with side of the — the trust side
of it.
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The trust owns it and Eric Nelson —

The community — yes.

— Trust, but she has a community interest, and that’s the entity —

Right.

TT, August 30, 2010, pgs. 156-57 (discussing Silver Slipper/Dynasty Development).

A.

...I'said, guys — they wanted all the land that we owned down there, Lynita
and me, which was in my trust, to go into the operation and the security. I
refused. InfactIrefused so much I said I’'m going to transfer a majority of
these properties into Lynita’s trust to make sure they’re fully aware that
these properties aren’t going off. I’'m going to do a leveling of the trusts. I
recorded the deeds incorrectly. Lana typed them up. There were some
verbiage problems when we transferred them to Lynita, they clouded the title.

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 165, beginning at line 6 (discussing land deals in Mississippi).

Q.

A,

And what do they pay Dynasty if they pay — who is the owner of the real
estate that the RV park’s on?

Well the, it’s the community. It’s under Lynita’s trust right now. It
came from my trust into her trust. It’s clouded title. That’s the property —
the 70 or 60 or 70 acres that’s in the Manise lawsuit....

TT, August 30, 2010, pg. 186, beginning at line 2.

AUGUST 31, 2010 TRIAL TESTIMONY

Cross Examination of Eric L. Nelson, questioning by Mr. Dickerson:

Q.

You’ve given her $500 since June of 2008, correct?

Well, no, no, that - - that’s its. As community assets she has 2.6-million
where her flow of cash was 15,000 amonth. So ifit’s community, estate, she

Sir, do you understand my question?

— has had that. Yes, sir.
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Since June of 2008 - -

Yes, sir.

- - you have given your wife Lynita a grand total of $500, correct?
Mr. Jimmerson: Objection to the form of the question.

Well, it’s not true, Mr. Dickerson. I’ve given her 2.6-million of the
community.

TT, August 31, 2010, pg. 443, beginning at line 17.

Q.

A.

How much were you giving her sir?

I was giving her money that I would flow into the Lindell account, even
if we didn’t collect rent, I’d put additional money in it from Nelson Trust
so she would get an additional 6000 periodically.

TT, August 31, 2010, pg. 463, beginning at line 4 (discussing payments from ELN Trust to Lynita).

Q.

A,

o L0 o P

Well let me ask this if I may. Other than Lynita’s bank accounts which
over on the income section you don’t represent any income, you’re in
control of all of these assets, isn’t that true?

No.

Which assets are you —

Well, I manage them but she has an ownership in —in —
Well -

— whatever

You’re in control of them. You’re the one that is receiving all this
income that’s being generated from these assets; is that true?

And paying all the expenses.

TT, August 31, 2010, pg. 473, beginning at line 16.

Q.

Now sir, don’t you agree that you stopped paying any rental income to Lynita
since May 20097
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I don’t know when the last thing, but Lynita didn’t ever receive rental
income, let’s get that straight. She received a check from me to assist in
some areas of whatever she needed assistance in. We never calculated

that she got some percentage of any rents or whatever. That’s not the
way we do our business.

TT, August 31, 2010, pg. 547, beginning at line 1.

Q.

A.

Now, in February of this year, you used community cash to purchase an
interest in this property; is that correct?

Yes, sir.

TT, August 31, 2010, pg. 549, beginning at line 18 (discussing Russell Road property).

Q.

> o » O » o ¥

So roughly we’re looking then at you took $2,777,861 —
Yes, sir.
— of community cash?
Yes, sir.
And you gave that to your brother?
No, sir.
What’d you do with it?

I bought two-thirds of his building --

TT, August 31, 2010, pg. 559, beginning at line 3.

SEPTEMBER 1. 2010 TRIAL TESTIMONY

Cross Examination of Eric L. Nelson, questioning by Mr. Dickerson:

Q.

Now you’re the one that put title to those parcels that we’ve talked about
in the name of Dynasty, Bal Harbor, Emerald Bay, Bay Harbor Beach
Resorts and (indiscernible) Financial Partnerships. Is that correct?

I believe so, yes.

And you’re the one that also put title in the name of — all the remaining
lots in the name of the LSN Nevada Trust. Is that true?
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A.

Yes, sir.

TY, September 1, 2010, pg. 673, beginning at line 20.

Q.

A.

> 0 > O » O

The height of the market was 18 months ago according to your testimony?
No, no. But I’m just saying we could have — the — this lawsuit’s been

pending for a while, sir. We did these deeds mistake — if you can — if you
reference back to it, it shows — shows Dynas — it’s my —

—company. It shows Eric Nelson. That’s my company. We put them
into Lynita’s for community protection, and she would not cooperate.

You put them -
Yes, sir.
—into Lyynita’s?
Yes, sir.
All right. For —

— for community wealth.

TT, September 1, 2010, pg. 691, beginning at line 21 (discussing Mississippi land).

Q.

o oo

Okay. And title then was put in the name of Lynita’s trust at your —
Yes, sir.

— at your behest, correct?

Yes, sir.

[] So you’re quibbling here as to whether you didn’t - - you purchased that
home?

I paid off the mortgage. I didn’t buy the house from her. I paid off the
mortgage, put it in Lynita’s name for — so they would be comfortable and
her sister wouldn’t think there was anything — any foul play going on.
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TT, September 1, 2010, pg. 697, beginning at line 21 (discussing Pebble Beach house).

A. But it gave us more flexibility to level off the trusses [sic] or level off this
at divorce agreement,

TT, September 1, 2010, pg. 704, beginning at line 22 (discussing Banone property division).

OCTOBER 19. 2010 TRIAL TESTIMONY

Cross Examination of Eric L. Nelson, questioning by Mr. Dickerson:

Q. And why did you do that [close the auction company], sir?

A. . . . I was under water these businesses. . . . to save as much in our
community estate, I was forced to lay people off, generate cash flow so

Lynita would have the cash flow from these properties in the future.

TT, October 19, 2010, pg. 27, beginning at line 16 (discussing business closures).

Q. Now you talk, sir, about you’re initiating a lawsuit against the Silver
Slipper?

A. Yes, sir. I believe I’m going to.

Q. Now who is — who is — you personally, you as an individual?

A. Me personally, yes. ..
TT, October 19, 2010, pg. 40, beginning at line 18.

Q. Well, but who’s been damaged?

A. I believe myself and my — partners and Lynita.

Q. Well, the stock — the stock is held in the name of Dynasty; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And there is some stock — or no, all the stock is held in the name of
Dynasty; is that true?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. It is owned by you?
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A.

Yes, sir.

TT, October 19, 2010, pg. 41, beginning at line 4.

Q.

A,

Okay. So in other words, it’s just - - this is just one of Fric Nelson’s threats?
I’m going to sue everybody or is there something out there? Is it really - -

Maybe it’s a strategy . . . And - - and if they had some misgivings Mr.
Dickerson, then possibly it would delay some of those areas. And so I’m

trying to salvage everything and anything I can in that investment for
this community.

TT, October 19, 2010, pgs. 42-43.

Q.

A.

So it’s just - - you don’t believe that’s important information for us to know,
whether a lot has been sold and where that money is?

- - let me just - - she can have anything she wants 50/50.

TT, October 19, 2010, pg. 58, beginning line 7.

Q.

> o O P

That is money, the $45,500 [promissory note], is money that is owed to
Nelson & Associates by Emerald Bay Mississippi, LLC, isn’t that correct?

All owned by Eric Nelson.
Pardon me?

All owned by Eric Nelson.
So the answer to that is yes.

I’m going to pay myself.

TT, October 19, 2010, pg. 76, beginning line 17.

OCTOBER 20,2010 TRIAL TESTIMONY

Redirect Examination of Eric L. Nelson, questioning by Mr. Jimmerson:

Q.

A.

Here you go, Judge. We’re going to call this Option C.

I worked off the same worksheets that we’ve got Bob, or the same thing
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we’ve been — we kind of duplicated it. But I couldn’t pull your stuff up to do
it and mine was on my computer. So [ went this direction. It was okay. And
so we had court option A revised is what I’m looking at.

TT, October 20, 2010, pg. 223, beginning line 9.

A.

Well, I — I understand the judge’s position. Even though we had
irrevocable trusts we wanted to put everything out there on top of
everything. It was outweighed in my favor. And —

All right. So then —

— one thing we do is split everything. However, this would be a fair

scenario where we both conceding in some areas in all litigation, use my
expertise to fight off claims that I think I need to fight off on behalf of her
and me.

And so this is what I came up with . [ think under — this is subject to

conditions that everybody was agreeing. It was additional conditions and
things change.

TT, October 20,2010, pg. 226, beginning line 6. Thereafter, Eric explained to the Court his “Option

C” for division of all community property held in the Trusts in detail, assct by asset.

10

RAPP1321



Exhibit “B”

PPPPPPPP



NOVEMBER 22. 2010 TRIAL TESTIMONY'"

Direct Examination of Jeffrey Burr, Esq., questioning by James J. Jimmerson, Esq. (“Mr.

Jimmerson™):

Q. It’s my understanding that the Nelsons first consulted you for trust work in
roughly 1991, about 19 years ago. Is that consistent with your recollection?

A. Yes.

Q. What do you recall in that regard?

A. They came to me at the time and they wanted to do some estate planning and
we helped draft a joint family trust for them.

Trial Transcript (“TT”), November 22, 2010, pg. 7, lines 17-19.

Q. Quite a while, okay. Now, what is the - - what was the purpose in 1991 for
creating the Eric Nelson and Lynita Sue Nelson Family Trust?

A. They wanted to delineate what happened in the event one or both of them
became incompetent or passed away and they wanted to do a trust to help - -
help avoid probate in case they had a catastrophe in their family.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 11, lines 2-8.

Q. Okay. Now, we know through the documents at least, about two years past
and then they returned to you for additional estate planning; is that true?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, what was the purpose of the 1993 Agreement which I’ll show you
here?

A. The Nels --

Q. Okay. So what I want to know is what are you being told by either Eric

' Emphasis added.
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or Lynita or what are you telling them in response as to why they want
a separate agreement now in 1992? And the documents that went along to
implement that?

Well, they came to me and Eric was getting ready or just already began
involvement in what they both felt were risky ventures. There was some
gaming that he wanted to be involved in. And he was going to have to sign
some guarantees and the concern was that we didn’t want all the a - - they
didn’t want all the assets subject to creditors. And so they were looking

for ways to protect a portion of the assets from potential liabilities down
the road.

TT, November 22, 2010, pgs. 17-19..

Q.

Did you explain to Lynita Nelson that by signing the 1993 Agreement
and the way to implement that, the separate property trust, that she was
relinquishing her community property interest as it relates to assets that
were being placed in Eric’s separate property trust as Fric was
relinquishing community property interest being placed in Lynita’s
separate property trust?

Okay. This is where it gets a little tricky. The discussion of course was
clear and concise about trying to protect the assets from third party
creditors and from guarantees and that type of thing. And in order to
accomplish that, it was my opinion this - - the property needed to be
separated. So, did we discuss in detail, you know, marital property
rights as to each other, we did have a discussion about that. And the
property was divided equally at the time. And my advice to them was,
you know, going forward they should balance the assets on a periodic
basis to maintain their 50/50 ownership, because again, these were two
people that were doing well in their marriage, getting along, and they

were primarily focusing on outside creditors and frivolous lawsuits, that
kind of thing.

So - -so there wasn’t a big discussion about, you know, dissolution rights
and that type of thing.

Okay.

It was more just protecting them against third party creditors.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 21, lines 10-16; pg. 22, lines 3-22.
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Cross Examination of Mr. Burr, questioning by Robert P. Dickerson, Esq. (“Mr. Dickerson™):

Q.

A.

Okay. Now, isn’t it true that - - do you recall how it came about that you
were contacted with respect to the issues that were being discussed for the
purpose of this 1993 Agreement in say the spring of 19937

Yeah, the parties again came to see me.

So it is true, Mr. Burr, that really the sole purpose of you putting
together this 1993 Agreement that’s been admitted into evidence as
Exhibit 210 was simply and solely for the purpose of asset protection
from creditors?

The purpose of this agreement was to protect them from creditors, yes.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 11, lines 7-11, 19-23; pg. 12, lines 6-7.

Q (by the Court). Do you understand why they came to your - - or the purpose

of you said to protect assets from creditors? Is there anything else that you

understood to be the purpose of the parties coming before you for the 1993
Agreement?

That was the sole purpose. There was no discussion about protecting
each other from each other or dissolution or anything,

Q (Mr. Dickerson resumes questioning). And in fact, wasn’t there discussion of the

fact that there would be no different - - that for example, the - - the assets
that are going to Lynita, if Eric lost every one of his assets because of the
risks involved and he lost every one of his assets, was it the intent that he
have no interest in the assets that are being distributed to Lynita?

The intent was Lynita would take care of him and further their
community.,

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 12, lines 23-24; pg. 13, lines 1-15.

Q.

A,

Okay. And again, vis-a-vis each other as affecting their rights against
each other, what was their intent?

Again, my understanding of the intent and the discussions we had
related to protection from third party creditors, but they still wanted to
take care of each other and - - and benefit each other basically.
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TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 15, lines 18-23.

Direct Examination of Mr. Burr, questioning by Mr. Jimmerson:

Q.

Okay. So please tell us what communication happened between you,

Lynita and Eric Nelson regarding hey guys, there’s a new law on the
books that may be of some advantage to you?

Well, keep in mind that the dynamics between Lynita and Eric, Eric

was pretty much the business guy and so, he was the one I would
predominantly communicate with.

Okay.

And we sent letters out, communication to our clients, informing them of
this opportunity to utilize this special trust and Eric and - - and Lynita
came in I believe together and we talked about, you know, how these asset
protection trusts could be layered on top of the other trusts they’d done and
in other words, and give more protection to them as a couple, as a
family.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 37, lines 13-14.

A.

Actually, Eric, because he’s in real estate and very knowledgeable, had a

pretty competent staff, he pretty much always wanted to be in control
of the funding and do that.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 39, lines 15-17 (discussing funding of the ELN and LSN Trusts).

Q.

Okay. So for what purposes of the Nelsons, each of them were trying to
accomplish, why would the use of this trust be superior than the revocable
separate property trust that they were using since 19937

Okay. In these types of trusts, the self-settled spendthrift trusts were not
available in any state at that time, and so the onl - - the best we could do
for asset protection purposes was to try to divide assets equally between
the spouses, this protecting the less risky spouse from hopefully a lawsuit
for - - from - - on the risky spouse’s side, because as we all know, if you
have community property debt, all the community property is exposed to
liability. So back then, that was kind of the best plan we had to at
least protect one-half the value of the estate.

Okay.

And so time moved forward, this special trust is passed and now because

4
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they already have these other trusts that they’ve created there’s still some
utility in dividing the assets between those two trusts from a creditor
protection point of view and then you layer on top of that or you - - in
conjunction with that by transferring to an asset protection trust the fact
that now after two years have elapsed, not only is the less risky spouse
protected but also the more risky spouse hopefully is protected after two
years elapse from liabilities that could occur. So it was just a way of

enhancing the asset protection planning that we had tried to put in
place before.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 42, lines 4-7, and 13-24; pg. 43, lines 1-11.

Q. And what did you explain to [Lynita] were the basic concepts of the
trust, the irrevocable trust of 2001, Exhibit 81?

A. Just that this additional statute would provide an extra layer of
protection for her, Eric and the family from creditors.

Q. Okay. So, how were the assets divided between the parties if you
know?

A. Eric just said he would take that upon himself.
TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 45, lines 11-16, and 23-24; pg. 46, line 1.

Q. Okay. Would you agree with me that not only would she be able to
understand the word irrevocable because of your conversation with her,
but she could understand that it may not be altered, amended or revoked?

A. I must interject now that I explained to both parties that irrevocable is
a kind of a term of art in the trust world. Any trust can be revoked or
amended by transferring all of the assets out of it when it becomes
unfunded and they have - - each have the power to do that pretty
much as investment trustee with the distribution trustee’s authority.

Q. Right.

A. And then the statute gave them a continuing power of appointment over
the assets so they could change the beneficiaries, the - - the dispositive
provisions at any time. So one thing I - - we tell all our clients that do
these because they get all concerned about well, this 1s irrevocable, I don’t
know if [ want to do it, we stress the flexibility of these trusts still
because the statute provides a lot of flexibility still with the trustor
and allows for them to if they want, if it ever becomes obsolete or it
becomes no longer necessary in the planning, they could pretty much
get rid of the trust just by transferring the assets out of the trust.
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So it’s not your typical like with gift planning and when you’re trying
to avoid estate tax, you really button up the trust and you make it so
it’s really irrevocable without independent trustee approval and all
that kind of - - these types of trusts are very flexible. It’s a term of art,
even the statute as you read it, talks about irrevocability, but it gives all
these powers to the trustor.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 47, lines 18-24; pg. 48, lines 1-24.

Q.

... I understood you to say that as a practical matter, if the trustee,
with the distributors trustee, the two of them, the investment trustee
and . . .the distribution trustee, . . ., can distribute assets to whom they
wish or how they wish, correct?

Yes.

When we talk about irrevocable, there’s so many ways still to change
the terms of the trust. That’s - - | have to in fairness say that, but you’re
right, the term - - if you look up Webster’s Dictionary, and you look at that
provision, irrevocable means you can’t change it.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 49, lines 18-24; pg. 50, lines 1, and 15-19.

Q.

... The things that you say about the flexibility because it’s an
irrevocable trust are things that the trustee can do by will, by
voluntary choice, correct?

Yes.

Can a court order assets to be removed from an irrevocable trust as defined
under Chapter 1667

I think in certain circumstances, yes.
How is that possible?

I believe that you’d have - - any document like that, you’d have to look at
who the grantor is and if the grantor really didn’t possess or own the
property by him or herself [e.g. community property]. That’s one
reason the Court could order the revocation or amendment of the
trust.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 51, lines 10-22.
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Each party has half - - has assets in the trust. Are you telling me that
Judge Sullivan has the power to order against the grantor’s wish, against

the trustee’s wish, being the same person . . . Can Judge Sullivan order
her to transfer assets over to her husband?

[ believe so, yes.

And what’s the basis for that?

Well, you have to go back to the 1993 Agreement, for example, what
was done. That agreement, even though it did alter certain assets and
their character at the time it was created, you’ll notice there’s no
provision in there directing how community property will be split
going forward; for example, earned income, personal services income.
So you’ve got this ongoing issue of after that date there’s going to be
community property created and separate property that is
attributable to the division that occurred. So you’re going to have
community property issues that arise - - that arise. And so maybe one
spouse in doing the transfers and funding the trust was actually
funding it with community property.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 52, lines 3-23.

Q.

I’ll ask you again because I think you have. What were the parties
agreeing to do as it relates to dividing their assets and characterizing their

assets as their respective separate property in 1993 and redone again in an
irrevocable nature in 20017

In 93, 1it’s clear that they were dividing their estate equally into two
separate trust, into two separate prop - - and into separate property. In
2001, you’ll notice there’s not that language in that trust declaring it
to be separate property. At that point in time, you know, I don’t see
and - - there was not attempt really to define community property
rights at that time. And again, the intent all along was to protect them

from third-party creditors, from guarantees, and (indiscernible) for
them from the very beginning that I thought these trusts would not - -
should not be relied upon for dissolution rights; I mean, because their
intent all along was to keep the balance of ownership.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 54, lines 7-23.

Q.

2001, (indiscernible) what were the parties’ understanding and intent
as you understood it, as you prepared the documents, relative to
whether or not there still retained a community property interest in
assets they declared to be each party’s separate property, vis-a-vis
themselves?
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A. Again - -
Q. And not a third party creditor?

A. Again, to be - - I mean, clear, vis-a-vis themselves, this trust - - this
planning was never meant to alter the rights in the event of a
dissolution or divorce. And that was never discussed. I mean, the
whole discussion focused on how can the family best protect itself

from potential liabilities to third parties. And so that was basically
what was discussed.

Q. Just so I have a current understanding, would that be trust, your answer be

true, for all of the asset protection trusts your firm has prepared since 1999
when the statute passed?

A. Yes.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 56, lines 1-24.

A. ... But the intent, and I’ll say this very clearly, our intent when we
do this planning for them is not to somehow create with that planning
some type of pre-dissolution event or pre-dissolution planning for the
couple. That’s not why they come to us for it. We tell them to go see
divorce attorneys for that. So they come to us together trying to find
protection from outside creditors being [sic].

Q. Okay. Specifically as it related to Lynita Nelson and Eric Nelson, did you
have a conversation with Eric Nelson and Lynita Nelson where you
explained to them that the execution of the irrevocable trust in 2001 was
not a protection against each other as it relates to community property
rights?

A. I explained - - my best of my recollection, because I try to do this in every

case, I tried to tell them that these trusts should not be relied upon in a

dissolution setting.

TT1, November 22, 2010, pg. 58, lines 10-17, and 19-24; pg. 59, lines 1-3.
Cross Examination of Mr. Burr, questioning by Mr. Dickerson:

Q. All right. Well, one of the things that you indicated that the parties agreed
to specifically Lynita and Eric in 2001, was that there would be, you know,
a leveling off or an updating of the trusts to try to keep them roughly even,
do you recall your testimony?

A. Yes.
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Q.

A.

Okay. And what did you communicate to them in that regard?

Just that it would be important to, you know, periodically rebalance the
trusts.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 33, lines 4-14.

Q.

Now again, at the point in time that they - - in May of 2001, when Eric
Nelson and Lynita Nelson entered into their respective trusts, Exhibit 80
and 81, did you have discussions with the parties as to what their
intent was with respect to each other, vis-a-vis each other, affecting
their community property rights or their interest in all their
property?

I have to say that yes, the tenor, the tone all along was one of
cooperation and a mutually shared goal of trying to protect their
family from as - - from creditors, frivolous lawsuits, that type of thing,

but a shared intent to look out for each other and the community at
the same time.

So 1sn’t it true in doing that sir, what the parties wanted to do and their
intent was to take all of the assets in which there was any risk involved
and put those into Eric Nelson’s trust; is that correct?

Back - - yes. Back in the initial phase of this and continuing forward, that
was one of the goals as | understood it.

Okay. And the other goal was to take all of the assets that are safe that are
owned free and clear and put those in Lynita Nelson’s trust, correct?

Best of my recollection, yes.

Okay. So did the parties discuss with your - - you their intent or were you
aware of what their intent was, if all of the assets that were in Eric
Nelson’s trust went down the drain, they failed, the creditors took them
away, what was going to happen with respect to the remaining assets, the
safe assets, in Lynita Nelson’s trust?

Well again, if that happened the hope was that only Eric’s assets again

would be gone and that would leave the rest of the assets available for the
family.

Now is that consistent with the intent that was expressed to you by Mr.

and Mrs. Nelson when they first met with you in 19917

Yes.
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TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 19, lines 8-24; pg. 20, lines 1-18.

Q. Assets that are held in the name of Lynita Nelson’s trust, this Court could
enter an order directing Lynita Nelson to transfer tho - - transfer half of an
interest in any of those assets to Eric Nelson as an individual, would you
agree?

A. Or to his trust.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 60, lines 16-20.

Re-direct Examination of Mr. Burr, questioning by Mr. Jimmerson:

Q. The way to - - to render one of these trusts essentially ineffective is to
voluntarily have the investment trustee and the distribution trustee
voluntarily transfer assets away from the trust, correct?

A. That’s one way, yes.

TT, November 22, 2010, pg. 62, lines 6-9.

10
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ORDR i b i
CLERK OF THE COURT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON
Plaintiff,
Case No. D411537
VS.
Dept. No. IX
LYNITA SUE NELSON,
Defendant.

ORDER DENYING MOTION TO DISQUALIFY JUDGE FRANK P. SULLIVAN

This Court, having considered all pleadings filed in relation to the Plaintiff's Motion to
Disqualify filed December 3, 2013, decides the matter upon the pleadings and without oral
argument pursuant to EDCR 2.23.

Considering the merits of the present Motion, this Court concludes that Plaintiff's Motion
does not raise sufficient grounds to support disqualification and is denied. First, this Court notes
that the Nevada Supreme Court held that “a judge or justice is presumed not to be biased, and the
burden is on the party asserting the challenge to establish sufficient factual grounds warranting

disqualification.” Hogan v. Warden, Ely State Prison, 112 Nev. 553, 559-60, 916 P.2d 805, 809

(1996) citing Goldman v. Bryan, 104 Nev. 644, 649, 764 P.2d 1296, 1299 (1988). Plaintiff has not
met this burden. The instant Motion states that Judge Suilivan should be disqualified due to his
bias against Plaintiff. Plaintiff raises several allegations of judicial bias in support of his Motion: that
Judge Sullivan penalized Plaintiff for filing a Writ of Prohibition, that his bias against Plaintift Was éo
strong that he would not follow the direction of the Nevada Supreme Court, and that he was so
biased against Plaintiff that he refused to correctly apply the law in order to damage Plaintiff. This
Court, considering the entirety of the record, finds that Plaintiff's Motion fails to meet the burden

mandated in Hogan v. Warden and orders the Motion DENIED.

RECEIVED

S\ JAN 13 20% ‘
CLERK OF THE COURT
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l. Allegations of Bias

J a. Penalization of Plaintiff for Filing Writ of Prohibition

First, Plaintiff’'s Motion does not ailege sufficient proof of Judge Sullivan's retaliation against
Plaintiff for filing a Writ of Prohibition. Plaintiff states that Judge Sullivan denied several of Plaintiff's
requests after the Writ was filed, and that Judge Sullivan’s motivation for doing so was to have an
adverse effect on the Writ. The instant Motion states that, at a hearing held October 21, 2013 on a
Motion to Substitute Parties, Judge Sullivan stated he would deny Plaintiff's Motion to Substitute
and that he was “not sure if [the denial] could impact [Plaintiff's] writ.” Plaintiff's Motion further
states that Judge Sullivan denied the Motion to Substitute Parties because he believed it would
adversely effect the Writ, which at the time was pending before the Nevada Supreme Court, and
that he did not grant the Motion because he was ‘biased against Plaintiff. Besides being speculative
in nature, this allegation does not support a finding of bias on the part of the judge. ltis well
established that the "[r]ulings and actions of a judge during the course of official judicial

proceedings do not establish legally cognizable grounds for disqualification.” Matter of Dunleavy,

104 Nev. 784, 789, 769 P.2d 1271, 1274 (1988). As a result, Judge Sullivan’s rulings, even those
adverse to Plaintiff, are not grounds for disqualification.

Next, to support the allegation that Judge Sullivan retaliated against Plaintiff after the filing
of the Writ, Plaintiff states that Judge Sullivan set unreasonable deadlines so that Plaintiff could not
seek relief from the Nevada Supreme Court. Plaintiff alleges that, at a hearing held June 19, 2013
on Defendant’s Motion of Payment, Judge Sullivan ordered funds transferred from Plaintiff's Trust
to Defendant’s Trust within thirty days because he believed Plaintiff would file an appeal and
wanted to give Plaintiff enough time to do so. The Judge then “quickly changed course and
demanded that [Plaintiff] turnover said funds. . . more than ten days sooner than required under the
divorce decree.” This allegation that the Judge shortened a deadline is insufficient evidence of bias
or partiality on the part of the Judge, and does not support his disqualification. There is nothing

about the shortened deadline that would prevent Movant from seeking a stay and/or relief before

the Nevada Supreme Court. Again, under Matter of Dunleavy, Judge Sullivan’s rulings are not
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grounds for disqualification, and this allegation is insufficient to support disqualification. |d.

b. Interpretation of Supreme Court Rulings

Second, Plaintiff alleges that Judge Sullivan’s bias is apparent because he sought to thwart
the Nevada Supreme Court’s rulings in this matter, as evidenced by his statements that if the
Supreme Court granted Plaintiff's Writ of Prohibition, he would invalidate Plaintiff’s trust. Ata
hearing held September 5, 2013, Judge Sullivan stated that “depending on what the Supreme Court
does, you know, | thought my order of decree made it clear that | was inclined to set aside those
spendthrift trusts,” and “depending on what the Supreme Court does, they may remand it back to
me and | may set aside the trust and we’ll go to round two in the Supreme Court.” Plaintiff

contends that these statements show bias toward Plaintiff and the Judge’s “predisposition to do

anything he believes is necessary, even if it means ignoring the direction given by the Nevada

Supreme Court and/or Nevada law, to provide an economic windfall to [Defendant].” However,

these statements alone do not show sufficient bias to warrant judicial disqualification. It seems that

‘Judge Sullivan made these statements to show his confidence in his own interpretation of the law

concerning setting aside the trust, and noting that his previous decree should be clear in that
regard. Even if his legal position was incorrect, it would not be grounds for disqualification under
Dunleavy. |d.
c. Incorrect Application of the Law

Finally, Plaintiff's Motion states that Judge Sullivan should be disqualified because he has
repeatedly granted Defendant relief that is improper under the law. To illustrate this, Plaintiff points

to the Judge’s alleged misinterpretation of Aime v. Aime, 106 Nev. 541 (1990). Ata July 22, 2013

hearing, Judge Sullivan stated that he wished to treat a trust asset as an undisclosed asset, but that
he was “not sure” he could do so under Aime. Judge Sullivan further addressed his uncertainty of
how the asset should be treated under Aime, and stated “l don't know if that would hold up, to be
honest, because | haven't researched it.” This allegation is also insufficient to warrant

disqualification. As noted above, Matter of Dunleavy states that a judge’s ruling is not grounds for

disqualification. Matter of Dunleavy at 789, 1274. Furthermore, in order for a motion to disqualify

L to succeed, a party must show “either-actual bias against a party or evidence to support a

3
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reasonable inference of bias.” City of Sparks v. Second Judicial Dist. Court ex rel County of

Washoe, 112 Nev. 952, 920 P.2d 1014 (1996). Here, Judge Sullivan’s uncertainty of the

correctness of his rulings does not constitute actual bias or a reasonable inference of bias. As a
result, this allegation is also insufficient to warrant disqualification.
d. Conclusion

Overall, Plaintiff's allegations of bias are insufficient to warrant the disqualification of Judge
Sullivan. Before a judge can be disqualified due to animus towards a party, egregious facts must

be shown. City of Las Vegas Downtown Redevelopment Agency v. Hecht, 113 Nev. 632, 637, 940

P.2d 127, 130 (1997). Further, to support disqualification, a party must show that a judge’s hostility

must be “so extreme as to display clear inability to render fair judgment.” Liteky v. United States,

510 U.S. 540, 114 S. Ct. 1147 (1994). As Plaintiff has not shown any such egregious facts, nor has
he shown any extreme hostility on the part of the Judge, the Motion to Disqualify must be denied.
Further, the Motion relies on Judge Sullivan’s rulings, which, even if incorrect, are insufficient to
support his disqualification. Additionally, Judge Sullivan swore in his affidavit that he bears no bias
or prejudice for or against any of the parties involved, and that all of his decisions and rulings have
been based on law, not based upon any prejudice or bias

ll. Procedural Issues

a. Lack of Affidavit Required by NRS 1.235

As correctly noted by Defendant in her Opposition filed December 13, 2013, NRS 1.235 (1)
requires that motions to disqualify must be accompanied by an affidavit specifying the facts upon
which disqualification is sought. Plaintiff argued in his Response to Defendant’s Opposition filed
December 24, 2013 that the notion that a motion to disqualify be accompanied by an affidavit is
“absurd and unsupported by law.” However, fhis is incorrept, and because there was no affidavit
included with the instant Motion, the Motion is procedurally deficient under NRS 1.235 (1).
b. Timeliness

Next, the Motion is untimely, as it was filed after the time periods provided in NRS 1.235 (1).

Plaintiff filed the Motion under the guidelines provided in Towbin Dodge, LLC v. Eighth Judicial Dist.

Ct., 121 Nev. 251 (2005}, which are that a party may file a motion to disquality after the time
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deadline set by 1.235 if new grounds for disqualification are discovered. However, as stated in

Defendant’s Opposition, Towbin Dodge states that a party must file their motion to disqualify as
soon as possible after new grounds have been discovered. Id. Here, Plaintiff filed the Motion to
Disqualify between three and six months after the actions of Judge Sullivan took place. Therefore,

the Motion is not timely under Towbin Dodge nor NRS 1.235 (1). Id.

c. Defendant’s Countermotion for Attorney’s Fees

First, this Court notes the authority for its decision on a Motion to Disqualify is silent as to
the need for a responsive pleading by any party, as well as silent as to the Court’s authority to
award attorneys fees for the same. NRS 1.235. The Nevada Supreme Court has noted that only

the judge whose bias and prejudice has been questioned “can determine whether he or she has a

personal bias or prejudice toward litigants or their counsel.” Millen v. Eighth Judicial District. Ex rel.

County of Clark, 122 Nev. 1245, 1254, 148 P.3d 694, 700 (2006). As a result, the instant Motion,

which calls into question the bias of Judge Sullivan, cannot necessarily be considered frivolous, as
it seeks an answer that only Judge Sullivan himself could give. While EDCR 7.60 allows for
attorneys fees as a sanction for a frivolous motion, based upon Millen and the unusual nature of
disqualification proceedings and the law in this area, the Court declines to award attorneys fees
under EDCR 7.60 and ORDERS the Countermotion DENIED.

Therefore, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiff's Motion to Disqualify Judge Sullivan is

DENIED, and Defendant’s Countermotion for Attorney's Fees is DENIED.

| 07@
DATED this _/ of January, 2014.

NIFER T ATTI @)
EF DIST T COURT JUDGE
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that on about the date filed, a true copy of the foregoing Order Denying

Motion To Disqualify Judge Frank P. Sullivan (D411537) was served upon the following:

Hon Frank P. Suliivan
Department O

601 N. Pecos Rd.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Fax: 455-1338

RHONDA FORSBERG, ESQ. MARK A. SOLOMON, ESQ.

SMITHCHTD SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER LTD
64 N. PEcos RD #700 9060 W. Cheyenne Ave.

HENDERSON NV 89074 Las Vegas, NV 89129

FAX: 990-6456 Fax: 853-5485

RoOBERT DICKERSON, ESQ. JEFFREY LUSZECK, ESsQ.

DICKERSON LAW GROUP SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER LTD
1745 VILLAGE CENTER CR 9060 W. Cheyenne Ave.

LAWS VEGAS, NV 8989134 Las Vegas, NV 89129

Fax: 388-0210 Fax: 853-5485

44 D\K/W

ROSE NAJERA
JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT, DEPARTMENT IX

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 2398.030
The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding Decision and Order
filed in District Court case number 09C253054-2 DOES NOT contain the
social security number of any person.

/s/ Rose Najera Date 1/10/14
Judicial Executive Assistant
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

RIC L. NELSON,

Defendant.
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BEFORE THE HONORABLE FRANK P, SULLIVAN
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TRANSCRIPT RE: NON-JURY TRIAL

FRIDAY, MAY 30, 2014

Plaintiff, CASE NO. D-09-411537-D
VS . DEPT. L
LYNITA NELSON, (SEALED)

D-09-411537-D NELSON 05/30/2014 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED}
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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AS VEGAS, NEVADA FRIDAY, MAY 30, 2014

PROCEEDINGS

{THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 10:05:02)

THE COURT: Number D-411537. We'll get everyone's
llkppearances for the record. We'll start counsel for the --
MR. SOLOMON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- Trust.

MR. SOLOMON: Mark Solomon, bar number 418, on
lbehalf of the ELN Trust.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. LUSZECK: Jeff Luszeck, bar number 9619, on

ehalf of the distribution trustee the ELN Trust.
THE COURT: Thank you.
MS. FORSBERG: Good morning, Your Honor. Rhonda
Forsberg, 9557, on behalf of Eric Nelson and Eric Nelson is
resent to my right.
THE COURT: Good morning, Eric.
MR. KARACSONYI: All right. Josef Karacsonyi,
10634, on behalf of Lynita Nelson and Robert Dickerson, 945,
on behalf of the Defendant.
THE COURT: Good mcrning, Ms. Lynita. Everybody

ready to go? Any preliminary matters before we jump right

into it?
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MR. KARACSONYI: A couple, Your Honor. We have the
rder from the motion in limine and motion to a summary
judgment and it's fully signed by everybody. And then the
ther preliminary matter we have is I -- I think the Court's
ware that the supreme court has dismissed the petitions --
rit of -- of petitions for writ of prohibition and the -- has
issolved the temporary stays.

We are -- we have brought an order prepared today to
ave the 1.068 million or the blocked account transferred to
s. Nelson now that there's no longer a temporary stay in
ffect and now that the supreme court has dismissed the
etitions. And I believe Mr. Bertsch and Mr. Miller are here
oday and they have funds that are due to them from those
locked account too. So we've brought an order to release the
funds from the blocked account now that everybody's been
esolved.

THE COURT: Thank you. Any =--

MR. SOLOMON: Yes, Your Honor. We are -- depending
n how this Court resolves the hearing today, I think the
upreme court order anticipated that reasonable writs were
ismissed is this would go up on appear immediately after this
earing and we're going to be asking for another stay. I
ould like to orally file a motion for stay or at least orally

resent a motion for stay and have Your Honor rule on that in
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onnection with any appear to file.
THE COURT: Anything from you?
MS. FORSBERG: No, Your Henor. 1 agree with Mr.
olomon.
THE CQURT: Yeah, you know, I had read the decision
y the supreme court and I'm -- I'm looking at Page 3 on the
last -- the next sentence. It says thus the district court
as at least in part enjoined transfer of the assets at issues
in these petitions to the extent that any party seeks an
injunction that is not addressed by the district court order
urrently in effect, such relief may be sought and the
istrict court under these circumstances given availability of
an appeal they denied thd4e writ. So one, the supreme court is
trying to tell me that part of the reason they denied it was
fbecause those funds were enjoined. So I'm not sure if that's
what they mean by it to be honest is I just read the order.
So I haven't looked into it anymore. But that's my concern if
that's why they denied the writ was because of the injunction,
50 ——

MR. KARACSONYI: Well, it seems to me that they

leave to Your Honor the issue of injunctions. I mean, the --
he point -- if -- if they had ruled the other way and ruled
in their favor, I'm sure they would be standing here today

sking the same thing of you. I mean, the point is she has no
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oney. And she's basically had to liquidate assets and now
he's working a -- practically a minimum wage job. And she's
acrificing her future, her future ability tc -- to support
erself while this process is going on. And they want to hold
11 the assets until they're done -- good and done litigating.

Well, that's not how it works and we should be -- we
hould be given assets that were awarded to us. And if they
ant to take it up on appeal, they can do that and they
ertainly have that right. But at this time there's no reason
ot to give the assets that were duly award to Ms. Nelson to
5. Nelson.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: I'm just going to repeat myself Your
onor so I don't want to do that and belabor it. I -- I think
hat the order was clear, maybe not as clear as it could have
een to the supreme court. But I think what was intended was
hey -- everything's in place. Everything's enjoined or we
ave a hearing today, this is going to end this matter, it's
oing to end up on appeal and we'll file appropriate motion to
stay pending appeal.

I don't Lhink -- I think maybe counsel will be

surprised what our motion's going to say. We're going to try

nd present something equitable to keep the parties going

uring the course of appeal and just prevent irreparable
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injury on our motion. So I would ask for that just be
reconsidered at that point.
THE COURT: Okay. Why don't we get this started and

let me think about it a little bit. I got -- I have some

ptions. I can release the whole funds. I can release part
f it in order to make sure there's some security there. I
as anticipating some of these arguments to be honest when I
looked at it yesterday but I didn't -- I was in trial all day
0 late last night. I think there's ways I can do to release
ome of the funds that it would still make sure it's secure so
here will be no irreparable harm pending appeal. So I would
ook at that.
I think Mr. Bertsch deserves to be paid. They've
een waiting a lonag time. I think Ms. Nelson is probably
entailing some money on that to keep her going on that. So I
fvas inclined to look at that too. So I was thinking perhaps
to release the spousal support. Forgot how much I gave on

that to look on that lump sum, because I think there was 1

boint something million, 1.2 is it?
MR. KARACSONYI: 1. -- oh, that -- that was enjoined

was 1.068 million.

THE COQURT: That --
MR. LUSZECK: That was enjoined. The spousal

upport was -- I forget the number. I think it -- I have the
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ecree right here. I think it's --

THE COURT: 1I'll look at that and why don't we get
this started so we'll get it done, because what happens today
[whether that impact and I'1l1 give you scome time if you want to
file an appeal or any stage we can do that. But I think
there's some options I can do. I —-- there's enough with the

supreme court basically would saying since the property had

een enjoined they weren't going to look for extraordinary
elief where they were trying to tell me something that they
ant enjoined or consider further enjoinments or injunction.
I'm not sure.

MR. KARACSONYI: And if we're filing appeals, what's

lgrossly inequitable is he still has control of all his assets.

50 --
THE COURT: And you got --
MR. KARACSONYI: -- only one party it doesn't -- it
THE CQURT: And you got this fine --
MR. KARACSONYI: -- it -- the equity's not --
there's no equity there.

THE COURT: And you got his --

MR. KARACSONYI: And --
THE COURT: -- 500,000 right --

MR. KARACSONYI: Right.
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THE COURT: -- off the top when that --

MR. KARACSONYI: He has the --

THE COURT: -- was all frozen.

MR, KARACSONYI: -- 500,000. He has all the other
Lroperties. So if we file an appeal, are you going to stay
any distribution to the ELN Trust of properties that they have

right now? I mean, they should have all their assets frozen

then, all of the assets. I mean, that would be the only fair

solution then if it's where -- if we're -- if we're going to
-- if we're going to do this in equity.

MR. SOLOMON: Well, it would be the assets in
ontroversy, Your Honor, number cne to be locked at. And --
nd two, I think --

MR. KARACSONYI: Well, everything was in
ontroversy. All the property was in controversy.

MR, SOLOMCN: No, I don't think you were asking for

hundred percent. S0 -- ever. Although --

MR. DICKERSON: But you only heard 50 percent. We
et tie up.

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, well --

MR. DICKERSON: He gets good. But you could have
iven her any --

MR. SOLOMON: -- that -- that's in controversy. So
ith respect to the assets or controversies, that's what we
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ave to look at. And again, we intend to propose a plan which
our Honor can consider as we know. We have first have to

ring the motion for stay before Your Honor before we can take

it up to supreme court anyway after the appeal is right. And

e intend to try and put it in some terms that I -- are fair
nd reasonable. And hopefully the Court will agree and that's
here this should be decided.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Dickerson, do you want to be
eard on this before we jump to --

MR. DICKERSON: I don't think I want to -- and --
nd since we have Mr. Bertsch here, the order we prepared was
eleasing the monies to Lynita and Lynita then would pay the
onies to Mr. Bertsch and he had no objection to that. So I
on't know if he -- he wants to express a —-- a position on
hat, if you -- if it's your intent to get him paid and I -- I
gree he should be paid and monies should also be distributed
o Lynita, we have to prepare an appropriate order.

We just thought it was easier for one party to go to
evada -- Bank of Nevada, obtain the check and then we'll
isburse the funds accordingly, but --

MR. SOLOMON: And our -- is it 6072

MR. KARACSONYI: 32 --

MR. SOLOMON: I believe the amount was --

MR. KARACSONYI: I think I'll take 50.
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THE COURT: I'll -- I'1ll . Bertsch is earned

KARACSONYI: It's 30

SOLOMON: May I ask?

COURT: Yeah.
MR, KARACSONYI: It's 32,858, I think.
MS. FORSBERG: ©h, it was the other --

MR. BERTSCH: TIt's 35,258.

MR. KARACSONYI: 35,258. Sorry.

MR. SOLOMON: Wait, if this would help, we would
tipulate to release that amount without prejudice to any
rgument and have that go to Mr. Bertsch at this time.

THE COURT: Let's get that part done. We'll make
ure we get an order at close today to make sure Mr. Bertsch
ets paid. He's waited a long time. And I'm -- let me think
bout this for a second. As I said, I have a couple of
ptions. I can release the whole thing. I can also release a

lump sum to Ms. Lynita to help her cover any sharp falls on
hat. That would still have done security. I know Ms. Lynita
as half interest in the cabin in Utah. So I think that's
ollateral there if the supreme court thought I was wrong on
hat. So I think there's ways I can do it to make sure that
-- that they're protected to at least get a motion in front of

the supreme court appropriately and give Ms. Lynita funds to

D-09-411537-D NELSON 05/30/2014 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

13
RAPP1356




14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

perate on that, because I was thinking about it and I haven't
ad a chance to adjust it. But I was thinking that it's been
while on that in fairness for equity.

I did not freeze up the 500,000 which I could have.
he 1568 I could have froze that, but I didn't want to do that
ecause I wanted hopefully the matter to be resclved and we
ould be done with that. That didn't work out the way we
anted.

The purpose of that lump sum was to give Ms. Lynita
oney as to the property started generating a revenue so she
an liquidate as she thought appropriate and not get hit real

ad with taxes and to give Mr. Nelson a lump sum so he can

invest it and keep his business going. Didn't work out as I

lanned. But let me think about that for a second and I want
o get this done. And then I'll -- I'll definitely by the
elease and part of the funds -- all those funds and give you
uys a chance to prepare.

MR. DICKERSON: BAnd -- and with that, I know that
r. Bertsch is represented by legal counsel. We would be more
han happy depending on what your decision is, we can prepare

~-— a single order that would address all these issues and I

an make contact with Mr. Bertsch after this. I'm sure you
uys want to sit here for the next few hours listening to

hat's going on, but --
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THE COURT: I thought he enjoyed the pleasure of our
ompany. I thought he was just here -- nowhere else he would
ather be. So the parties have already agreed on that. We'll
ake sure Mr. Bertsch that you get paid the 35,258 whether
it's a separate check or to Ms. Lynita. We'll make sure that
hat's a part of the order by that close today for you. All
right. Okay. And we'll advise an order afterwards. And as I

said, all I can think abeout all the issues and read that

Hecision again in more detail. Thanks.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: You got the one order you want me to --

MR, KARACSONYI: Yeah, the submitted the -- did I

and it?

MS. FORSBERG: I handed it already.

MR. KARACSONYI: Did I hand it already?

MS. FORSBERG: You did over there. But no?

THE COURT: Let's get that one corder done before we
lose it and then --

MR. KARACSONYI: Maybe I put it back away. Okay.

kay. Here it is, Your Honor. It's signed by everybody. We
lso were -- a couple of other just housekeeping matters. I
hink we're waiting a decision on whether he can deduct a
ealth insurance from the Lindell income 1in an accounting of

hat she's owed from Lindell. And I -- I just wanted to bring
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hat to the Court's --

THE COURT: Is that --

MR. KARACSONYI: -- attention.

THE COURT: Was that order that was recently
ubmitted to me last month? Or no, for the -- was that from
he October hearing or --

MR. KARACSONYI: I think this was the one you took
nder advisement.

MR. DICKERSON: You tock under submission.

THE COURT: August 16th?

MR. DICKERSON: You took this under submission.

THE COURT: At the August 16th order? Because 1

Ithink I have a draft on my desk.

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me check this. Let me check
fi- -

MR. KARACSONYI: I think it was --

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

MR. KXARACSONYI: -- from August.

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: And my law clerk's gone today, so what
is it for -- that was for the --

MR. KARACSONYI: Was it August?

MR. LUSZECK: I'm not sure. I just know there is a
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ouple of competing orders from different hearings.

MR. KARACSONYI: From October 21st there were
ompeting orders. I knew —-

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah.

MR. KARACSONYI: -- that. There were two competing
rders from October 21st and --

THE COURT: I thought I signed one of those, no? I
thought I had signed a competing order I thought.

MR. KARACSONYI: I haven't seen one yet.

MS. FORSBERG: And we haven't seen it.

MR. KARACSONYI: And then there's -- there was --

THE CQURT: That's the one from the Lindell?

MR. KARACSONYI: -- one issues taken under
dvisement, Lindell expenses and accounting and what she's
wed from Lindell.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me check those. My law
lerk's not in the office but I'll check it. But I know I had
he competing orders. I thought I signed one of those, but
ot only the August one. We Jjust did a -- my review. So
e'll get that out for you. Anything else before we jump
ight inte it? Do you want a brief opening statement?

MR. SOLCMCON: Your Honor, I we filed cross motions
for summary judgment. We fully briefed this issue. Unless

you want it, I would propose we just put the testimony on and
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e'll argue it again.
MR. KARACSONYI: That's fine with me.
THE COURT: You okay with that?
MS. FORSBERG: Yes, Your Honor.
THE CQURT: Are we ready to go?

MR. SOLOMON: Yes, we are. 1 really don't know who

ras the burden here, but I don't care. 1I'll be glad to start.
MR. KARACSONYI: I'm glad to start too.

MR. SOLOMCN: I mean -—-

THE CQOURT: Does it matter?

MR. SOLOMON: All right. All right. Mr. Nelson, do

you want to take the stand?

THE COURT: OQkay. Mr. Nelson, right up there and
e'll get you -- you can bring your water up there if you want
Er. Nelson so you --
MR. LUSZECK: This stack has one for the Judge and
-- oh, sorry.

THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear the testimony
ou're about to give in this action shall be the truth, the
hole truth and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

ERIC NELSON
alled as a witness on behalf of the Intervener and being
first duly sworn, testified as follows on:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
THE CLERK; Please state your name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Eric Nelson.
THE COURT: Why don't we canvass my proposed

Eitnesses to see if they ever testified before but I know you

ave, so I think we partake of that. Counsel, you may begin
At your pleasure.

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, my understanding I want to
flconfirm before we get --

MR. KARACSONYI: Has he been sworn in?

MR. SOLOMON: -- going is that everybody has our

inder of proposed exhibits including Your Honor. Should be
n official one the Court has with a list, a courtesy copy,
inder for Your Honor. The witness now has one and counsel
as one.
THE CQURT: Everybody's got copies? Okay. Yeah.
es, he's been sworn in.
Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q Mr. Nelson, would you turn toc Exhibit 1 in that
inder?
A Yes, I have it,
MR. SOLOMON: Well, I thought he was sworn in.
MS. FORSBERG: Did you swear him in?

THE COURT: Did you swore him?
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CLERK: Yes.
COURT: Yeah, they swore him up.

FORSBERG: ©h, okay. Sorry. You did that when

SOLOMON: I thought I heard that.
LUSZECK: Okay. I wasn't sure.
FORSBERG: I wasn't sure.
LUSZECK: Thank you.

right. What is Dynasty Development Management,

A That's an LLC that purchased the racetrack at

yoming Downs,

a racetrack.

Q Okay. When was it formed?

A It was formed April 25th of 2011.

Q Okay. And the racetrack wasn't purchased for many

onths thereafter, is that correct?

A Yes,

it was designed for a holding company just in

he event that I did purchase property we would put it in an

LC.

Q Okay. Is that one of the ELN Trust ordinary --

MR.
THE
MR.

he objection.

KARACSONYI: Objection, leading.
COURT: Overruled. I take it --

SOLOMON: I didn't have a question out before
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Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q

Does ELN routinely form LLCs for purposes ¢of having

hem available to perform transactions in the futures?

A

Q

A

Q

Yes.
And this is one instance of that?
Yes,

And there was another Dynasty involved in this case.

hat was the name of that Dynasty entity?

A

Dynasty Development Group which the -- was the

ississippi assets. BAnd it gets confusing that's for sure.

Q

A

Q

Did Dynasty Development Management, LLC, the one

that's shown in Exhibit 1 have anything to do with that group?

Nothing.

Now under this coperating agreement --

MR. SOLOMON: Well, we offer Exhibit 1, Your Honor.
That's your signature on the bottom as manager?
Yes.

MR. KARACSONY1: No cbjection.

MR. SOLOMON: Qffer 1.

THE COURT: No objection. Hereby admitted as

xhibit Number 1.

Y MR.

Q

(Intervener's Exhibit 1 admitted)

SOLOMON:

It indicates that the Eric L. Nelson Nevada trust is
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he initial sole member, is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And at the time this entity was formed in or about
Bpril of 2011 did 1t have any assets?
A No.

Q Does the ELN Trust -- I know it says the initial

ole member, but was the ELN Trust the sole member of this
ntity at formation-?

A Yes.

Q Has Lynita or LSN Trust ever possessed a membership
interest in this entity?

A No.

Q All right. You got a head of me a little bit by
your answer in the opening question, but did Dynasty ever
hcquire any property?

A Up to this time, no.

Q Ever.
A No.

MR. KARACSONYI: Would just —-- which Dynasty are we

-—- are we just going to refer to this as Dynasty for the rest

MR. SQLOMON: That was my intention since the other
lbne doesn't have any role in it, is that okay?

MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, that's fine.
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MR. SOLOMON: All right.

MR, KARACSONYI: I just want to make sure we're

lear.
Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q Do you understand that when I'm talking about
ynasty now unless I make a change I'm talking about Dynasty
evelopment Management, LLC.
A Nec.
Q Right?
A Right. I'm sorry.
Q Listen to the question. After this date did it ever

acquire property, ever?

A The racetrack.

Q Thank you. When did you first become aware of the

pportunity to reacquire Wyoming Downs again?

A I think it was about 30 -- possibly up to 60 days

efore the auction.

Q Okay. And how did you learn about the opportunity

o perhaps require it?

A Not guite sure, but I think someone called me or I
read it in the newspaper or -- or an article was sent to me.
Not —-- not really quite clear on that.

Q All right. Would you take a look at Exhibit 27

A Yes.
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Q

Do you recall ever seeing an advertisement such as

his announcing the auction of this property?

A

Q

ut about
A

ut maybe

Yes.

Does that refresh your recollection of how you found
it?

Well, this is one source. Definitely I saw this.

somebody called me on it too and I can't recall. So

T apologize.

Q

And Exhibit 2 indicates that the auction was going

o take place on Wednesday, November 16th, 2011. Was that in

fact the date that the auction occurred?

A

Q
indicates
400, 000.
uction?

A

Q
orth the

A

Q

A

Yes.
Now the article also in that same first paragraph
that there was going to be a minimum bid of

Were you aware of that prior to the time of the

Yes.

Did you believe that Wyoming Downs racetrack may be
$400, 000 minimum bid?

I believed it was.

Why?

Just because it has, you know, some land value, the

infrastructure there. And I thought it was worth 400.

Q

All right. What if anything did you do to
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investigate the opportunity to purchase that property?

2|| A Well, I went through the due diligence package and

3 [just refreshed myself on the facility itself.

4 Q You have of course been aware of that facility in

5 lcthe past and through the trust that owned that property.

6 A Yes.

7 Q What had happened to that property since you last

8 were familiar with it?

9 A They operated at several years and they closed it

10 [down for I think three, four years. And so it was just a -- a

1
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13
14
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All

MR.

MR.

MR.

THE

THE

MS.

vacant racetrack.

right. Would you turn to Exhibit 372

SOLOMON: Do you have any objection to Exhibit

KARACSONYI: No.
SOLOMON: Offer 2, Your Honor.

COURT: Hereby admitted -- admitted as Exhibit

(Intervener's Exhibit 2 admitted)
COURT: Ms. Forsberg, do you have any objection?

FORSBERG: No objection, Your Honor.

Y MR. SOLOMON:

0
22
umber 2.
Q

All

right. Turning to Exhibit 3, this appears to

ay it's an auction services registration form and it contains
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A

Q

A

yvour name for the entity Dynasty and your title as manager.

ZIPnd is that your signature to the right where it says manager?

Yes.
And what is this document?

It's a registration form when you sign up at the

uction that you just, you know, they give you disclosures on

uyer and seller.

Q

Okay. And it's dated November 16, 2011. Is that

ruly dated?

A

Yes.

MR. SOLOMON: We offer 3, Your Honor.

MR. KARACSONYI: No objection.

MS. FORSBERG: No objection.

THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit Number 3.

{Intervener's Exhibit 3 admitted)

16 |BY MR. SOLCMON:

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

uction?

idz

Q

A

Q

Was any money required to participate in the

That had a cashier's check for $75,000.

And did you present a cashier's check for $75,000 to

Yes.
And where did you obtain this 75,0007?

Came from the BanOne properties but in essence from
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y trust,

Q And would you turn to Exhibit 147

A Yes.

Q And does that reflect that $75,000 withdrawal from
[the BanOne, LLC account on November 15th the day before the
auction?

A Yes.

0 And was that money used to acquire the cashler's

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection to leading, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Y MR. SOLCMON:
0 What was the 75,000 used for?
A For the earnest money deposit to bid on the
roperty.
Q And is that reflected in Exhibit 152
A Yes.

MR. KARACSONYI: Let me just object, Your Honor,
his wasn't produced during discovery. What are you referring
o7

SOLOMON: I can't hear you.
DICKERSON: What exhibit?
SOLOMON: 15.

KARACSONYI: Same objection, Your Honor. It
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asn't presented during discovery.

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor just entered an order
aying that it was admissible. Anything that was produced --
ttached to the pleadings or discovery --

MR. KARACSONYI: During the discovery process and
rior, not --

MR. SOLOMON: Read the order yourself, Your Honor.

It's very clear. It says anything that's attached as exhibits
o0 our pleadings or in produced was the only thing that would
e allowed at this hearing. This was attached prior to the
rior hearing, they're aware of it and --

MR. KARACSONYI: This is -- this is --

THE COURT: Is this the two exhibits that you had
bjected to at the last motion --

MR. KARACSONYI: Yes, exactly.

THE COURT: -- saying it had not been promoted -- it
ad not been prepared to you -- presented to you in discovery
nd then it came in on a motion and you --

MR. KARACSONYI: Exactly. We objected to it. And
he reason is because if -- after the deposition and after the
losing of discovery you start attaching documents to papers
ith the Court. Guess what, we don't have an opportunity to
onduct discovery with those documents. We never had the

enefit of them. 1In fact, they refused to provide all bank
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tatements during the course of discovery as I can show the
ourt in our exhibits. I would be happy to go through those
if they wanted -- if they -- 1f they disagree, but I don't
hink they will.

MR. SOLOMON: Well, I will, because they were
roduced to Mr. Bertsch and they're in his report and he
eport the $75,000 back in early 2012. So the Court -- and
hey have been fully aware of this for months and months. And

even before the -- way before anything happened with respect
to this issue. It's a non-disputed fact Your Honor that this
575,000 was in fact withdrawn from ELN Trust assets and
deposited and then repaid shortly thereafter.

MR. KARACSONYI: It's actually Your Honor, it is --

hat -- if they want to refer to Mr. Bertsch's report, it does
how that monies went from the ELN Trust towards the Wyoming
urchase. But regardless of the fact, if I request bank
tatements, okay, and they won't'provide them to me, they
efused. They categorically refused and I can -- we have the
iscovery and we can all read it together that they cannot
ely on those documents. It is inherently unfair for them to
tart presenting documents that they only provide éfter the
iscovery.

THE COURT: Let's just talk about Exhibit 15 because

e kind of skipped over 14. I wasn't =-- I --
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MR. KARACSONYI: 14 too was never provided. Now if
hey want to go into Mr. Bertsch's report and rely upon that,
hen that's a different story. But to start presenting new
hecks and new documents that they didn't provide prior to

iscovery that I didn't have the opportunity to ask Mr. Nelson

ls not -- isn't equitable. And they're redacted. They didn't
ven -- these aren't even true and correct -- they can't --
hey -- this isn't even a true and correct copy. They kept --

hey chose what they would redact. How could you rely on
his?
THE COURT: Why don't we move forward on this. So

I'm not going to admit Exhibit 14 and 15 at this time. Let's
et our testimony and that may resolve with the testimony and
ross examination. I got to look at the discovery, because
nd if it was not provided to you and a fair opportunity on
hat, then one sanction the Court can is not allow it to be
dmitted. But why don't we move forward at this time. I'm
ot going to admit 14 and 15 at this moment so that way we get
oving forward so we don't get bogged down.
Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q All right, Mr. Nelson. Who -- you attended the
uction on that date, correct?

A Yes. Yes, sir.

Q And did you make a bid --
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A Yes.

Q -- on behalf of the ELN -- I'm sorry, on behalf of
ynasty?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And were you the -- was Dynasty the winning

id?
A Yes.
Q And how much was the bid?
A $400,000.
Q Now would you turn to Exhibit 47
MR. SOLOMON: Did I offer 37?7 I'm sorry.
MR. KARACSONYI: Yes, you did. It was stipulated to
00.
THE COURT: 2 and 3 have been admitted.
MR. SOLOMON: Been admitted? Thank you.
Q Exhibit 4, can you tell the Court what that is?
A This is the real estate purchase and sales
greement.

MR. KARACSONYI: And I'll streamline this for you.
There's no objection to that.

MS. FORSBERG: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 4 will be admitted as well without
lbbjection.

(Intervener's Exhibit 4 admitted)
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Y MR. SOLCMON:

Q All right. The first page of -- if appears to be a
ummary statement. Let's go through that. It says the date
f the agreement was November 16th, 2011, the same date as the

auction.

A Yes.

Q And the seller was Wyoming Racing, LLC. And that

was your -- the seller?
A Yes.
Q And the purchaser was Dynasty Development --
|| A Yes.

Q -- correct? And it reflects that your high bid of
400,000. What is the $40,000 below in item six?

y:8 A broker premium or buyer premium.

Q So the total purchase price reflected here was

40,000. That would have been your opening bid plus the buyer
remium, correct?

A Yes.

Q And the initial earnest money deposit was the
575,000 you testified that you gave as a cashier's check?
A Yes.
Q And it indicates the closing date was going to be
IPecember i6, 2011, do you see that?

A Yes.
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Q Now Exhibit B to that Exhibit 4, is a list of

guipment, fixtures and personal property. Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q Did you try and inspect the property to determine
hether or not that was there and what condition it might be

in?

A After the sale I looked at the inventory.

Q And what was the -- what was your observation
elative to that?

A Part of it was there. Part wasn't very, very poor
ondition and I didn't put any value on it.

Q Now how did Dynasty intend to finance the property
t the time that it entered into real estate purchase and
ettlement adgreement?

A I had hope to retrieve 50 percent of the -~
nfortunately Dynasty Development Group money that was being
eld in a blocked account trying to -- oh, I thought I could
et that released from the Court.

Q Okay. And that was the approximate 1.5 million
ollars that was in David Stephen's (ph) trust account?

Fa Yes.

0 And what was the source of those funds?

A They were from the Silver Slipper transaction which
as a gaming property that was held exclusively by Wyoming --
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xcuse me, by Dynasty Development Group which was owned
ntirely by the Eric L. Nelson Trust.

Q And did the ELN Trust file a motion requesting that
his Court release the funds from Mr. Stephen's trust account
to finance the purchase of Wyoming Downs.
A I believe so.

And did you attend the hearing?

Yes.

0
A
Q And what happened with respect to that request?
A It was denied.

0 What position did Lynita take regarding utiliziﬁg
the 1.5 million or any part of it to purchase Wyoming Downs?
A I believe they were adamantly opposed to it.

Q And after the release of the 1.5 million dollars was

enied, was there any c¢olloquy that you had with the Court
elative to the possibility of buying it with other source,
ith other funds?

A I'm sorry, what was the question?

Q Yes, after the Court denied the release of the 1.5,
id you have any collogquy with the Court relative to the
otentiality of using other funds or other resources to
cquire that property?

A Well, I asked the Court if I could purchase a

roperty if we found funds ocutside of that, because the Court
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aid you couldn't use any of the funds --
MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, hearsay.
A -- for that. I'm sorry.

THE COURT: As far as you saying this is on the

record, I'll have to look at it then --

MR. SOLOMCN: And it's never hearsay if it's what he

says, so --

MR, KARACSONYI: So he was saying --

MR. DICKERSON: It is hearsay.

MR. KARACSONYI: -~ what the Judge said.

THE COURT: &2And I'm --

MR. DICKERSON: And it is hearsay.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: He can't offer any statements of
imself. And we could offer statements of his, but he cannot
ffer statements of his. And that's -- and that's the --
hat's the Rules of Evidence. Pretty simple.

THE CQURT: ©On that motion on that, I remember what

I -- what happened at that motion. I remember I denied it,

ut I don't remember we talked about the purchase cutside, but
I'1ll look at that. 1I'll review that tape again. We have so
any motions that I -- I know we did -- deny that. I don't
now if we -~ I don't remember talking about purchasing

utside of that, but I'll look at that record.
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MR. SOLOMON: COkay.

2|| THE WITNESS: Well, do I finish the question?

3 MR. SOLOMON: Sure.

4 THE WITNESS: My understand --

5 MR. DICKERSON: We have an objection, Judge. And I
6__

7 THE COURT: Sustained. I don't think -- I'll look
8- I'll look at what happened on that. I'1ll look at the total
9 |video on that to see on that, because I --

10 [BY MR, SOLOMON:

11 Q I'1l ask it this way. What was your understanding
12 fof what you could possibly do after that hearing relative to
13 lthe acquisition?

14 MR. DICKERSON: Which we also object. His

15 tnderstanding has no relevance, Your Honor. It's what

16 [lhappens.

17 MR. SOLOMON: It really -- certainly has relevance.
I8 THE COURT: Overruled. I think he can give -- it's
19 lrather not for the truth contained there and what his

20 Junderstanding or his strategy I guess he could say for the

21 [purchase of it.

22 THE WITNESS: My understanding was if I wanted to
23 [purchase Wyoming Downs and save the $75,000 deposit that I

24 lwould have to find outside financing and that was going to be
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cceptable to the Court and to the trust.

Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Okay. Were you aware of any injunction whatscever
that would prevent the ELN Trust or its entities from
bcquiring properties at that point?

A Definitely not.

Q Was Dynasty able to close within the 30 days of the
real estate agreement of -- of December 16, 20137

A No.

Q I'm sorry, 2011. The answer 1is no?

A No.

Q Was the $75,000 deposit in jeopardy if you couldn't

lose or extend?

A Close, yes.

Q And what did you do to try and keep that transaction
blive at that point?

A Ch, I started to seek out third party fund --
funding from hard money lenders and see if I could
fkcollateralize the facility itself.

Q What did you do about the closing date that was set
for December 167

A I tendered an additional 510,000 I believe to -- or
rFffered 10,000 to extend a 30 day extension to find funding.

hnd release the $75,000 to them.
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Q Would you turn to Exhibit 5? And do you recognize
his document titled addendum to purchase agreement?

A Yes.

Q And is that your signature on behalf of Dynasty on
ecember 1, 20117

A Yes.

MR. DICKERSON: Stipulated.
MR. SOLOMON: Offer Exhibit 5.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS. FORSBERG: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit Number 5.
{Intervener's Exhibit 5 admitted)
Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Is this the agreement by which you were able to
xtend the close of escrow from December 16th?

A Yes.

Q And the terms say that the close of escrow shall be
onored before January 6, 2012, is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q And the $75,000 that you had deposited as earnest
oney would be immediately released to the seller, was that
onev

A Yes.

Q And that you will pay an additional 10,000 upon
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lose of escrow for the granting of extension.

A Yes,

Q Does that refresh your recollection that you didn't
in fact have to pay the $10,000 at the time you got the
lextension but rather the 10,000 would be payable at close?

A That 1s correct.

Q Now after the hearing that eluded to or you sought

the release of -- part or all of the 1.5 million dollars, were
ILou able to obtain alternate financing?
A I was prior to the close of escrow. Prior to

January 6 I was.

Q And did ELN or Dynasty do to obtain an alternate

financing?

A We signed loan agreements against the racetrack
facility.

Q Okay. Were you able to locate a lender?

A Yes.

Q And who was that?

A Henderson Capital.

0 And what is Henderson Capital?

A They're a lending source basically in my opinion a

ard money lender.
Q Had you or ELN or dynasty have any prior

ransactions with Henderson?
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A No prior transactions.

Q And how did you find Henderson?

A They were on my list of people that have finding

hat I contacted.

Q And did Henderson Capital ultimately agree to fund

your purchase of Wyoming Downs?

A Yes.
Q Would you turn to Exhibit 6? Exhibit 6 appears to
e a copy of a promissory note in the principal amount of
700,000 dated January 4, 2012 and signed by you as the
anager of Dynasty on the same date. Do you recognize it as
such?
A Yes.
MR. SOLOMON: Offer 6, Your Honor.
MS. FORSBERG: No objection
MR. KARACSONYI: No objection.
THE COQURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit Number 6.
(Intervener's Exhibit 6 admitted)
Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q I -- in this promissory note, it indicates in the
first paragraph that the borrower Dynasty Development

anagement agrees to these terms says in the second paragraph

hat the loan is due and payable in 12 months from execution.

hat's the maturity date. Do you see that?
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A Yes.,

Q Then it goes on to say to induce creditor to extend
he aforementioned ican debtors agree to be creditor $100,000
ayable upon execution of this note which shall act as full
repayment of interest and fees related to the aforementioned
oan plus all reasonable third party costs. Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q All right. So Henderson Capital agreed to lend you
00, 000 but really cnly gave you 600,000 because they tock a
undred back to pay themselves, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now let me call your attention to the fifth

aragraph down. It says if upon completion of the 12 month

lcan period debtor fails to pay the outstanding principle

alance of this note, any late penalty or rate of interest on
he principal loan amount or outstanding principal balance

eretofore contemplated shall no longer apply and a rate of

interest equal to c¢ne and one-half percent monthly, 18 percent

nnually on the outstanding principal kalance shall apply. Do
ou see that provision?
A Tes.
Q Did that provision later come into play?
MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, Your Honor. He can't

estify about this. This is absolutely excluded. We
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equested all the documents related to any payout. We asked
im if they owed money. We requested all the bank statements
o show the servicing of the mortgage and they refused to
rovide 1t. He is excluded from testifying about this
ubject.

MR. SOLOMON: The question didn't even have to do
ith payout, Your Honor. The question has to do whether or
ot this provision became applicable.

MR. KARACSONYI: Would he like to —--

10 MR. SOLOMON: It had nothing to do with payments.
Il fPayments weren't made.
12 MR. KARACSONYI: Yes.

13 MR. SOLOMON: That's the whole paid.

14 MR. KARACSONYI: He's trying to get him to testify.
I5|Don't try to confuse it. I mean, the question is did -- was

16 jit paid -- basically the question is was it paid by the 12

17 jmonths or was there interest incurred. And the answer is

I8 [well, you didn't provide that in discovery. You refuse to

19 [provide it. So he can't testify to this.

20 MR, SOLOMON: What --

21 MR. KARACSONYI: The motion in limine covers it.

22 MR. SOLOMON: What would he provide that he didn't

23 lpay -- made payment, Your Honor? What would be provided that

24 fhe didn't make any payment?
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MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. Well, I can answer that
uestion. Let me --

MR. SOLOMON: In the addendum question.

MR. KARACSONYI: Let me answer the gquestion.

MR. SOLOMON: I'm in the addendum covers.

MR. KARACSONYI: Let me answer the question. We
sked for all the bank statements. If you give us the bank
tatements, we could verify and see whether payments were made
r not made. But if you won't give us the bank statements to
how whether payments were made or not made on the loan, then
e can't obviously confirm. We can't even ask him about it.
hen we ask him about it, it's outside the scope.

50 he's not allowed to testify in this subject. I'm
appy -- I have in our book the request for production and I'm
appy to sit here and open them up and read them together and
ead their response. And I've got all their responses with a

lack of bank statements. And we can go through that and see
hat they denied us all this information.

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, this argument is

fallacious. The -- it's already been covered by a hearing

hat said we can't introduce any evidence that they asked and
e refused to give. And so we're not preventing any documents
n this. We didn't ask the question in any deposition.

idn't seek a motion to compel. Didn't subpoena any bank
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records. There's absolutely no support and law for the type

f breadth of sanction that he's trying to ask this court to
0 at this point. The Court's entered a sanction. It's in
he order. We're complying with the order. BAnd the order is
lear that I can't ask him a question that was directly asked
- asked of him at deposition that he refused to answer, but
0 say that because we didn't produce all bank statements or
- or something like that and therefore we can't talk about
hat he has personal knowledge of goes well beyond any
anction order that this Court has ordered or I believe could
rder.

MR. KARACSONYI: The order says that any evidence
information that wasn't provided. Basically what he's trying
to do is say -- is do this. ©Okay. 1It's like if he -- if we
sk for January's -- all the bank statements, he doesn't give

it to us. Then he comes here and says well, what's -- what

id you do from this bank account in January. Well, you
idn't ask him what he did from that bank account in January.
he point is they excluded -- they deprived us of the
information to be able to verify anything -- any testimony on
this subject.
And listen, the request for production is clear.
was asked. Can you please provide us -- we asked several

times in each of them in request number six for vyear end
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financial statements. Request four, accounting records.
equest two, all financial statements related to Dynasty and
yoming Downs. Request seven was bank account or investment
ccount statements. And they refused to give us those. They
old us it was outside the scope. They sat there and then at
eposition supported Mr. Nelson's dictation of what's outside
he scope.

So to allow them to testify on this subject that
they wouldn't give you documents related to is gross
inequitable. 1In fact, we do have legal authority. The Court
fheard it last time and -- and considered it was Blanco v.
Blanco. It's a very recent brand new supreme court case where
they reiterated the fact that they have held that it is
inequitable to allow a party to present evidence that they
refused to provide during discovery.

MR. DICKERSON: Moreover, Your Honor --

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor --

MR. DICKERSON: Moreover, they're off -- they're
ttempting to offer parole evidence with respect to a document
utside the four corners of the document. The document speaks

for itself.

MR. SOLOMON: No, we're not. We're -- I'm asking
im whether or not he made any payments. It's =--

MR. DICKERSON: The document --
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MR. SOLOMON: -- zero payments.

MR. DICKERSON: The document speaks for itself.
MR. SOLOMON: It does not speaks for itself.

MR. DICKERSON: And it provides as to when payment

is to be made and he's offering parole evidence purportedly

hat -- what I would imagine is to go outside the -- the four
orners of that document and say no, we didn't comply with
hat. But they didn't provide us with any documentation to

support that.

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, it's a negative. There's
o document that would support it. The only question I asked
t the deposition is how much is still owed on the Henderson
apital Group, LLC on the original $700,000. And that was
ealt with way after the divorce.

MR. KARACSONYI: And you said --

MR. SOLOMON: So with that, it was outside the scope
ecause it had nothing to do with the acquisition.

THE COURT: At this time I'm going to overrule it.
e can answer questions on that. I'm not going to admit
xhibit Number 6. I'm going to need to look at your book of
verything you discovered. I can always strike it from the
record —-

MR. KARACSONYI: So Exhibit 6 ~-

THE COURT: -- so we can get this done.
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MR. KARACSONYI: -- is -- is fine., It's the
uestion —--
THE COURT: Just the testimony?

MR. KARACSONYI: -- about what -- see, can I at

least tell Your Honor what -- what we asked and -- and here it

is. We asked in our request for production we said and -- and

his -- there is a number that would cover this, but we said
lease produce any and all bank account or investment account
tatements from January 1, 2011 to present date for all bank
nd investment accounts from which monies have been expended,
ithdrawn, transferred and/or leveraged from the purchase of
yoming Downs or operation cof Wyoming Downs or purchase or
peration of any other real property or gaming venture in the
tate of Wyoming during such time period.

We also asked on request eight please produce a copy
f all documents relating to or otherwise pertaining to the
urchase, sale, encumbrance and/or transfer of any interest in
he real property and race track known as Wyoming Downs or any
ther real property that's situated in the state of Wyoming

uring 2011, 2012 and the current calendar year to date.

Included in this request is all document related to the

urchase and sale of Wyoming Downs or any other real property
ituated in the state of Wyoming included but not limited to

11 closing statement, deed, mortgage, other evidence of
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indebtedness and ownership.
We also asked for anything else pertaining and we

asked for all their financial records. How can he say that we

idn't make payments when he won't give us the financial
tatements? BAnd we can go through those requests too. I

ean, the year end profits. Anything. Everyone of these was
ald no. I mean, a copy of -- a copy of all financial
tatements prepared for Dynasty Developments was request

unber two or Wyoming Downs. A copy of all tax information

nd tax returns was request number three. All accounting
ecords, general ledgers, general journals, cash disbursements
for Dynasty and the racetrack was request number four.

He won't give us those but then he's going to sit
ere and testify well, I didn't make any payments. Well,
uess what. You don't -- we had no change to verify that. We
ave nothing to look at. We have nothing.

MR. DICKERSON: And this is a witness the Court has
lready found ncot to be credible on at least three or four
ifferent occasions.

MR. KARACSONYI: So that's our objection.

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, we are not admitting any

jof those records that we --
THE COURT: Over -- overruled.

MR. SQ0LOMON: -- used for this, any of it.
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THE COURT: You can ask -- ask him the question.

2|hhat probative value it has this Court will take appropriately

Jlland I will look at all the discovery requests that you had

4 Ispecifically, but we'll testify and the Court can determine

5 fthe admissibility of any of his testimony. I can strike it.
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e don't have a jury here, but let's get this moving forward

n that. And again, the Court has made findings on that as

far as the probative value, based history. They cannot

ubstantiate with corroborating evidence, that would go to the
robative value. You can continue, counsel.
MR. SOLOMON: Thank you.

Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Would you turn to Exhibit 8 -- I'm sorry, 7.
A Yes.
Q And do you recognize this as a copy of a mortgage,

ower of a sale that you executed on behalf of Dynasty on
anuary 12th, 2004 to provide a security for the $700,000 loan
xtended by Henderson?
A Yes.

MR. SOLOMON: What's that?

MR. KARACSONYI: You have the date wrong.

MR. SOLCOMON: Oh.

MR. KARACSONYI: You said January 12, 2004.

MR. SQOLOMON: Sorry, January 4, 2012. Apparently
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ransposed the question.
Q Do you understand the question with that change?
A Yes.
MR. SOLCOMON: Offer --
Did you sign that?

I did.

MR. SOLOMON: Offer 7, Your Honor.
MS. FORSBERG: No objection
MR. KARACSONYI: No objection.
THE COURT: As to 6, did you object to 6 being
admitted, the promissory note? I know you object to the
testimony, but did you object to --
I| MR. SOLOMON: They objected to neither, Your Honor.
They stipulated to --

MR. DICKERSON: No objection.

MR. KARACSONYI: We stipulated to 6.

{Intervener's Exhibit 7 admitted)

MR. SOLOMON: I'm sorry, I didn't hear, Your Honor.
Is —— is 7 admitted?

THE CQOURT: Yeah, they stipulated.

MR. SQLOMON: Thank you.

THE CQOURT: Yeah.

IFY MR. SOLOMON:

Q All right. Would you turn to Exhibit 872
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A Okay.
Q And is this document entitled amendment to operating

bgreement of Dynasty Development Management, LLC executed by

ou on January 5, 2012 on behalf of the Eric L. Nelson Trust?
A Yes.
Q And it's also executed by Lana Martin as
istribution trustee.
A Yes.
Q And what was the purpose of this amendment for the
perating agreement?
A It was just one of the requested documents that --
that Henderson Capital Group requested.
Q Okay. And the third paragraph of that first page of

that document indicates that Henderscon is appointed as a

o-manager with a limited rcle that's defined in there. Do
ou see that?
A Yes,
Q So the purpose was to give them some control of the
ntity while the loan was outstanding?
A Yes,
MR. SOLOMON: Did I offer --
MS. FORSBERG: You didn't.
MR. SOLOMON: ~- 87 Qffer it now.

MR. KARACSONYI: OQkay.
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MS. FORSBERG: No objection.
MR. KARACSONYI: No objection.
THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit 8.

{Intervener's Exhibit 8 admitted)

Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Can you turn to Exhibit 107

A Okay.

Q Is that your signature on the bottom of Page 3 of --
f Dynasty?

A Yes.

Q And is this the final as reflected on Page 1 the
final settlement statement or the acquisition of Wyoming Downs
y Dynasty?

A Yes.

MR. SOLOMON: We would offer 10, Your Honor.

MS. FORSBERG: Noc objection.

MR. KARACSONYI: ©No objection except only to the
xtent that -- that we didn't get any statements to verify any
f this cash to the borrower. So if they go outside the scope
f that, they -- that's for the purpose of just showing the
ettlement statement that if they —-

THE CQURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit 10 with the

(Intervener's Exhibit 10 admitted)
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Y MR. SOLCMON:

Q All right. Let's go through the first page.
Indicates that the -- on Line 101, do you see that?

A Yes.

Q The contract sells for 440,000. That was the bid

rlus the buyer's premium, correct?

A Yes,

0 And it says settlement charges on Line 103 of
530,8397

A Yes.

Q And additional funds for extension, that was the
greement that you signed saying you would have paid --
ynasty payment at your $10,000 at close?

A Yes.

0 And so the grcss amount due from borrower shown on
ine 20 of $480,839, do you see that?

A Yes.

Q And then on Line 201 it says deposit earnest money
f 75,000, that's the 75,000 we talked about earlier, correct?

A Yes.

Q And it says the principle amount of new loan

600,000. Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q That would be the $700,000 note minus the hundred
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housand you prepaid?

A That's correct.

Q And in Lines 2 -- 211, it says there is an
djustment for taxes in the amount of a hundred and

seventy-five dollars and forty-six cents. Do you see that?

A Yes.
Q Indicates then that Line 220 that the total amount
of paid for -- or for borrower would be $675,175.46. Do you
ee that?
A Yes.
Q All right. And then the reconciliation of that at
he bottom, it says that -- takes that $480,839 from Line 120,
einserts it in Line 309 and takes the $675,175.46 from line
20 and reasserts it at 302 showing a difference of
5194, 336.46. Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q So at the close of escrow based upon the loan you
ere actually able to pull out about a hundred -- a little
ver a hundred and ninety-four thousand dollars out of the
quity of the property, is that correct?

A Well, that included the $75,000 earnest money
eposit. So from the lender side of it it would be a hundred
nd ninety-four thousand minus the 75, but approximately --

hat is that, a hundred and twenty thousand dollars of new
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oney.
Q And did you pay back the $75,000 to the loan?
A Yes.

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection. Objection. He's -- he
idn't produce any documents related to that. He didn't show
ny of that. He's got nothing to prove that.

MR. SOLOMON: I don't have to produce it. He has
ersonal knowledge that he paid back $75,000 and they have the
ocument and it was attached to -- as an exhibit to pleadings

in the motion for summary judgment.

MR. KARACSONYI: Exactly.

MR. SOLOMON: But more importantly, the failure to
roduce a document does not mean that you -- meaning under
our order because it's explicit that you can't produce the
ocument, but I don't think that's applicable here because
hat order says if it wasn't attached to pleadings. It
oesn't say attached to pleadings prior to any particular date
umber one. It says more importantly it does -- if he has
ersonal knowledge that the money was paid back, he's allowed
o testify to that whether or not the Court allows him to
roduce the document.

THE COURT: Well, I think he can testify as far as
ow much probative value the Court gives on it without

upporting documentation I guess i1s for the Court to determine
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ased on credibility and other issues on that. So --

MR. DICKERSON: That's our problem is we are left in
h position -- we -- we have nothing to show otherwise and that
—— that's a problem is we're dealing with a man whose
redibility has already been determined.

MR. SOLOMON: Hogwash. They could have brought any
otion they wanted to. They chose to sit on their rear ends
nd do nothing, Your Honor, and rely upon this type of
rgument.

MR. DICKERSON: No, it's not --

MR. SOLOMON: That's not good.

THE COURT: You can go.

MR. DICKFRSON: 1It's not our burden. It is not our
urden. If -- if that's --

MR. SOLOMON: It is your burden --

MR, DICKERSON: If that's the choice they choose to

take.

MR. SOLOMON: -- if you deny his testimony.

THE COURT: You can --

MR. DICKERSON: They've dug the holes for
hemselves.

MR. KARACSCONYI: Oh, the order?

THE COURT: Continue the questioning. And again, as
far as the probative value and the stuff with the documents,

D-09-411537-D NELSON 05/30/2014 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
56

RAPP1399




10
1
12
13
14
I5
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

this Court will cooperate in any final determination.

MR. KARACSONYI: I didn't realize I had it in front

f me.
Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q Would you turn to Exhibit 157
A Yes.
MR. KARACSCNYI: You've already ruled on this. I
ean ~-
MR. SOLOMON: 1I'm sorry, 16.
MR. KARACSONYI: Same objection as before, Your
onor. You already ruled against 15 and 14,
MR. SOLCMON: ©Not ruled at all. I didn't even ask
he questicn.

MR. KARACSONYI: For the same reasons. You =-- but

MR. SOLOMON: I haven't asked a question yet,

ounsel.
THE CQURT: 16 is it? You can --
MR. SOLOMON: Thank you.
Y MR. SOLCMON:
Q When did you pay the $75,000 back to BanOne?
MR. KARACSCONYI: The same objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. KARACSONYI: You know, we can't verify it
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ecause he's not giving us the documents, the supporting
ocuments.

MS. FORSBERG: The Court's overruled.

THE COURT: But he can answer.

THE WITNESS: February 8th, 2012.

MR. KARACSONYI: This is improper, Your Honor. He's
efreshing his recollection before he even asked him the
uestion. He's got documents in front of him.

THE COURT: And why don't you testify from your
emory first without looking at the documents.

THE WITNESS: Sometime after the close of escrow
ithin 30 days I believe approximately.

Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Okay. And did you use some of that hundred and
inety-four thousand dollars that we just saw that you got out
f the close of escrow to do that?

MR. KARACSCONYI: Objection.

A Yes.

MR, KARACSONYI: We requested those financial
ocuments during discovery and were provided with them.

THE COURT: Objection noted. He can -- he can
estify and the documents itself will not be admitted and it
ecomes a probative value based on credibility and other

issues in the issues this Court. The Court will incorporate
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hat all in its findings. You can continue, counsel.

MR. SOLOMON: I would offer 16, Your Honor.

MS. FORSBERG: No objection.

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection. That's the same as 14
nd 15. Wasn't produced. They're redacted statements. You
- you can't -- this isn't --

THE COURT: Sustained. It will not be admitted at
his time.

MR. SOLOMON: Okay. Can I at least respond Your

THE COURT: Sure.

12 MR. SOLOMON: -- for the record?

13 THE COQURT: Sure.

14 MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor has signed an order and on
15 lPage 3 of the order, Line 13 it says it's further ordered that
16 [Lynita's request for a motion in limine is granted in part.

17 J[The Court will exclude a trial any testimony, information,

18 [[evidence neither requested regarding Dynasty Development

19 [Management, LLC and Wyoming Downs during the course of

20 [discovery which was not previously provided in response to

2] |discovery or in filings with the court. This was provided in
22 [filings with the court and that question --

23 MR. KARACSONYI: I agree. Previously provided. It

24 [talks about her requesting during discovery and anything they
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reviously provided I agree. Hey, we had it then. We had at
east an opportunity to look at it but it wasn't previously

rovided. When it was provided, it's after discovery closed.

If -- if that's the position, I mean, then that would be a

reat strategy for everybody in every trial. Just start
roducing doc -- move for summary judgment.
THE COURT: He's just raising the record. For this

ime 16's not going to be admitted. The testimony can stand
y itself.
Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q All right. Indicated that $75,000 was paid from the
undred and ninety-four thousand dollars coming out of escrow.
hat did Dynasty do with the remaining hundred and nineteen

housand three hundred and thirty-six dollars and forty-six

ents?
A The -- for the repairs at the racetrack and
peration --
MR. KARACSONYI: Objection.
A -- expenses.

MR. KARACSONYI: Same objection.

THE COURT: Overruled. You can --

MR. KARACSONYI: He wouldn't give us financial
tatements on the racetrack.

THE COURT: As far as he -- he can testify as far as
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hat the value the Court puts on it based on -- without
upporting documentation we'll get to the probative value on
hat, but let's get this moving forward, so --
THE WITNESS: So the expenses -- to cover expenses

nd operations of the racetrack.
Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Okay. And was that a requirement of the mortgage,
xhibit 7, at section 47

A Yes.

Q And pursuant to that terms of Exhibit 7 mortgage,
ho was required to pay taxes on Wyoming Downs?

A Wyoming -- Dynasty Development Management.

Q And were those taxes paid?

A Yes.

Q And pursuant to the terms of the mortgage, was
ynasty required to maintain insurance on Wyoming Downs?

A Yes.

Q And were those paid?

A Yes.

Q All right. Was Dynasty able to repay the promissory
ote when initially due on January 4, 20132

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, Your Honor. They

ouldn't give us any of the financial statements. They

ouldn't give us any bank statements, nothing to verify this
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nswer to this question.

MR. SOLOMON: 1It's the same objection over and over
gain. 1It's the same argument.

MR. KARACSONYI: I have to make the --

MR. SOLOMON: 1It's the same --

THE COURT: And he still -- and he's got to make the
bjection to each one. The supreme court said there's no
ontinuing objection so he has to do it each time on that.
verruled at this time. As far as them, we're going to get
his stuff out there and I'll make findings. I'll exclude --
vidence is not proper on that. 1I'll go through on that and
ake detailed findings. But at least let's get a record so we

an get the matter resolved.

MR. SOLOMON: Thank you, Your Honor.
Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Was Dynasty able to pay the mortgage -- I'm sorry,
the promissory note when initially due under accordance of
this terms on January 4, 20137

A No.

Q Did you advise Henderson Capital that Dynasty could

ot pay?

A Yes.

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, hearsay.

MR. SOLCMON: What's the objection? I'm sorry.
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MR. KARACSONYI: Plus he didn't --

MS. FORSBERG: Hearsay.

MR. KARACSONYI: Again, the same objection. It's to
Irhe form of the question,

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, it's --

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. SOLOMON: -~ offered of fact.

THE COURT: Overruled. You can -- you ¢an answer

the question.

¥ MR. SOLOMON:

Q Pursuant to the terms of the promissory note which
is Exhibit 6 1f you go back for that -- I'm sorry? ©Oh, I'm
orry. I thought you did. Did you answer whether you advised
enderson Capital that you could not pay?

A Yes. Could not pay.

Q Now would you turn to Exhibit 6? The paragraph that
says 1f upon completion of the 12 month lcan period if debtor
fails to pay, what happened as a result of your inability to

[make the promissory note payment on as due on January 4th,

20137
MR. KARACSONYI: Objection.
A The interest increased to 18 --
MR. KARACSONYI: I just want to note my cbjection to
he question for the same basis that I've laid out.
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verruled.

THE COURT: Yeah, well, I'll take the objection.

You can --

THE WITNESS: The interest rate of 18 percent kicked

4 lin and they agreed to extend it.

5
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Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q

Would you turn to Exhibit 9? Is that a true and

orrect copy of the bill of sale that accompanied the purchase

A

Q

A
Q
ehalf of

A

Yes.

of the personal property associated with Wyoming Downs --

-- on or about January 5, 20127

Sorry, yes.

Is that your signature on the second page thereof on

Dynasty?

Yes.

MR. SOLOMON: Offer 9.

MS. FORSBERG: No objection.

THE COURT: No objections?

MR. DICKERSON: No objection.

MR, SOLOMON: Turn to Exhibit 11.
THE COURT: 9 will be admitted.

(Intervener's Exhibit 9 admitted)

Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q

Is Exhibit 11 a true and correct copy of a special

warranty deed that Dynasty received upon close of escrow from
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yoming Racing, LLC?

A Yes,

MR.

MR,

MS.

THE

SOLOMON:

Offer 11.

KARACSONYI: No objection.

FORSBERG

: No objection.

COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit 11.

Y MR. SOLOMON:

{Intervener's Exhibit 11 admitted)

Q Turn to Exhibit 12. Is Exhibit 12 a true and

orrect copy of an assignment and assumption agreement that

ou received at the close of escrow transferring the

12 lintangibles to Wyoming Downs to Dynasty?

13
14
15

16

18 |l
19

20

21

22

23

24

A Yes.

MR.

MS.

MR.

THE

MR.

MR.

SOLOMON:

FORSBERG

KARACSON

COURT:

KARACSON

SOLOMON:

Offer 12.
: No objection.
YI: Okay. No objection.
Hereby admitted as Exhibit 12.
{(Intervener's Exhibit 12 admitted)
YI: What did you describe it as?

It's an assignment and assumption of

he obligations related to the intangibles.

MR. KARACSONYI: From what? It says this is from

yoming Racing to --

MR.

SOLOMON:

Right.
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MR. KARACSCNYI: -- Dynasty.
MR. SOLOMON: Exactly.
MR. KARACSONYI: Oh.
Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q Do you believe that Lynita or the LSN Trust have any

interest in Wyoming Downs?

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, calls for a legal
conclusion.

THE COQURT: Overruled. He can give his opinion as
far as if they have any legal basis. The Court will decide,

ut he can give his opinion, I guess.
THE WITNESS: No, I didn't think she had any

interest whatsocever.
Y MR, SOLOMON:

Q Why not?

A Because we had two separate trusts. I believe that
y trust was -- was run in accordance to Mr. Bertsch and Mr.
erety had showed that the trusts were separated from funding.
I thought I had an -- an understanding with the Court that I
ould buy this outside of the LSN claim for community property
1f I didn't use any of those funds. It was a gaming property
that she was adamantly opposed to gaming and liquor and -- and

they were adamantly opposed at the time that they didn't want

e to purchase that or not to include any of their funds, that
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hey didn't want anything to do with it. I thought it was
erfectly clear.
Q Okay. If the Court were to award Lynita or LSN

rust interest in Wyoming Downs, will it create any licensing
issues or other issues for Wyoming Downs?

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, lack of foundation.
alls for speculation and legal conclusion.

THE CQURT: Overruled. He can answer. I think
e've gone through this with the Mississippi Gaming and the
licensing -- the game and license, but he can give his

nderstanding of whether it's accurate or not on that, but I

o know about the licensing and who's on it, if you got gaming

license, anybody else on it that has to be approved that they
e went through this, added for item on the Mississippi
roperty for licensing. So he can answer for what it's worth.

You can answer it.

THE WITNESS: After what prior experiences of having

hbout 15 different gaming licenses, Lynita never participated

in any of them, because she would have had tc have gotten the

license.

MR. DICKERSON: It's non-responsive, Your Honor.
e's non-responsive to the gquesticn.

THE COURT: Restate the question for him.

Y MR. SOLOMON:
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Q Yeah, the question is would an award of this
roperty to Lynita or LSN create any licensing or other issues
for you? Can you speak to that?

A I believe it would have severe impact on the
facility because she is a non-~licensee. And she would have to
get licensed.

Q What specifically would be the issue?

A The issue would be you would have several owners

that would be fighting going intoc a privileged license
cenario which the -- I believe the gaming commission would be
ard pressed to allow warring fractions as you would say to be
involved in a license like that.
MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, he's speculating Your
onor on what the --
MR. DICKERSON: Move to strike.
MR. KARACSONYI: -- register.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q In addition to the gaming license that's held and
ith respect to this property, are there liquor licenses?
MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, Your Honor. They
efused to produce any licenses or a license application
uring the course of discovery.

MR. SOLCOMON: The same -- still testified to --
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MR. KARACSONYI: So he can --
MR. SOLOMON: -- his personal knowledge.

MR. KARACSONYI: So they can just deny us all the

ocuments and just have him testify as whatever he wants to
ake up.

MR. SOLOMON: Then file a motion to compel if you
hink he can --

MR. KARACSONYI: Motion to compel. That's -- that's
quitable. So he can say get lost and then we're stuck.

THE COURT: As far as that, I'm -- the value that
the Court puts on his testimony based on past history without

the cooperating documents is a matter for credibility and

etermination on that. Then again, I'll look at everything
nd we'll get a nice record set and I'll look at your --
verything you asked and determined what should have been
rovided or not provided. But I want to get a nice record
oing because we sure may not end here. So I want to get a
ice record so any other court can do what they need to do.
Y MR. SOLCOMON:

It's a liquor license.

Yes, it is a liquor license.

Is that a privileged license also?

That is definitely a privileged license.

(@] - o B .

Has Lynita ever to your knowledge obtained a liquor
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license?
A 100 percent not.
MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, calls for speculation.
A That I'm aware of.
THE COURT: Overruled. I think we talked about the
licensing and the Mississippi and Ms. Lynita said she could
pply and get licensing, just go to the formality. I think
he said she was willing to do it as far as the Mississippi
roperty. So I'm very familiar with the licensing that's been
- you can continue, counsel.
Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q Now would you turn to Exhibit 13? Can you recall
hat Mr. Bertsch filed a report to the Court a source of

pplication and funds through -- pursuant in April 10, 2012

earing?
A Yes.
Q An opportunity to review that in the past?
A I have.
Q Direct your attention to a page or two. There is

xhibits behind this report. And the first exhibit is -- I
ant you to look at is --

MR. DICKERSON: Do you want to offer this first? We
ave no objection.

MR. SOLOMON: 1It's already been submitted to the
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ourt.

MR. DICKFRSON: Yeah, we have no objection.

MR, SOLOMON: It's in the court record.

MR. DICKERSON: We have no objection for it coming
in to as evidence.

MR. SOLCMON: Fine. 1It's offered. I --

1‘ MS. FORSBERG: No objection.

THE COURT: Exhibit 137

MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, I think it's already been
admitted to the last -- it was admitted last time.

THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit Number 13.

{Intervener's Exhibit 13 admitted)

Y MR. SOLOMON:
Q A1l right. Would you turn to Exhibit D-47 1It's the
eparating pages about old exhibit D -- no, B-4.

A Okay. B-42

Q Yes.
A Yes.
Q And have you got to the page behind that ccover

heet, the actual report?
a Yes, I have it.
Q All right. So it's three-quarters down at the left.

It says applications. Do you see that?

A Yes,
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Q
line?

A

Q

And it says Wyoming Downs asset. Do you see that

Yes.

And then to the right of that on -- in November of

011 which was the date you previously testified deposited

75,000 earnest money. Is that the -- it shows $75,000. 1Is

A

Q

June 3rd,

Q

enderson

hat the $75,000 that was used for the earnest money?

Yes.

At any time prior to the divorce being entered on
2012 --

MR. KARACSONYI: 13. 13,

MR. SOLOMON: 13. I'm sorry. I'm a year ofEf.

Had Dynasty or anybody else made any payment on the

Capital loan other than the prepayment of a hundred

housand deollars?

MR. KARACSONYI: Objection, same objection. They

ouldn't give us any documents.

verruled.

reak.

THE CCURT: 1I1'll note the objections. It's
You can answer.
THE WITNESS: No.
MR. SOLOMCN: No further questions.
MR. KARACSONYI: Can I take a quick recess to use --

THE CQURT: Take a five minute break, bathroom
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(Off record)

THE CQOURT: Okay. Now we're back on the record.
his is the continuation of the Nelson matter, case number
-411537. We took a brief recess. We're ready to pick up
ith our cross examination.

CROSS EXAMINATION

Y MR. KARACSONYI:

Q Okay. Mr. Nelson, you formed Dynasty Development
anagement on April 25th, 2011, correct?

A I helieve that to be correct, yes.

Q And that was prior to the entry of the divorce
ecree in this matter, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you testified that the initial sole member of

ynasty was the ELN Trust, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you are the investment trustee of the ELN Trust?
A Yes.

0 You're also the sole manager of Dynasty.

A Yes.

Q And you -—- you indicate that you formed Dynasty to

old assets you were going to attempt to purchase, correct?
A Yes.

Q And you actually make the decisions with respect to
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he investments of Dynasty.

A Yes.

Q And on November 16th you entered into a contract to
urchase Wyoming Downs. November 16, 2011 you entered into a

ontract to purchase Wyoming Downs.

A On November?
Q Yes.
|| A No, actually said April. On November, yes.
Q And Wyoming Downs it consists of a racetrack?
A Yes.,
Q Approximately 200 acres.
‘ 2y Yeah, a hundred and eighty-six acres.
Q Grandstand seating for individuals.
A Yes.
Q Okay. Horse stalls or stables.
|| A Yes.
Q Trainers areas.
A Yes.
Q Okay. And you obtained the property in an auction

Fou indicated, correct?

A Correct.
Q Okay. And at the auctiocn you actually brought with
rou 75,000 but you indicated it was for BanOne, LLC, correct?

A Yes.
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Q Okay. And the 75,000 that you brought from BanOne,
LC was your earnest money deposit.

A Yes.

Q That you indicated that putting that as an earnest
oney deposit was risky because it could be lost if you
Eouldn't finish -- complete the transaction, correct?

A Yes.

Q And it's true though that actually you didn't
request permission from the Court to dissolve the injunction
lover the 1.5 million until November 29th, 2011, correct?

A I believe that to be true.

Q So it wasn't until after you had already given the

Eeposit that you requested permission to release the funds to

omplete the purchase, correct?
A Yes.
Q Okay. And it was your decision as investment

trustee to participate in the auction, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you bid on Wyoming Downs because you thought it
as a geocod investment.

A Yes.

Q Now the promissory note that we looked at indicates
hat it was for 700,000, correct?

A Yes.
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Q But you actually had to pay a hundred thousand
limmediately upon the sale according to -- or upon the

signature of the promissory note, correct?

A Yeah, preparing interest, ves.
Q So a hundred thousand was paid to Hendersen capital
roup for the -~ for the initial -- to -- to prepay the

interest, correct?

A Yes, and he's funded 600,000,

Q And -- and okay. And -- and they received their
initial hundred thousand dollar payment, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And prior to the time that you acquired title

to Wyoming Downs or Dynasty acquired title to Wyoming Downs,

ynasty didn't own any other assets, correct?

A Not that I'm aware of.

Q That was actually the first asset that Dynasty
cquired, correct?

A Yes.

Q Frank Lamb is -- was an executive director of
yoming Pari-Mutuel Commission at one point, correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And you actually in 2000 -- in 2012 Frank
|hamb was paid from the ELN Trust $12,067.33, correct?

A I'm not sure.
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Q

A

Q
A
Q
A
Q

Okay. Can you turn to Exhibit 13? And I'd like you

to turn to the 2012 consolidated detail.

I'm sorry, in what exhibit?
That would be Exhibit C-4.
C-47?

Yes.

I have C-4.

Okay. And if you turn to the second page, you'll

ee a category called and other individuals. Do you see that?

rianna Ramos (ph} --

A

Q

Yes.

-- stated here. And if you look at the last

individual listed there by Mr. Bertsch, it's Frank Lamb,

orrect?

A

Q

Yes.

And it shows there that $12,067.33 was paid to Mr.

amb during 2012, correct?

A

Q

Yes.

Okay. And if you look further down that you

estified that the only monies that were paid to Henderson

apital Group were the 75,000, correct? And the hundred

housand.

A

Q

And where -- where are you looking?

Is that -- that was your testimony, correct?
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A I'm sorry?
Q That you only paid the Henderson Capital for the

ote only received the 75,000, correct?

A I'm sorry? I didn't understand the question.

Q That Henderson Capital only received the hundred
Fhousand dollar prepayment of interest was the only monies
they received for the -- for the note, correct?

A Well, you mean at time of funding?

Q Yes.

A They -- veah, they had the money returned to them

lus they have -- we've had some closing costs I'm sure.

Q But you also indicated that prior to the -- prior to
he divorce -- or prior to the 12 month period that they
idn't receive any other monies, correct?

A That they didn't receive any monies whether the
losing costs if you're interpreting legal costs or closing
osts, I'm not sure.

Q If you look here, the -- if you look at other
ompanies, the last one listed is Henderson Capital Group,
LC, correct?

A Yes.

Q And it indicates that actually 2500 was paid to
hem, correct?

A Yes.
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Q

A

o =N & Hoo©O

Okay. Now if you'll go to the 2012 consolidated

report which is Exhibit B-2.

I'm sorry?

B-2 of Exhibit 13.

B -- B-27?

Yes.

OCkay. Okay. I have it.

If you look there under applications, do you see

those applications?

A Yes.
|| Q And it lists Wyoming Downs for 2012 $4800, correct?
A Under applications?
Q Yes.
A I don't see it.
Q Wyoming Downs asset --
A That's a blank.
Q Okay. Maybe we're on the -- the -- are you on
xhibit B2?
A Now Exhikit BZ.
Q B5. I'm sorry.
A That's all right. That's all right. BS5.
Q I read it backwards.
A Okay. I have it.
Q Now if you go down to applications --
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A Yes.
Q -- and you see Wyoming Downs, it lists that the 4800

as paid from the ELN Trust towards Wyoming Downs in 2012,

crrect?
A Yes.
0 OCkay. And that was in March 2012, correct?
A Yes.
Q Okay. And then if you go to the 2011 consolidated

|hhich is the exhibit immediately prior to Exhibit 13 before.

A Yes.

0 It lists there for 2011 76,000 paid for Wyoming
Powns.

A Yes.

Q Now if you can go to the -- what other questions on
that one? Okay. 1'd like to show you what I'm going to now

ave be our Exhibit K.
A Thank you.
Q Sorry, I'm having --
MS. FORSBERG: Is this an additional exhibit in --

II MR. KARACSONYI: Yes.

in addition --

MS. FORSBERG: -- to your book? Do you have a copy?
MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah.

MS. FORSBERG: Can you pass that down?
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MR. KARACSONYI: But these are -- I'm going to
epresent to you these are the answers, the distribution
rustee's answers to Lynita Nelson's first set of request for
roductions of documents regarding Wyoming Downs. Do you guys
ave any objection to this? Obviously you produced it to
roduction.

MR. SOLOMON: No objection.

MR. KARACSONYI: Qkay.

MS. FORSBERG: No obijectiocn.

MR. KARACSONYI: Now I move to admit this to show
the -- the scope of not all the individual documents but the
lscope of the respcnses, Your Honor.

THE COQURT: Any objection?

MR. SOLOMON: No objection.

MS. FORSBERG: No objection.
COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit K.
{(Defendant's Exhibit K admitted)
Y MR, KARACSONYI:

Q If you can turn to Page 3, you see request number
wo was please produce copies of all financial statements
repared for Dynasty Development Management, LLC, the Wyoming
owns racetrack and any and all other business entities

including but not limited to corporations, limited liability

ompanies and partnerships owned or managed by you which
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howed an interest or have held an interest at any time during

he past three years in the real property and racetrack known

s Wyoming Downs or any other real property situated in the

state of Wyoming during 2011, 2012 and the current calendar

yvear to date including but not limited to interim financial

statements prepared for the purpose of obtaining a loan,

redit

line or credit rating during such time period.

And the response, correct, was objection, this

equest seeks documents that are neither relevant to the

ecember 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing nor calculated to lead

to the

discovery of admissible evidence. Further, financial

statements 1s not a defined term. This request also seeks

confidential and proprietary information which would cause

ynasty Development Management, LLC irreparable harm if

isclosed to third parties, correct?

A

Q

I -- I

A
Q
A

Q

Is that a question?

Yes, was that the response -- that was the response.
read that correctly.

I didn't say objection, but it was a --

Did I read that correctly?

I believe s0, yes.

Okay. And it doesn't indicate here that any

ocuments have been provided in response to this request,

orrect?
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A Not that I'm aware of.
Q Now I want to show you for a second -- I'm going to
o through the rest of those. Exhibit -- if you could turn to
ur Exhibit -- do you have our exhibit book up there? I
Apolegize.
A These two.
0 The -~ the other book?
|| MR, KARACSONYI: And maybe I have an extra -- no?
THE MARSHALL: Yeah, I had to place two of them ==
MR. KARACSONYI: ©h, okay. Yeah, I brought an extra
opy. Okay. Yes. This is correct.
THE MARSHALL: So this is the one.
THE WITNESS: Okay.
MR. KARACSONYI: Yes. Oh, did I have -- did I give
copy to the Court to mark and admit? Okay.
THE MARSHALL: You did --
THE CLERK: The Judge has one,
MR. KARACSONYI: ©Oh, okay. The witness -- can we
se the witnesses? Just keep it -- that way he can look at
the -- thank you.
MR. DICKERSON: We may have an extra one over here I
think. There was one -~ are we missing one?

THE

MARSHALL: Do you have a big binder? Remember,

24|khat we gave you this one.
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MS., FORSBERG: Oh, okay. Just making sure.
THE MARSHALL: Just in case you needed to see that.
THE WITNESS: Yeah. Thank you.
Y MR. KARACSONYI:
Okay. And I want to turn also then to Exhibit H.
A H?
Q Yes.

MR. KARACSONYI: Sorry, will you stipulate to this

ne or do I need to do that?
MR. SOLOMON: Well, wait. Are you offering it?
MR. KARACSONYI: Yes.
MR. SOLOMON: Yes, of course I'll stipulate to it.
MS. FORSBERG: No objection.
THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit H.
(Defendant's Exhibit H admitted)
Y MR, KRRACSONYI:
Q Now you were =-- the -- there was a subpoena served

pon Dynasty Development Management for the person most

19 [knowledgeable regarding the ownership and acquisition of

20

21

22

23

24

yoming Downs, correct?
A Yes.
Q And there was also a subpoena served upon you

individually to appear for a deposition, correct?

A Yes.
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0 And actually, those two -- those two depositions
ere consolidated to one time and location because you were
he person to serve as both -- for both deponents.

A I believe so.

Q So you were actually the person designated as the
erson most knowledgeable about the ownership and acquisition
f Wyoming Downs, correct?

A Yes.

Q Now if you'll turn to Exhibit G.

A I have it.

Q Now these are actually your responses to the request

for production in your individual capacity, correct?

A I believe so.

MR. KARACSONYI: I move to admit that exhibit as
ell, Your Honor. Exhibkit G.

MR. SOLOMON: We have no objection.

MS. FORSBERG: No objection.

THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit G.

{Defendant's Exhibit G admitted)

IFY MR. KARACSONYI:

0 And I would look -- like you to look at Exhibit G
and Exhibit K.
I A I don't have a K.

Q The K is the one that we handed you, the packet.
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A Qkay.

Q Oh, okay. Now you -- you responded to the same
equest for production that -- that the ELN Trust was served
ith, correct?

A I believe so.

Q And if you look -- your response to the request
umber two that we previously read was objection, this request
eeks documents that are neither relevant to the December 11,
013 evidentiary hearing nor calculated to lead to the
iscovery of admissible evidence. Further, financial
tatements is not a defined term. This request has been
esponded to an Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust distribution
rustee's answer to Defendant Lynita Sue Nelscn's first set of
equest for production of documents regarding Wyoming Downs
nd Eric L. Nelson individual hereby incorporates the response
f the distribution trustee as if set forth for the hearing,
orrect? That was your response.

A My response?

Q Yes.

A Well, someone typed it. I mean, I didn't say all

But this is -- this 1s a response submitted on
you, correct?

Oh, yes.
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Q Now if you turn to Exhibit K.

A K.

Q First of all to your knowledge, were any financial
tatements for Dynasty Development or Wyoming Downs ever
roduced to us?

A I believe we gave yocu the closing statements and the

urchasing the facility, purchasing. And the closing

ocuments.
Q QOkay. But nothing further, correct?
A I don't believe anything further.

Q Okay. Now request Number 3 requested -- and this is
he same whether you're locking at Exhibit K or Exhibit G, but
ecause you're both responding. But please produce a copy of
11 tax information, tax returns, postdate and federal and all
eclarations of estimate of tax prepared by or on behalf of
ynasty Development Management, LLC or any and all other
usiness entities including but not limited to corporations,

limited liability companies and partnerships owned or managed
y you which hold an interest or have held an interest at
nytime during the past three years in Wyoming Downs or any
nd other real property situated in the state of Wyoming
uring 2011, 2012 and the current calendar year-to-date
included but not limited to Kl statements.

This request includes without limitation all drafts
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f any such documentation during such period of time. This
equest further includes but is not limited to correspondence
r other statements or documents received from the IRS or any
- Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority
egarding any tax liability, credit, debt, interest,
ssessment or penalty during such period of time. That was
he regquest, correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And the response by the ELN Trust was
bjection, this request seeks documents that are neither
elevant to the December 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing nor
alculate to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

Further, this request seeks confidential and proprietary
information which would cause Dynasty Development Management,
LC irreparable harm if disclosed to third parties, correct?
A Yes.
Q Okay. And your -- your response turning to Exhibit
was basically incorporating the same response of the
istribution trustee, correct?

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, this is taking a lot of
nnecessary time. The documents are in. They're not objected
0. Counsel are going to argue. They say what they say. All
e's asking is what this says, quoting it and asking is that

hat it says. There's no followup questions. This is ==
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MR. DICKERSON: What's the objection?

MR. SOLOMOM: The objection is that it's --
MS. FORSBERG: The document speaks for itself.
MR. SOLOMON: -- meaningless. It is --

MR. DICKERSON: I don't recall that --

MR. SOLOMON: 1It's not --

THE CQURT: I think he's --

MR. SOLOMON: 1It's already in evidence. It's --

THE COURT: I think he's --

MR. SOLOMON: -- subject to argument, but no need to
aste our Court's time reading dozuments that are in evidence
nd are not adding anything to it.

MR. DICKERSON: I don't remember learning that
bjection in evidence.

THE COURT: Overruled. He can lay a thing on there
o show his basis for why he thinks the Court should not admit
he evidence, testimony or otherwise.

MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, his prior testimony about the

financials.

THE COURT: Now you said Exhibit G?

MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, I was going -- but I'm going
ack and forth between Exhibit G and K. They're the same
equest, but they're different responses. They're the same --
hey're -- they're his responses and the ELN Trust response.
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THE COURT: Well, I got -- maybe I got it wrong. I
ot G as affidavit of Eric Nelson and a response to order to
how cause. I think we have a different -- we have --

MR. KARACSONYI: Ch, that's -- I think you have it

for the last evidentiary hearing.

THE COURT: So you didn't give us one for this one?
|| MR. KARACSONYI: I thought I did.
THE COURT: This is the one they gave me, but this

is the one from the last one. OCkay. That's why.

MR. LUSZECK: We dropped off --

THE COURT: Okay. This is the one they -- think
hey sent the wrong one down.

THE CLERK: Yeah.

THE COURT: My law clerk's not here today, so I
think they sent the wrong exhibit book. Do you have an extra
|Lne? If not, send an email to Laurie to get it down.

THE CLERK: Do ycu need an extra one?

THE COURT: Yeah, you must -- you dropped it off.
She must have sent the wrong one --

|| MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, we --

THE COURT: -- because the law clerk's not there.
MR. KARACSONYI: Yes. Sorry, Your Honor,

THE COURT: That's okay.

MR. KARACSONYI: OQkay. Exhibit G. And then K is
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the one we brought in by hand.

THE COURT: You brought.
Y MR, KARACSONYI:

Q And to your knowledge, no -- none of these tax
ecord -- no such tax records have been produced to us, 1is
hat correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now request number four requested all account --
lease produce all accounting records, e.g., general ledgers,
eneral journals, cash disbursement journals, et cetera, for
ynasty Development Management, LLC, the racetrack and/or real
roperty known as Wyoming Downs or any and all other business

ntities including but not limited to corporations, limited

liability companies and partnerships owned or managed by you

hich hold an interest or have held an interest at any time
uring the past three years in Wyoming Downs or any other real
roperty situated in the state of Wyoming for the business
ears beginning January 1, 2011 through the present showing
11 transactions occurring during such period -- said period
f time, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And the response from the ELN Trust was objection,
his request seeks documents that are neither relevant to the

ecember 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing nor calculated to lead
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to the discovery of admissible evidence. Further, this

request seeks confidential and proprietary information which

ould cause Dynasty Development Management, LLC irreparable
arm if disclosed to third parties, correct?

A Correct.

Q And then your response turning to Exhibit G to

response to request number four was a similar objection and

iIthen that the request has been responded to by the ELN Trust

and that you incorporate their response, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. And to your knowledge, none of these -- no
eneral ledgers, general journals, accounting records, cash
isbursement journals have been produced to us, correct?

A I think -- correct.

Q Now if you'll go to request number six. And in that
equest we stated please produce any and all year end

financial statements both audited and unaudited included but
ot limited to balance sheets, statements of profit and loss,
tatements of changes and financial position and notes to
financial statements for Dynasty Development Management, LLC,
he Wyoming Downs race trace or any trust or business entity
including but not limited to corporations, limited liability
cmpanies and partnerships owned or managed by which you hold

n interest or have held an interest at anytime during the
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ast three years in Wyoming Downs or any of -- all other real
roperty situated in the state of Wyoming for 2011, 2012 and
he current calendar year to date. With regard to the current
ear, please produce all periodic, monthly, quarterly, et
etera statements. That was the gquestion, correct?

A Correct.

Q And the response from the ELN Trust was objection,
|Fhis request seeks documents that are neither relevant to the
December 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing nor calculated to lead
to the discovery of admissible evidence. Further, this

request seeks confidential and proprietary information which

ould cause Dynasty Development Management, LLC irreparable
arm 1if disclosed to third parties, correct?

A Correct.

Q And your response was largely the same that we've
iscussed, that you basically stated an objection and

incorporated their response.

A Yes.

Q And to -- to your knowledge, we have not been
rovided with any such financial statements to -- to this day,
orrect?

A Tc my knowledge.

Q To your knowledge, that's true.

A That's true.
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Q Okay. Number seven. Now you testified about

ertain -- certain transactions related to this property,
ight?

A Yes.

Q Financial transactions? Now request number seven

ays please produce any and all bank account or investment
ccount statements from January 1, 2011 to present date for
11 bank and investment accounts from which monies have been
xpended, withdrawn, transferred and/or leverage for the
urchase of Wyoming Downs or operation of Wyoming Downs or
urchase or operation of any other real property or gaming

enture in the state of Wyoming during such time period,

orrect?
A Correct.
Q And your response was —-- or the ELN Trust response

as objection, this request seeks documents that are neither
elevant to the December 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing nor
alculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
urther, this request seeks confidential and proprietary
information 3which would cause Dynasty Development Management,

LC irreparable harm if disclosed to third parties, correct?

A Correct.
Q And your response turning to Exhibit G to number
seven was the same -- you object -- objected that it wasn't
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relevant and not likely to lead to discovery of admissible

vidence and then again just incorporated their answer as
hough you said it there, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And to your knowledge during -- prior to the
otion for summary judgment that we filed, were any bank
tatements that were request here produced to us?

A No.

Q And now request number eight, you'll see looking at
ither Exhibit G or K requests a copy -- please produce a copy
f all documents relating or otherwise pertaining to the
urchase, sale, encumbrance and/or transfer of any interest in
he real property and racetrack known as Wyoming Downs or any
ther real property situated in the state of Wyoming during
011, 2012 and the current calendar vear to date.

Included in this request is all documentation

elated to the purchase and sale of Wyoming Downs or any other
eal property situated in the state of Wyoming included but

ot limited to all closing statements, deeds, notes, mortgages
nd/or other evidence of ownership and indebtedness. And the

esponse was objection, this request seeks documents that are

either relevant to the December 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing

or calculate to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

Further, this request seeks confidential and proprietary

D-09-411537-D NELSON 05/30/2014 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

95
RAPP1438




(78}

<Y

LN

[

~J

[s 2}

O

10
11
12
13

14

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

information which would cause Dynasty Development Management,

LLC irreparable harm if disclosed to third parties.

otwithstanding and without waiving said objection, please see
ocuments Bate Number Wyoming Down 0001 through 54, 57 through
85 and 89 through 163, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. Now I —-- you -- you've seen the documents
elated to Wyoming Downs that were produced in this matter?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And in those documents that are referenced in
esponse to request number eight, there are no bank statements

ctually in those documents. That's correct?

A I don't believe there are any.

Q Okay. Now reguest number nine, you testified about
our -- your belief of the licensing and how it would be
ffected by -- by Lyni -- if Lynita was owed -- given an

wnership interest in Wyoming Downs, correct?

A I'm sorry, what was the question?

Q You testified you were asked about whether -- what
ffect you thought awarding Lynita in ownership interest in
yoming Downs would have on your licenses, correct, and what

licenses the company has?

A Yes.

Q Now request number nine, you'll see request please
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roduce a copy of all gaming, horseracing and other state or
federal licenses relating to horseracing and/or wagering on
orseracing issue to you, Dynasty Development Racing, LLC, any
ther entity owned or managed by you or any employee of any
ntity trust or entity owned or managed by you, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And the response from the ELN Trust was
bjection, this request seeks documents that are neither
elevant to the December 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing nor

alculated to leave to the discovery of admissible evidence,

orrect?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And your response if you turn to Exhibit G
as you stated that you -- you objected on the same basis and

hen you incorporated the response of the distribution

rustee, correct?

A Correct.
Q Okay. And to your knowledge, it's true that we have
ever had -- never been provided with any such -- copies of

ny such licenses, correct?
A Correct.
Q Has requested in request number nine.
A Correct.
Q

Okay. Now request number 10 requested a please
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roduce a copy of all applications for gaming, horseracing and
ther state or federal licenses relating to horseracing and/or
agering on horseracing by you, Dynasty Development Racing,
LC, any other entity owned or managed by you or any employee
f any entity, trust or entity owned or managed by you
regardless of whether such licensed was ultimately approved,
issued or granted by the issuing authority.

And the response from the ELN Trust was objection,

this request seeks documents that are neither relevant to the
ecember 11, 2013 evidentiary hearing nor calculated to lead
o discovery of admissible evidence. Further, this request
eeks confidential and proprietary information which would
ause Dynasty Development Management, LLC irreparable harm if
isclosed to third parties, correct?
A Correct.
Q Okay. And your answer in your Exhibit G was you
stated the same obZection and then you incorporated their
response again, correct?

A Correct.

Q And to your knowledge, we have never actually been
rovided with any copies of such applications requested in
request number 10, correct?

A Not that I'm aware of.

Q And now the final one, if you'll go to request
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umber 11 -- well, actually, we covered 11 and 12. Request
umber 11 is please produce an accounting of the disposition
f any of all funds received from the mortgage or encumbrance
f the real property and racetrack known as Wycming Downs or
ny other properties situated in the state of Wyoming during
011, 2012 and the current calendar year to date. Please also
roduce any and all bank or investment account statements,
ancelled checks and other documents evidencing such
isposition of funds, correct? That was the question.

A Correct.

Q And you testified that some of those funds were used
for various purposes during yocur testimony, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And you're -- the response to request number

11 from the ELN Trust was objection, this request exceeds the

Ecope of Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 34 and such rule does

ot require a party to prepare an accounting, right?

A Correct.

Q QOkay. And your response was in Exhibit G that this
request seeks -- objection, this request seeks documents that

hre neither relevant to the December 11, 2013 evidentiary

earing nor calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
vidence and then incorporated the response of the

istribution trustee, correct?
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A Correct.

Q And -- and to your knowledge at least prior to our
motion for summary judgment no bank or investment account
statements, cancelled checks and other documents evidencing
such disposition of funds, the -- the mortgage or encumbrance
funds were ever produced to us, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. Now the final request number 12 was please
roduce a copy of any and all other documents required to be
isclosed by Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 16.2 which
ave not been provided in response to any other request
ontained above, correct?

A Correct.

Q And the response from the ELN Trust was just to see

the documents that were attached to the response, correct?

A Correct.

Q And your response was all documents are in the
ossession of the Eric L. Nelson Nevada -- or Eric L. Nelson
Trust and had been produced in the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust

distribution trustee, answer Defendant Lynita Sue Nelson's

first set of request for producticon of documents regarding

yoming Downs, correct?
A Correct.

MR. KARACSONYI: I move for the admission of Exhibit
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and K. I think it just --

MS. FORSBERG: You already did that.

MR. SOLOMON: I thought K was already in and I
hought G was in, but I have no objection.

MR. KARACSONYI: K is 1in.

THE COURT: They have already been in admitted, G
nd --

MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. And Exhibit H was admitted.
kay. Now I would like to publish the deposition of Mr.
elson on November 21lst, 2013, Your Honor.

MR. SOLOMON: No objection.

MR. KARACSONYI: I have also attached copies of
Exhibit J and I would like to admit it for the purpose of
showing the responses so that the supreme court has a record

of the responses that were -- that we're going to go over here

ith the -- with the Court.

MR. DICKERSON: So for the record, it's being
ccepted as being published and we're alsoc having it marked as
n exhibit for the record.

THE COQOURT: So Exhibit J I think they said they --

0 objection as being --
MR. SOLOMCN: No objection.
MS. FORSBERG: No oblection.

THE CQURT: All right.
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(Defendant's Exhibit J admitted)

Y MR. KARACSONYI:

Q Now at your deposition you were asked various
uestions about the -- about the -- your acquisition of
yoming Downs, correct?

A Correct.

Q Now at that time you actually couldn't recall how
you came to find out that Wyoming Downs was available for
lpurchase, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And you couldn't recall how you located

enderscn Capital Group, LLC, correct?

A Correct.

Q In fact, you couldn't even recall who you dealt
ith, anybody associated with Henderson Capital Group, LLC,
orrect?

A Well, I knew that like the secretary and but not
nyone in particular that I had, no.

Q You couldn't identify anyone by name except for

ossibly some gentleman named Dennis --

A Yes.

Q -- last name unknown.
| A Yes.

Q Correct?
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A Uh-huh (affirmative).

Q Okay. And at that deposition you were asked various
uestions which you felt were outside the scope of these
roceedings, correct?

A Correct.

Q And you refused to answer those questions, correct?
A Correct.

Q Can you turn --

A I don't have it.

Q Oh, it's in your exhibits, Exhibit J in the exhibit
ock.

A Oh, in this one? Okay. Sorry.

Q Okay. You actually wouldn't answer the question
bout whether anyone else has an ownership interest in Wyoming
owns besides Dynasty, correct?

A Where are you at?

Q Page 26. Now I asked you on Line 19 question,

esides Dynasty, does anyone else have an ownership interest

in Wyoming Downs and your answer was that would be outside the

cope, correct?

A Correct.

Q And you never answered that question at deposition,
id you?

A That's correct.
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0 Now if you'll turn to Page 30, I asked you at Line 2
oes Dynasty own a hundred percent of Wyoming Downs. And your
nswer was in the scope of the understanding from the
uestioning, if I understand this correctly, when I purchase
he facility on the 11th enclosed yes, then the question was
o when the property was purchased Dynasty owned a hundred
ercent of Wyoming Downs. Answer, yes. Question, did Dynasty
wn a hundred percent of Wyoming Downs on the date of your
ivorce from Mrs. llelson. And your answer was that is beyond
he scope, correct?

A Correct.

Q And you actually didn't ever answer that question at

deposition whether or not Dynasty even owned a hundred
ercent of -- of the -- of Wyoming Downs on the date of your
ivorce, correct?

A Correct.

Q And if you look at it starting at Line 15, I asked
¢ you're refusing to answer that question and your answer was
hat is beyond the scope of when I purchased it and when I
losed. And my question so it is your position that the only
uestions you have to answer today are questions between the
ime pricr to the purchase up until the time of close, is that
orrect. Answer, that's correct. Question, and you're

efusing to answer any other questions, answer, that is

D-08-411537-D NELSON 05/30/2014 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC ({520) 303-7356

104
RAPP1447




—

10
i}
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

22
23
24

® ®

orrect. That was your testimony, correct?

4 Yes.

Q Qkay. ©Okay. Now ycou alsc didn't recall at your
eposition any of the specific people you asked for a loan
Ether than Henderson Capital, LLC, correct?

a Correct.
Q Now if you'll turn to Page 38, I asked you the

following the questions and received the following answers.

t Line 4 -- and at that time Dynasty owned a hundred percent
f Wyoming Downs, correct? Yes. How much is still owed to
enderson Capital Group, LLC on the original 700,000 mortgage.
swer, that would be outside the scope of this deposition.
uestion, so you are refusing to answer that question.
swer, yes. Then I asked counsel do you support his refusal
o answer, Mr. Luszeck, correct. Did I read that correctly?
A I believe so.
Q Okay. And you wouldn't answer and you never did
nswer at deposition whether any money or no money was owed to

enderson Capital Group at the time of your deposition,

orrect?
A Correct.
Q Now on Line 18 I asked you since Wyoming Downs was

hcquired, what has been done to approve the property. And

your answer was that is outside the scope of this deposition,
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orrect?
A Correct.

Q Okay. Now I went on to ask you a series of
uestions at the bottom of Page 38. I am going to go through
series of questions and please indicate to me whether you
re willing to answer any of the questions and then I asked
vour counsel -- counsel if you could indicate to me if there
is anything that you are going to instruct your client to

|bnswer, I would appreciate that as well, correct?
A Correct.

Q And -- and Mr. Luszeck, your coun -- the counsel for

he ELN Trust indicated that he will do, right?

A Correct.

Q And then I asked you the following series of
questions. I received the following series of answers

starting at Line 7, Page 39. Question, what licensing was

Eequired to operate Wyoming Downs., Answer, that would be

utside the scope of this deposition. Question, what
legislation was required to allow Wyoming Downs to operate as

a3 racetrack. Answer, that would be outside the scope of this

eposition. I don't know. Question, how many employees work
t Wyoming Downs. Answer, that is outside the scope of this
eposition. Question, who are the employees for Wyoming

owns. Answer, that would be outside the scope of this
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[deposition. Question, what events or races have occurred at
Wyoming Downs since it was acquired. Answer, that would be
putside the scope of this deposition. Question, what was the
httendance of the race events at Wyoming Downs since it was
acquired. Answer, that would be outside the scope of this
heposition. Question, what were the profits from the various
race events that occurred at Wyoming Downs after it was
acquired. Answer, that would be outside the scope of this
keposition.

Question, where have the profits been deposited from

the racing operations at Wyoming Downs after Dynasty's
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cquisition of Wyoming. Answer, that would be cutside the
cope ¢of this deposition. Question, what money have you
ersonally received from the operation of Wyoming Downs.
nswer, that would be outside the scope of this deposition.
uestion, have any profits been transferred to any other
ntity from Dynasty from Wyoming Downs. Answer, that would be
utside the scope of this deposition.
Question, has the ELN Trust received any profits

from the operation of Wyoming Downs. Answer, that would be
utside the scope of this deposition. Question, what are the
perating expenses for the operation of Wyoming Downs.

swer, that would be outside the scope of this deposition.

here are the gaming revenues for Wyoming Downs. That would
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e outside the scope of this deposition,
Can you explain to me the offtrack betting rights
for Wyoming Downs? That would be outside the scope of this
eposition. What are the future plans for the operation of
yoming Downs? That would be outside the scope of this
eposition. Is there any new legislation on the horizon which
ou believe will affect Wyoming Downs. That would be outside
he scope of this deposition. Are you conducting any lobbying
fforts for -- it says lobbying. Lobbying efforts for Wyoming
owns for additional legislation. That would be outside the
cope of this deposition.
12 Did I read that correctly?
13 A I believe so.
14 Q Okay. And then Mr. -- Mr. Luszeck and Ms. Forsberg
15 lceonfirmed that they would not instruct you to answer the
16 lquestion, correct?
17 A Correct.
18 Q Or any of those questicns, correct?
19 A Correct.
20 Q Okay. Okay. And then one final time at Page 44,

21 [starting at Page 44. I asked you another series of questions

22 land it indicated for you or your counsel, either of them, to
23 lindicate whether or not they would instruct you to answer or

24 [wWhether you would answer, correct?
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A Correct.

Q Okay. And we'll go through those. Page 44, Line

2. Does Dynasty own any other property other than Wyoming
owns. That would be outside the scope of this deposition.
oes Dynasty own any bank accounts in between yes, in between
he time of purchase and yes, they would have an account, can
ou list for us the specific accounts held by Dynasty
evelopment since the time of creation to present date. From
the time of the purchase it would be one. What is that bank
bccount. Where is that located. That would be -- 1
apologize.

You don't know where the bank account for Dynasty is

eld. I believe it is at City National. And is that bank
ccount still open. Yes. Is that the only bank account that
ynasty has had for its operation. I believe, ye. Does
ynasty own any other real property. That's outside the scope
f this deposition. Does Dynasty have any other type of
ccounts other than the one bank account at City National.

If we are being specific from the date of the
urchase or the auction to the closing, that would be the only
ccount. But after that date, have there been any other
ccounts open for Dynasty and that would be outside the scope
f this deposition. Are there any other long term debts

ssociated with Wyoming Downs other than the mortgage.
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etween the auction period to the closing this 1is the only
ebt. Has Wyoming Downs incurred any other debt since the
ime of closing. And that would be outside the scope of --
utside of this deposition.

Has Dynasty incurred any other debts other than the
ortgage since the time of closing of Wyoming Downs. That
ould be outside the scope of this deposition. What are the
urrent liabilities of Dynasty other than the mortgage. That
ould be outside the scope of this deposition. Does Dynasty
ave any plans to acquire additional property in the future.
hat would be outside the scope of this deposition.

Did I read that correctly?

A I believe so.

Q Now if you'll turn to the promissory note which was
dmitted as Exhibit 6.

A I have 1it.

Q This -- the second paragraph indicates that the full
lorincipal loan amount is due and payable in full 12 months

from the date of execution of the note, correct?

A That's correct.
Q Okay. And the note is signed January 4, 2012,
A Correct.

|| Q and the 12 months from January 4, 2012 is January 4,

2013, correct?
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A Correct.

Q And that was approximately or almost exactly six
onths prior to the notice -- or the entry of a divorce decree
in this case, correct?

A Correct.

MR. KARACSONYI: I have no further questions, Your

THE COURT: Ms. Forsberg, do you have any questions
ou want to ask?

MS. FORSBERG: No, I don't have any questions, Your

THE COURT: Any redirect, counsel?
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
Y MR. SOLOMON:

Q Mr. Nelson, did you see anywhere in Exhibit K where

ou were requested to produce a document whereby you repaid

anOne $75, 0007

A I'm sorry, where is that located, the question is?

Q I don't think it's there, but anywhere in Exhibit K
here you were asked to produce specifically any documents
that would have included the repayment of the BanOne 75,000.
A No.

MR. SOLOMON: I have nothing further.

MR. KARACSONYI: I have one question and then a
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followup. I have no gquestions.
THE COURT: Thanks.

THE WITNESS: Am [ done?

THE CQURT: Mr. Nelson, you're --

THE WITNESS: Thank you. Just leave this stuff

THE COURT: Yeah, you can just leave those exhibits
there, thanks.

MR, SQLOMCN: We have nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Well, it's about 10 after 12:00. Do you
1 lguys want to go through?

MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, we're —-

MR. DICKERSON: We're done.

MR. SOLOMON: Ready to argue --

MR. KARACSONYI: We're done.

MR. SOLOMON: -- if that's what Your Honor --
MR. KARACSONYI: We're ready to argue closing

arguments, Your Honor.

MR. SOLOMON: Then we can have our Friday, Your
onor, what's left of it. Ready? Thank you, Your Honor.
e're here today as Your Honor well knows because you entered

divorce decree on January =-- sorry, June 3rd. I can't keep
he years straight either. 2013, And held that you were

uote, without sufficient information to make a determination
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s to the disposition of the property. And you're referring
to Wyoming Downs.

On June 17th, 2013 Lynita filed a motion to amend or
[al1ter judgment or for declaratory related relief we shall call
the motion to amend wherein she sought among other things for
the Court to award her a 50 percent interest in Wyoming Downs.

At the hearing that occurred on that motion after

riefs were filed, that hearing was July 22nd, Your Honor,
013. This Court said and I quote I would not be inclined
just to give Ms. Lynita half of Wyoming Downs, that's a
racket, you meant Wyoming Downs. It was the property.
ithout evidence or some basis on why it should be awarded or
nything on that this can look at because I did maintain as
uch as I could the integrity of the trust to protect both
arties from adjustment creditors.
The Court also said I'm just not setting aside the

trust to be -- to begin with. I try to trace money that fall

that came from one thing to try to do what was fair and just

nder the trust while maintaining the trust. I said here's
hy I did this on this one with Wyoming. That came late. I
on't know where the money came from.

And then subsequently the Court at another hearing,
this was the February 25, 2014 status check amplified more

what you wanted to hear and why you wanted to hear it with
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espect to Wyoming Downs. And this is from the transcript of
ebruary 25, 2014 at 14:02:17. The Court said I have no doubt
y concern with the Downs to be quite honest is that it came

n a motion to release the money to buy it saying there's no
ay they can buy it unless they release the money, then it got
urchased. I want to make sure there's no funny business in
he purchase so I can trace to where it came from to see if

ny properties was used that I had awarded to Lynita in the
ivorce decree.

If that was used on that, some stuff that might have
een transferred, I don't know, that was my concern to be
uite honest to make sure there's no funny business where I
an trace where it came from being that there are some things
eing moved from Lynita's trust to the other trust.

I know that the Downs was purchased plus they owned
it, sold it, they came back. I just want to make sure that it
as straight up and down so I know how it got purchased. It
as purchased just so I have some findings of that. So just
- I just really want to see how the Downs was purchased, how
it came from and to make sure there were no shenanigans and
hat was used to do it, what collateral was pledged to see if
here was anything that had been awarded to Lynita in the
ecree or something that was her property that got transferred

into the other trust to put collateral for that property.
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hat's kind of what I was looking for to kind of trace it to
ee how it came in because of the notion I had was that it
ould not be purchased without that money being released and
hen it got purchased.

At the July 22nd hearing, we also talked about what
as needed and what this Court thought was needed to get to

he questions that you had. And the transcript reflects and

T'm -- and quotes that it was focusing -- and this is a quote,

focusing right now on the acquisition itself. You said that

ou thought the discovery needed for that, what you needed to

know based upon what you have already articulated was your

oncern would be you called the evidentiary hearing would be
n the very limited issue. That's the quote. And you
ouldn't even understand exactly what discovery would be
eeded other than the documents which you thought Lynita
lready possessed.

We took you at face value Your Honor and -- and in

ood faith produced everything that we had that had to do with

the acquisition of Wyoming Downs. You know it's our position

hat that asset is owned by an entity that's wholly owned by
he ELN Trust and that it was 100 percent debt financed.

here w3as nothing that this Court awarded to Lynita that was
sed to acquire that property.

I don't know if they're going to try and confuse you
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ith respect to that $75,000, but this Court did award

pecific properties from BanOne. I think there was 17 of them
o Lynita, specifically to equalize another transaction, but
it did not award BanOne to her. It did not award to her any

f the funds from BanOne. And in any case all that happened
as that $75,000 came out of BanOne. They had a right to do
it because there's no injunction preventing in this ordinary
ourse of the ELN Trust business. It was led to -- give the
arnest money deposit. And as soon as we have money we give
it back to BanOne.

11 The monies that the Court ordered to be segregated

12 lfor -- or to be awarded to Lynita had been segregated and

13 |[deposited and they're tied up, there's nothing that they can

14 lshow that any of the assets from Lynita or LSN Trust were used

15 lin any way, shape or form to make this acquisition. And

16 flthere's nothing in the decree that would suggest anything to

17 [lkhe sort.

Yes, we have refused to answer those questions that

19 [they tried to shotgun. You saw the request to produce. It

20 went far beyond what this Court wanted to hear about. It went

21 [into the deepest recesses of everything that has ever happened

22 lhot only in the time of acquisition of 2011, but they wanted

23 12 and they wanted 13. They wanted everything. Cannot do

24 [What the operation of that business before they proved and we
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elieve can't prove that they have any interest in it
hatsoever.

I've been doing this a long time, Your Honor. I
now you've been on the bench and -- and practiced law too.
he standard procedure is if somebody shotguns that type of
iscovery at you and your position is that they are not
ntitled to it because they don't have an interest in it and
hey don't have the right to that information is you object to
it and you refused to produce it.

You know the consequences. The consequence is if
ou don't produce it, I can't affirmatively produce it at
rial. That's -- that's the decision I make. I understand
hat. But if they want it and they want some type of
videntiary standard on it, they got to file a motion to
ompel and then the Court can deal with what -- are they
ntitled to that before they even prove they have an ownership
interest in this or otherwise entitle the information, should
I create some type of protective order to keep it confidential
o that business can't be ruined, I mean, those are all the
issues that are done if they were to pursue that.

We gave them and we have produced in this Court
oday all the evidence you need to make the decisions that you
aid you needed to know with respect to how to deal with this

sset. And I don't think there's any doubt about that. You
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now how it was acquired, how much it was acquired for, how it
as financed, how it was that even though Eric was relying
robably wrongfully in this -- as it turned out to get that
1.5 released or thinking you can get some of that released.
ven though he was initially relying upon that, he was still
ble to do it after the fact by finding a hard money launder
n behalf of Dynasty to put up the money to acquire it. And
he project that Lynita didn't want anything to do with,
bjected to, claim Mr. Dickerson, if you'll look at the
ranscript of that hearing, he says I'm going to ask for that
75,000 to come back. Well, guess what. It did come back.

They don't want anything to do with it. And Your
onor will certainly remember the testimony of Lynita that I
sked and elicited from her on cross examination in my phase
f the trial that she didn't want anything to do with gaming
nd liquor properties, moral aversion te it. Now not only
hey apparently want something, they want to know everything
bout it and get into complete ownership, I guess.

All information with respect to Wyoming Downs other
han what we produced is either not responsive to what the
ourt asked us to produce and -- or has none of their business
nless and until this Court determines that they have some
interest in it somehow. And that's our position and I think

it's a correct position.
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Your Honor decided when you entered the decree of
ivorce as you've already -- as I already quoted to keep the
rust intact and to try and recompense Lynita in a way that
ou thought was fair by erecting constructive trust and making
ther divisions to take the assets that you thought were
nfairly contributed to Eric's trust that should have left or

een shared in Lynita's. And you did that through a 70 some

age decree asset by asset trying to trace what happened to
the assets. And if you thought Eric's trust got an advantage

in some deal, you created some remedy in order to even it out.

That analysis doesn't apply to Wyoming Downs at this
tage because you already -- there was nothing done in any
ay, shape or form to use any of Lynita's assets or any of her
ash or any of her collateral or anything to acquire Wyoming

owns and you know that's true because you saw how it was

cquired. It was acquired by pure debt.

And we're not asking her to pay that debt unless
our Honor is going to award her some of it. We're not asking
er to do any of that. It's none of her business. It's not
er asset, it's not her trust asset, it never was. When
roperty is -- and Your Honor knows this, when property is
ransferred to an irrevocable trust, it doesn't belong to
ither of the parties at that point.

Yeah, you can do what you did ard say well, hold on.
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hat trust has assets that should have come -- that came from
er and should go back to her and she could reckon that.

hat's one remedy and -- and I understand that as a matter of
oncept. But you can't treat it as community property at that
oint because it's a trust asset under Nevada law. It's an
irrevocable trust and the statute explicitly states that the
arties don't own that. They have no legal estate in the
apital, principal or corpus of the estate under 160 -- Nevada
evised Statutes 166.130.

The Court found in this decree that ELN was
stablished as a self sale of the spendthrift trust in
ccordance of 166.1.020. And there is simply no legal

huthority that allows Lynita to assert a community interest
and property that's not even owned by Eric. Especially is

that true where she can't trace any community property to its

cgquisition.

The Court also in its decree indicated that the
arties have -- had entered into a separate property agreement
nd divided their property and that the ELN Trust was funded
ith the separate property that had been so divided.

Springer vs. Springer, 110 Nev. 855 (1994) makes it
lear that once property has become separate it is presumed to
aintain that character and some direct -- until some direct

vidence to the contrary is made to appear. Transmutation
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from separate property to community property must be shown by
lear and convincing evidence.

Here, we don't even technically have that in play
ecause it's not even Eric's separate property that was in the
LN Trust because under well established statutory state law
f Nevada he doesn't even own a legal interest in the ELN
rust property. It's owned by the trust.

It's really that simple, Your Honor. We tried our
est to straight up answer the Court's questions to prove to
ou that this property was acquired straight up through the

loan process, nothing to do with Lynita's interests or her
ommunity property. And it's not necessary or even
ppropriate to award her any type of interest therein.

Now maybe I should save this for reply, but I'm
nxious to get it out here on Friday and I'm going to say it.

If the Court does find somehow that Lynita is entitled to
ommunity property interest, we have a bunch of problems. I
ean, we've got a serious -- we got liquor and gaming

licensing. We got all sorts of subsequent events that have
appened that the Court would have to know about that, that
ould become relevant for the first time. All of which can be
voided by conveying to Lynita of something of equivalent

alue because she never wanted anything to do with gaming and

- and liquor anyway. And you know darn well they can't agree
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n anything. What a disaster that would be if you put them
oth in the same entity.

I think the only objective evidence regarding value,
verything in this divorce was valued I believe as of April
12, 2012 or '11 -- 2012 mostly through Larry Bertsch's
fforts. I mean, the only objective evidence that's been
aised and nothing prevented this side from going out and
etting any -- any evidence they wanted affirmatively, none of
hich they produced, notice they didn't go to Henderson
Capital. Notice they didn't go to the banks. Notice they
Hidn't do anything. They're just trying to rely on their

theory that somehow everything's open wide and -- and because

e take the position that they're not entitled to that
information til they show some type of interest that somehow
his should all be held against us and big sanctions should be
warded and they should be awarded half the property with who
knows what assumptions they want to make.

Frankly, the only objective evidence regarding value
f the acqui -- the date of acquisition of divorce is that the
roperty sold for $440,000. Maybe you can argue Henderson
apital, thought it was wroth $700,000, because they were
illing -- now it was probably more like six because they're
nly getting really good -- they're going to come out of

ocket six. But even if you assumed it was 700,000 and that
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as some type of evidence of what somebody thought this
roperty was worth at the date of acquisition or date of
ivorce.

Where does that leave us? 1It's 700,000 minus the
urchase price of 440 gives us what, $268,000 net value? Each
f them get a hundred and 30,000 of it. And that's a possible
emedy if you think there's community property. We submit
owever there's not community property interest in here, that

it -- the Court specifically maintained the integrity of the
rust. Nothing was done inequitable in any way, shape or form
0 give this trust an interest in another asset that anyway

se any capital or any resources of Lynita or her trust.

And we believe the proper decision is that the court
hould so find and end that issue so that we can deal with all
he other ones that need to be dealt with in the expeditious

filing. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, counsel.

MR. KARACSONYI: First, I want to point out that
flsome of the representations about the prior testimony are
inaccurate. Lynita's testimony wasn't that she was throughout
the entire marriage adversed to gaming or and wanted nothing
I%o do with it. Her testimony was although she was against it,
she was against it initially when the idea was approached that

she supported her husband and stood by him. And as you found
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in the decree, her support and reliance on her husband of 30
ears was largely what turned out to be to her detriment.
There's two theories really. There's two ways that
-- that you can look at this. The first way is if you look at

the subject of community property law, this is a slam dunk and

his is a -- this -- there's really not much to be decided.
nder community property law, any asset acquired during
arriage is presumed to be the community property of the
arties. It doesn't matter whether either party -- both
arties wanted to be involved. That's completely irrelevant.
If that were relevant, then every party in a divorce action
ould start investing monies and say hey, all the profits are
ine, Judge, because she didn't want anything to do with it.
Just used community property willy-nilly and whatever they

would like.

So that's really irrelevant that the only question
ould be when was it acquired. And if it's acquired during
arriage, then the presumption is it's community property.

d they have to prove by clear and convincing evidence that
it's separate property. Well, they haven't done that. They
aven't done that twice now. They didn't do it today. You
idn't hear any evidence today of showing a separate property
ource or any testimony that -- that there was a separate

roperty source for the acquisition if you view all the
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roperty to be community property.

And at trial they weren't able to trace back all the
roperty to today's property. In fact, you found extensive,
hat's probably even an understatement, commingling of assets
etween two separate two —-- two different trusts.

So under community property law, you would have to

find that this is a community property assets and he cannot
hoose when he divests her of her interest. He cannot say you
now what, Judge, I had purchased community property, but I
hink a good time to value her interest would be on the date

f acquisition. 1It's not an op -- it's not an option. They
ontinued to hold it as community property until today. And
he value, if you were going to determine a value and not

eave them joined owners would be as of today.

Now they say well, you should award her a value
ecause you didn't see any evidence of what possibly the
amifications could be of making her joint ef -- joint owner.
ell, they didn't present any evidence on that. In fact, they
xcluded -- they denied us all evidence on licensing,
pplications, things of that nature. So that's true --
ertainly isn't a basis to -- to deny her a continued
wnership of the property.

You don't have enough information to value the

roperty if you were going to award her a value. If you were
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oing to award her a value, we would have to go -- go ahead
nd have the business value by —- by somebody's who's -- who's
valified to do those types of things, to -- to offer an
pinion of the value of the property, someone like Steve
icolatus. Then we would finally get the records that you
anted from day one.
It's interesting -- and before I get to that, the
ther theory, the second theory you could proceed under is the
fact that you can't really determine that he did this with his
roperty. Why was he able to acquire Wyoming Downs? Because
e got 75,000 from BanOne, LLC.
If you look at Page 47 of your decree and I -- I've
een accused that this may be trying to mislead you, but I'll
- I'1l1l read it verbatim and maybe ~- maybe -- I guess the
ourt can make that decision. It is further -- further
rdered that the following properties shall remain in or be
ransferred into the LSN Trust. BanOne, LLC, $1,184,236.
Now if you only meant by that that she only gets
ertain specific properties in there, then -- then perhaps
I've -- I've -- you know, I've misstated this, but it says
hat she's awarded BanOne, LLC here.
So if she's awarded BanOne, LLC, then they have used
nd done exactly what you stated which was used property that

as awarded to her or take their own -- a loan that he decided
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to give to himself with her property to purchase -- to -- to
ake this purchase.

But why is he able to get financing? He's able to
et financing for the purchase because he has all these assets
hat belong to her that are inextricably linked with her
ssets. You go through your divorce decree. You make
xtensive findings of the number of properties, the sheer
olume of the property that he stole from her. Essentially
ow we can ~-- might as well just call it what it is. It was a
tealing that he stole from her over their 30 years of
arriage.

You have the Wyoming OTB properties oddly enough,
ironically enough. The High Country Inn in Wyoming ironically
nough. You have Lindell, Russell Road. These are millions
f dollars of assets that are held in the ELN Trust as he's
oing this transaction but he's saying he has no interest in

hose.

So even if you weren't to apply community property
law, you could easily find that there are properties at this
juncture in time are inextricably intertwined which is -- has
hlready been found by the Court and that any transaction at

this time should be treated as the trans -- transaction that

~ that she has an interest in.

They have not even proven to you the -- the evidence
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hey have offered does not show to you that any of the down
ayment monies, the 75,000 was returned. If you looked at
heir exhibit from Mr. Bertsch, it doesn't show in there
nywhere where it was returned. They won't give you the
ocumentary evidence.

Now that turns to -- to really a critical point in
his and that was what they brought up that -- that you had.
sked for all this information. And I don't know how this
elps them. They quoted you and saying I want to trace it. I
ant to see it. He said at one hearing, I discussed at the

last hearing that they could bury you in the information. We
ade the request. They never ever produced a single bank
tatement.

Why would Eric Nelson if his whole theory is that he
orrowed all the money at deposition, not answered the
uestion and refused to answer the question of whether or not
oney was still owed to on the mortgage. Why wouldn't they
just give you copies of all the statements? Why wouldn't they
roduce that to us? Why wouldn't they produce the banking
ocuments to us if there was nothing to hide? You've already

found the credibility in this case that Mr. Nelson lacks.

Why not just give us the documentary evidence to

show that your theory of the case is at least factually

correct? This is one of the worst cases of hiding the ball
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I've ever seen. Maybe I haven't been doing this as long as

r. Solomon. But in seven years I have never seen appear at
eposition and refuse to answer questions to the extent that
it was done here that don't have to do with an attorney/client
rivilege or some other -- some other basis.

I mean, the amount of questions, the lack of good
faith in responding to discovery, well, Judge, they -- they --
this -- their -- their discovery response goes outside the

cope of -- of what you wanted. Well, what did you do to at
least provide documents that were within the scope of what I
anted?

Certainly you must have thought that some bank

tatements would be helpful in this case. Even if it was the

ne or month or three months that they thought was -- would
how the trace -- the monies that went in and out of the
ransaction. But they wouldn't give that to -- to you. They

ouldn't give that to us.

The only evidence that you have, objective evidence,

19 [is you have the promissory note. Requires that the note be

20

2]

22

23

24

aid off in 12 months. Other than that, you have no other
vidence. You can only infer that it was paid according to
its terms because he still holds it. 1If that's the case, then
ot only do you have 75,000 from BanOne, LLC going to this

roperty during the marriage and apparently some hundred
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housand dollar payment that was due upon the initiation of
he loan which has never been documented but is discussed and
as admitted that it was paid.
But you also have an additional 600,000 being paid
from some source, but nobody will show you that. Nobody can
rove to the contrary. The fact of the matter is that you --
hey wanted to determine what you needed, what you needed to
ake a decision. And they wanted to limit us to what they
felt they needed. And by doing so they haven't been able to
rovide to you with any documents that would show you that A,
hat this was property acquired from separate property or B,
hat this was property acquired from some source other than
ources belonging tc both parties.
So for those reasons and in equity, Ms. Nelson
should be given a -- a 50 percent interest in Wyoming Downs.

THE COQURT: Thank you. Ms. Forsberg.

MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. I'm going to
e much more brief, because I think really it boils down --
re you okay? It boils down to a couple of things. The
ottom line question if we cut through the rest of this is
that is the Court going to honor its statement when it said
look, what I want to know is was it collateralized by LSN
ibroperties. That's what the Court said when it said I need to

know more. I need to know what was used to collateralize it.
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It's now been proven to everyone in this courtroom

that it was more than a hundred percent ccollateralized. They

- he -- it was collateralized by ELN getting a loan that was
ven bigger than the original purchase price.
So I guess the bottom line is Your Honor that you
limited the scope by saying it's as of the purchase. I want
o see where the funds came from. And they don't like the
fact that you have limited the scope. And so they're making
a1l this noise about how much we wouldn't give them or the ELN
Trust wouldn't give them or because the Court limited the
scope.
So the bottom line comes down to whether the Court's

going to honor its statement saying that it needs to know

Ehere the collateral was from was it collateralized or did he

et a hundred percent loan.

MR, SOQOLOMON: Just real briefly, Your Honor. Just
to respond to some of Mr, Josef's comments and handle it.
Your Honor remembers the testimony and -- and the positicn
that Lynita and her trust took at not only at the trial but at
the subsequent hearings leading up to here. They don't want
anything to do with Wyoming Downs. They don't want to
purchase. They didn't want the 1.5 used for it. They wanted
75 repaid. They got all that. Now they got all that and they

still want it.
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On the community property theory, counsel's right on

hat he said, but the converse is also true that any asset
cquired with separate property is separate property. And
ertainly he -- any property acquired by a trust which is not
ven community or separate property. It has nothing to do
i1th the community property presumption or the separate
roperty presumption.

The commingling argument's interesting. The
ommingling concept is a community property concept admittedly
ut it didn't have anything to do with two trusts. If one
11 ftrust steals from another trust or commingles stuff, then you-
12 jlcome into court and you ask the Court to uncommingle it or
13 [have it repaid. It doesn't create -- and -- and that's'what
14 [this Court in essence tried to do in -- in its decree. It
15 [went through each of the transactions and tried to say oh,

16 [hold on. This -- this was something that came from Lynita and
17 fthe profit was made on it and here was the amount. So we

18 [weren't going to send something back to equalize that. That
19 |F- that's the remedy you get. It doesn't change the character
20 |of what's in the trust until the award's made.

21 BanOne, that argument's interesting. Take at look
22 lat your findings, Your Honor. I can read some of them. And |

23 fthese are quotes. The Court -- this is from the decree. The

24|kourt further finds that BanOne, LLC currently holds 17
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roperties worth $1,184,236. It's on Page 20, Lines 2 to 9.
The same page. The Court further finds that equity and

justice demands the LSN receive just compensation and then Qut

fof 1.2 million for the sale of High Country Inn in order to

bvoid the ELN Trust from being unjustly enriched and thereforg
LSN Trust should be awarded BanOne, LLC properties held by the
[ELN Trust with a comparable value of $1,184,236. That's also
Page 20, Lines 2 to 9.

And then the Court further finds that based upon the

roperty distribution that we addressed hereafter -- here and
fter, Mrs. Nelson will receive some income producing
roperties, Lindell, Russell Road, some of the BanOne, LLC
roperties, close paren, that's at Page 36, Line 20 to 23.

So my statement was correct that she received BanOne
roperty. She didn't receive any of the cash that was there.

d even if she did, what it was 1s another loan. §75,000 was
aken out of BanOne for a period of time and repaid.

But the real source of money and really the only
ource of money for this acquisition which was proved without
ispute was the hard money loan that the trust or the entity
wned by the trust took out. That was the acquisitiona
hat's where it was —-—- the money came from. Tﬁat‘s where the
oney was sourced. And Lynita had no interest in that

hatscever for trust. They had no interest in that
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hatsoever. And there's no legal basis for her to be awarded
r her trust to be awarded interest in Wyoming Downs.

MR. KARACSONYI: I would just point out --

THE COURT: 1I'll give you a brief rebuttal bgcause I
eally didn't say whose burden it was. So I'll give you a --

MR. KARACSONYI: Okay.

THE COURT: -- really quick rebuttal --

MR. KARACSONYI: On the BanOne -~

THE COURT: -- and then we'll call it a day.

MR. KARACSONYI: The BanOne -- the reason you
eferred to some of the BanOne properties, you cbviously
warded her all the ones in BanOne, LLC because you listed the
alue. The reason it says that is because there's BanOne, LLC
nd BanOne Arizona properties. She clearly got all of the
ssets of BanOne, ILC and you noticed they didn't read %he
rder. They only read the findings.

The other thing that -- the only other fact thét I
ould point cut tc the court is the 75,000 when he took it,-he
ald it was a risky venture. He gave himself a loan, a
roperty that was ultimately awarded to her and prop -- and
eld properties that were awarded to -- that were inter --
inextricably intertwined which he used to get a loan. I'm --

I'm sure they gave him a loan on the basis of his extensive

oldings.
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But he used this 75,000. He hadn't even asked for
ermission. So basically he took what he called a loan. I
onder if what would have happen if he couldn't have closed
nd the 75,000 was lost. I'm sure they would be standing here
oday saying that they owed back the 75,000 or calling it a
oan. It would have just been a lost investment.

He took a risk with her $75,000 and then filed a
otion after already taking the risk. And he was able to do
hat freely because he had free reign of -- of all the
roperty. So I would just point that out to the Court and
gain, and we believe it's clear that she should -- is
ntitled to interest in the property.

THE COURT: Thanks, counsel. As far as -- I think
e have a post motion coming up I think on -- I think June 4th

I think is the order to show cause which is separate I
elieve,

MR. KARACSONYI: I finished it, yeah.

THE COURT: Yeah, we got the motion on June 16th for

he Pebble Beach residence?
MR, KARACSONYI: Yes.

MR. SCLOMON: I'm not involved in either of those,

MS. FORSBERG: No, not --

THE COURT: No.
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MS. FORSBERG: -- at all. Your Honor, the other
hing about -- I -- I was talk to Mr. Karacsonyi today, we're
oing to need to probably move the -- the 16th, 17th, because

I'm planning on being gone for the baby.

THE COURT: ©Oh, yeah. Your daughter.

MS. FORSBERG: Remember we talked about that? I
ean --

THE CQOURT: Your daughter. I'm thinking that --

MR. KARACSONYI: But I think that is in the ELN

Trust issue now.

MR. SQOLOMON: Which?

MR. KARACSONYI: The Pebble Beach.

THE COURT: Pebble Beach, I don't --

MR. SOLCOMON: I'm not aware of it.

THE COURT: Yeah, I don't remember the --

MR. LUSZECK: Not that I know. Well, yeah, but I
on't think --

MR. SOLOMON: I'm -- I'm just not available that
ay. That's why I asked,

THE COURT: So I think since we'll be back to it, it
ill be a time to come back to give a decision. You know,
ith the -- the recent supreme court decision, do you think
it's possible to get this matter resolved, tie everything up

in one big package? Is it worth the time to pursue it or not?

D0-09-411537-D NELSON 05/30/2014 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

136
RAPP1479




10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

I know we've been around the block 19 times, but it looked
ike -- I thought Mr. Solomon makes some statements at the
eginning indicating that there might be something coming in
orizon that might surprise pecople. So I don't know if that
omething is worth the time to try to, because you know
xactly what's going to happen.

I have options. I can release all the money to
ynita on that and have you guys deny your stay and then have
ou go up to the supreme court to try to get a stay on that
nd I would give you time of course to get that filed on that.

I'm not sure what the supreme court meant when it said under
hese circumstances. I don't know if they were saying well
ince it was secured he wasn't worried about that. They could
et more enjoin -- they can get more injunctions or pursue
ore injunctions if they thought that was, you know,
eneficial.

So I wasn't sure what the supreme court meant when
hey mentioned that. They could have just denied it straight
ut. So I don't know if they were saying that the reason they
eren't overly concerned was because the property's enjocined
nd they can enjoy more property if the Court could if they
hought it was irreparable.

The other options that I can give Lynita a portion

f that money which I would be inclined to do for sure as far
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As she's been sitting out there and -- and Mr. Nelson and to

he trust was -- gave them their 500,000 right up front. I
ould have froze that up to the power and leverage on the

ther side and fine, she waits for her money, you can wait for
our money. But I didn't want to do that because I thought
that was the investment issues on that. So I made some
equities. So there's things I can do on that to push the
issue one way or the other.

My thing on that, do you think even sitting out and

try to resolve one big package because it depends what the
upreme court does and if I release all that and they do stay
n the supreme court would grant the stay or not, I'm reading
heir decision. I don't know if that injunction is big to
hem. This -- as if they -- the injunction was there and then
hey would deny the stay if it wasn't there. Maybe they do
he stay to enjoin it again. So I'm trying to think through
here they're going. Yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: All we have is her money has been
ied up for over nine months.

THE COURT: Exactly.

MR. DICKERSON: He has full use of everything. He's
ot full use of --

MR. SOLOMCN: Your Honor, in answering your gquestion
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COURT: Yeah, I mean --

MR. SOLOMCON: -- I would be more than happy to sit
own with Mr. Dickerson and --

THE COURT: 1Is it worth the time? I know we've been
round 19 --

MR. SOLOMON: -- we can spend next week and see if
e can reach an agreement.

MR. DICKERSON: I =-- I would certainly like a ruling

THE COURT: Because maybe --
MR. DICKERSON: -- out of you and if we can work

something out from there. But we need a ruling and the

roblem is the history. I've -- I've worked with this case
for it seems like six years now. You know we've made numerous
fforts to try to get the case resolved.

THE COURT: I mean, we had it settled a couple of
imes and it came back during the eve of some --

MR. DICKERSON: We're dealing with a very litigious
individual.
THE COURT: I just want to get it out there. Not
ffthat they --
MR. SQOLOMON: You're talking about Lynita, right?
THE CQURT: If they thought it was worth the time to

et it resolved in one big package, fine. I'm fine making my
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ulings. As far as the release of the 8.68, whatever it was,
id you want to put a record on that or not? I mean, as far.
s that, I said I'm going to -- I haven't digested it yet. I
ot to read to the supreme court decision again and see what
hey're saying on that. But as I said, I got options. 1 can
elease the whole thing. On your appeal and I can, you know, .
eny the stay which I'd be inclined to do to be quite honest
nd then go to the supreme court and see if they would stay
nd re-enjoin. If I did that, I would give you, you know, a
ay or two to follow your stay on that supreme court. Could
ule on that, because otherwise you'll be kind of undermining
he supreme court. So that's several things I can do that.

MR. DICKERSON: The case where the fairness is.

THE CQURT: Yeah. Yeah.

MR, DICKERSON: She really hasn't been treated

fairly and I'm not --

THE COURT: Yeah. I --

MR. DICKERSON: -~ complaining.

THE COURT: No.

MR. DICKERSON: The problem is she has no -- she's
ad to sell her home. She's had to go to work . He's not
iving her any money. He's given everybody else money, but he
- she has nothing. So she has to sell her home just to be

ble to survive. She's put in a -- a real difficult
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bredicament and she needs money. And she needs the money that

this Court has awarded to her. She's not even receiving the

income --

MR. KARACSONYI: From BanOne. I mean --
II MR. DICKERSON: These --

MR. KARACSONYI: -~ these -- I don't think the
injunction --

MS. FORSBERG: It's not even --

MR. KARACSONYI: -- I think it's clear she can at

|heast get that today. I mean, from now on from today forward
she's the legal owner of the properties of BanOne, LLC and

Lindell. And they can take it up with the supreme court, but

he should at least get the income from those properties.
hat was never even stayed. Their concern was their argument
as we will be irreparably harmed because real property is
nique and it can be sold, encumber leverage, which by the way
hat argument goes both ways. But that's neither here nor
here.

You enjoin that, but what -- what irreparable harm
o they have if she is collecting the monthly rents at least
from her property now? She should get that immediately today.
I mean, and if they argue that's irreparable harm, well, to
hem -- well then what is it to her? Because she's

irreparably harm in the same manner because she's not getting
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it. And she's the one who has the better claim as of today.

hey're the one who needs -- ones who need to take up an
ppeal. I mean, she can get all that monthly income and be in
harge of that. That would be a huge start, have the checks
irectly sent to her so that he doesn't start deducting health
insurance.

MR. SOLOMON: I think what the supreme court
intended by that order was for this Court to make a decision,
his final thing so this thing goes up on appeal and we can a
file a motion to stay. The Court can rule whatever it wants

11 ko on that and we can try and get whatever it needs to be done

12 lstayed. That's where I think the procedural posture of this
13 lis and that's what was intended by the supreme court.

14 I told you before and I meant it seriously, we will
15 |make some proposal that they may not love. I guarantee you we
16 won't love it either, whether or not they accept it. And

17 we'1l alsc propose it to the Court at the appropriate time of.
18 lgetting her some type of money cash flow out during the

19 fbendency of the appeal that we think --

20 MR, DICKERSON: We've made an effort.

21 " MR. SOLOMON: -- it will be reasonable and it won't
22 -

23 MR. SCOLOMON: Haven't made --

24 MR. SOLOMON: -- be everything they claim they're
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ntitled to, but it will be a heck of a lot more than what we
laim they're entitled to because that's where we are in the
osition of this case.

MR. DICKERSON: The whole concept is to start --

MR. SOLOMON: And I'm more than happy to talk to Mr.
ickerson about that million and to get this back in front of
he Court on that issue.

THE CQURT: And we're coming back on --

MR. DICKERSON: Well, I've been sitting around for
ix years.

THE COURT: Yeah, we're coming back on June 4th for
he order to show cause. So that would be a2 good time for me
o give my rulings. I know you're not part of that, but does
hat work for you just to give rulings if that help gets this
ase moving? That also -- that also gives you a week --

MR. SOLOMON: That's all I need. I am here on June
th, Your Honor.

MS. FORSBERG: I'm here.

THE COURT: Since when? When -- June 4th, next --

THE CLERK: Next Wednesday.

MR. DICKERSON: Are we going forward with the -- the
|Fvidentiary hearing? Is that the date that --

THE COURT: I believe it was that --

MS. FORSBERG: That is the evidentiary hearing.
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MS.

THE

KARACSONYI: The finalization.

COURT: Yeah, that's day two. Yeah.
KARACSONYI: Yeah.

SOLOMON: The evidentiary hearing on what?
DICKERSON: We're -- we're available.
FORSBERG: On an order to show cause.

COURT: Order to show cause. You guys aren't

involved in that, but I thought --

MS.

THE

MR.

THE

there will be

MS,

MR.

on't want to

hat

time

THE

wou

THE

THE

FORSBERG: You're not involved.

COURT: -- since the parties --

SOLOMON: Thank you.

COURT: -- would be here, if you're available
a time that --

FORSBERG: That's what you're looking at --
SOLOMON: I -- I can come on that day but I
sit on that hearing if I don't have to.
COURT: -~ give a ruling before, yeah. No, I --
1d that be set for?

CLERK: That's set at 9:00.

COURT: I can --

KARACSONYI: We'll do that at the start.
COURT: Yeah.

KARACSONYI: For the --

DICKERSON: 9:00 o'cleock.
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FORSBERG: At the start.
COURT: Yeah, we --
SOLCMON: All right.
COURT: -- do that -=-

MR. SOLOMON: That's fine.

THE CQURT: -- and give you findings on that. That

ives you a couple of days to maybe talk a little bit to see
if there's some other issues that could be resolved and that
ay I'll be making a decision on the injunction because I
hink that's the key issue.

MR. DICKERSON: That's acceptable.

MR. SOLOMON: What's it at, June 4th?

THE CQURT: Yeah, June 4th, 9:00 o'clock. And then
e'll start the --

MS. FORSEERG: He looked at me like I'm not going to
e here, but --

MR, KARACSONYI: 1I'll be here, Your Honor.

THE COURT: No, but I mean, you're going to be here,

FORSBERG: I'1ll be here.
COURT: Now yocu're here for the trial, so --

MS. FORSBERG: I'm here.

MR. KARACSONYI: And that would allow the appeals

rocess to start and everything.
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THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. KARACSONYI: I think -- okay. 1I'll look back
nd see if there's any other outstanding orders or anything -;

MS. FORSBERG: 9:00 o'clock.

MR. KARACSONYI: -- that need to be wrapped up.

THE COURT: Yeah, I know you got the two. I'll
heck. I know I signed the competing orders. I'll have to
heck Mr. Courtney. I know that -—-

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, I can make 9:00 o'clock,
ut I have to be back in my office at 10:30. Would that be
nough time?

THE CQURT: Sure.

MS. FORSBERG: You're going to go -- he's going to
o first on that he said.

THE COURT: Okay. And why don't you guys go first
hat way you can leave.

MR. SOLOMON: Thank you.

THE COURT: Do we have anything else that day that
e get to --

MS. FORSBERG: Just us --

THE COURT: So we'll do that and then just start the
rial afterwards. That way we get you out. All right.
hanks, everyone.

MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor.
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SOLOMON: Thank you, Your Honor. We'l

COURT: Thank you. 1I'll see you --

KARACSONYI: Thank you, Your Honor.

1 see you

COURT: -- on June 4th at 9:00 o'clock.

FORSBERG: June 4th. Yeah. Yeah.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 12:55:36)

* ok ok Kk Kk K
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orrectly transcribed the digital proceedings in the
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